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Committed to
enriching lives

The UK’s leading
retirement
housebuilder

McCarthy & Stone is the UK's leading
retirement housebuilder with a ¢.70%’
share of the owner-occupiled market.

We buy land, secure detailed planning
consent and then build, sell and manage
high-quality retirement developments. We
have sold over 51,000 apartments across
maore than 1,100 locations since 1977,

1 Based on 3 453 reglstration of cross-lenure properiies speciicaly designad for the
elderty with the NHBC during cakendar year 2015 of whech 2,872 wers registered by
McCarihy & Stone

Front covar, clockwise from top left
The Limes (Murrayfield), Heron Place (Kidlington)

Lewsey Court, Tetbury
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Financial Highlights - in FY16

Underying profit before tax (PBT)'

5105.0m

FY15 £88 4m

Legal completons

2,299

FY15 1,923

Return on capital employed

20%

FY15 20%

Highlights

Five Star rating for customer
satisfaction from the HBF

for the 11th consecutive year,
underpmning our commitment
to quality and customer service.

1 See pages 32-33 for datas regardng KPis
2 Includss three commerc:al units
3 See page 122 for glossary of terms

Revenue'

+31%

FY16: £635.9m
FY15 £4857m

Land bank (plots)

10,186

Fy15 10,087

Year end net cash'

£52.8m

FY15 net debt £44 4m

following our successful
Initial Public Offering (IPQ)
in November 2015.

=
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The Limes, Murrayfield
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Our Business

The UK’s leading retirement

housebuilder

Graphic removed

Our values:

At McCarthy & Stone we work together
to enrich the lives of our customers.

We are determined to build a culture

of excellence among our employees,
recognising achievements and opportunities
for development throughout the business.

E See pages 44-49

c.70* 51,000*

Clear market leader with ¢ 70% share Apartments sold
of the owner-occupied retrement market

1 Based on 3 453 registralions of cross-temwe
properties specifically designed for tha eldedy
wilh the NHBC dunng calentar year 2015 of
which 2 672 were registerad by McCarthy 8 Stone

Carrick Court, Drayton

Our regional focus

In Septembear 2015, we launched

three new regions in the South West,
East Midlands and North West to
support our growth plans and improve
our caverage of local markets We

now have nine profitable regional offices,
with expenenced and high-gualty
managernent teams in place

FTSE 250

Rejoined the London Stock Exchange in
November 2015 Entered into the FTSE 250
in March 2016
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Qur dnving ambition is to enrich the lives

of our homeowners

Group overview

We are the UK’s leading retirement
housabuiider and have sokd over
51,000 apartrnents across more than
1,100 developments since 1977

We buy land, secure detailed
planning consent and then buid,
sell and manage high-gualty and
wetl-located retirement developments

Operating in a distinct sector of
the UK houssbulding market, we
offer owner-occupled apartments
specifically designed around the
needs of older customers

Our missi0n - ennching lives

Qur drving amiition s t¢ ennch the ives
of our homeowners and ernployees

We ain to provide the very best housing
and services that meet the needs of
those in later hfe, we put our customers
at the heart of everything we do

We are pleased that this armbition has
been recognised with a Five Star award
for customer satisfachon in surveys
undertaken with cur homeowners by the
Home Buillders Federation (HBF} and the
Nattonal House Building Council (NHBC)
We are the only UK housebuilder, of

any size or type, to win thus award for

11 years running, each year since it was
established in 2005

Results of our Bullding Comparionship
survey undertaken in the year, in
partnershup with the cross-party

think tank Demos, showed our
homeowners have a much higher
sense of companionship than the

ovar 555 m general nousing

J L
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We're proud that our role in ennching
lives has been recogmsed with a
number of awards m FY16, Including

L

Custorner satisfaction Five Star
award for the 11th year unning

NHBC Pnde n the Job Ten site
managers received Quahty awards

Natonal Housing for Older People
awards Two developments werg
noted as the best examples of
retirarneant housing Raockhaven
Court, Horwich, won Gold

and Queen Elizabeth Court,
Kirkby Lonsdale, won Bronze

In therr categones

Housebuillder awards Best
Retirement Scheme, Scartet Oak,
Solihul

NHBC Health & Safety awards
Five site managers recenved
commendations (¢ 8% of the total
awards made) Paul Gethin, our
site manager in Shrewsbury, was
also tughly commended
Considerate Constructars awards
Siiver winner, Midhurst

Building Safety Group (BSG)
2015 Member of the Year

88 7% average score achieved in
FY16 aganst the BSG's 'generally
comphes’ cntena

Sunday Times Grant Thornton Top
Track 2015 Named in the top 250
st of leading UK companies

www moccarthyandstenegroup co uk
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Our Business continued

Operating in an exceptional
growth market
=
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&€ We have three core
products that deliver
outstanding quality and
are tailored to the needs
of our customers. 39

Clive Fenton
Chief Executive Officer

L

Kenton Lodge, Gosforth

- 7T T 74%

Of all future household growth
in England will come from
those aged 65 or older

c.50%

[__ .l L _J Growth in number of thosa

aged 55 and over by 2035

Chartremoved Chartremoved

1 The Depertment for Cormmittees andi Local
Govemment {DCLG) projections Wuly 2016)
2 ONS Population Projections (2014}
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Our core products
and services
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From top

Sandarson Court, Haglay,

Kings Place, Flest,

The Pings Alioway, and

lunich service at Kenlon Lodge, Gosforth

Retirement Living

Independence with peace of mingd
inimum age 60
Average age at purchase 79

McCarthy & Stonaple 05

Typcal number of apariments per site 30-50

L ]

L]

* FY16 completions 1,511

¢ Land bank 62% (6,303 units)
»

Enhanced platinum specification developments also available

@ Sea pages 12-13

Assisted Living

A retirement apartment you own with flexsble care and support

= Mirsmum age 70
* Average age at purchase 83

FY16 completions 697
Land bank 309 (3,094 units}

* o »

E'_—'-"j Seg pages 14-15

Ortus Homes

Downsize for the leisure years
e Minimurn age 55
* Average age al purchase 73

Typical number of apariments per site 40-60

Enhanced platinum specificatton developments also avalable

* Typical number of apartments per site 20~40

+ FY16 complstions 88
* Land bank 8% (789 units)

@ See pages 16-17

Management Services

Our new developments are run by our
n-house management teams who
provide unique lifestyle benefits ang am
to imprave the hves of cur homeowners
They manage all aspects of property
maintenance and provide a range of
care and support senvices

@ Seeo pages 1812

Qur House Managers and Estate
Management tearns look after our
homeowners and their developments,
helping to provide peace of mind,
security and companionship

www mccarthyandstonegroup ¢o uk
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Our Customers

Annual Report and Accounts 2016
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Exceptional standards

of customer scrtisfaction

The needs of our customers
underpin everything we do,
from the land we buy, to

the developments we build
and the way we manage.

We are the only national housebullder
to build exclusively for those in later
Ife, and this gives us an unparalleled
undersianding of our market

Qur customers want to retain pnvate
ownership and independence, but are
also looking for a little more support,
whether in tenms of someona to manage
the maintenance of their property

or provide more hands-on care

We provide safe, atiractive, aspirational
and well-located housing for
homeowners that helps our customers
Iive thair later years to the full We want
them to be happier, healthier, more
active, and ultimately to ennch ther ives
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+ Based on the HBF 2018 customor satisfaction survey
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90%*

Of our customers would
recommend us to a fnend

80

Avarage customer age
at purchase across
all developments

5

Average miles moved

[ 1

Graphics removed
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€€ I've ived In the area for most of my life and
followed the progress of the development from
the beginning. | decided that it was the nght
time to downsize and as scon as | stepped
through the door, | just knew that Lyle Court
was for me - 1t felt nght.33

Marjornie Crawford, who in November 2015 bought our 50,000th apartment
and moved nto Lyle Court, our Asgisted Living development, i Edinburgh

www mecarthyandstonegroup co uk
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Chairman’s Statement

Robust

growth delivered in

our first year of trading as
d public company

&6 The Group delivered
record revenue, together
with robust growth in
completions, reservations
and profits n its first

year of trading as a
public company. 33

John White
Group Non-Executive Charrman

=

Graphic removed

| am pleased to present our first set of
resufts since rejoning the London Stock
Exchange in Novernber 2015 The Group
delivered record revenue, together

with robust growth in completions,
reservations and profits, in its first year
of trading as a public company and
continues to caprialise on the attractive
demographic opportunity and structural
shortage of supply of retirement housing
in the UK Revenue Increased by 31%

to a racord £635 9m (FY15 £4857m)
and legal completions are now at

their highest level for nine years

Market conditions

Market condrions ware favourabls for the
first nine months of the year and dunng
this period we acheved strong growth in
our reservations However, as previously
ndicated, there was evidence of some
weakness in the secondary housing
market mmmediately following the EU
Referendurn result Qur strong balance
sheet and expenenced management
tearn enabled us to show considerable
flexibility and resihence in responss to
thase market developments — we acted
quickly to close out compietion chains
and adopted a more measured approach
with respect to land investment This,
together with the net proceeds from the
IPQ of £78 5m, enabled us o improve
significantly our cash position year-on-
yaar to £52 8m of net cash {FY15 £44 4m
net debt} and maxinuse cash avatlable

for remnvestment, demonstrating that we
are able to respond quickly and flexibly

to preserve our financial strength when
external market conditions require

Since the year end, we have expenenced
a return to more normal trading
condittons Qur reservation rates, visitor
Aumbers and sales ieads from new
anquines have all been running at tevels
in excess of last year and our forward
order book' including legal completions
15 now ahead of the prior year and stands
at ¢ £250m at 12 November 2016 (FY15
£241m) assisted by three additional

sales releases (FY16 13, FY15 ten)

The investment made in our three new
regions and additional operational

infrastructura to create the ptatfiorm
for delivenng our strategic growih plan
1S now showing beneiit, with all nine
regions delivenng profit this year In
addition, our continuing focus on our
thres strategic Intiatives has allowed
us to deliver further improvement in
our capital turnto 1 2x (FY15 10x)

We have been encouraged by a recent
indicaton from the Government that
they are beginning to look beyond the
first tme buyer when considering their
policy optians, with housing for older
people wdentified as the only ‘cntical’
housing need in the Government's 2015
National Planning Practice Guidarnice
Retrement housing improves wall-being,
réleasses under-occupied and much-
needed family-sized homes and 1s highly
sustainable The provision of apartrents
spectfically designed to mest the needs
of the rtirsment market is an essential
part of the UK housing output and the
housing needs of this age group should
now become a pnority for Government

We believe that there are a number

of policy options available to the
Govemment to encourage and assist
those wishing to move to more suitable
retirament housing On 21 QOctober, we
wrote to the Chancellor of the Exchequer
to request that he considers a reduction
in Stamp Duty for homeowners locking
to downsize We firmly beleve this

would be a highly effective incentive

that would help people to move, provide
a much-needed stimulus to the wider
housing market by freeing up targe
farmily-sized homes for those lower down
the housing chan, and could result in a
net revenue increase for the Treasury of
some £740m per year through ncreased
Stamp Duty receipts from the addiional
housing chains created as a result

1 Forward order baok inciudes legal completions
batween 1 September 2016 and 12 November 2016
and reservations as gt 12 November 2016 Forward
ovder book as at 31 August 2016 meluded revenue
afler cash discounts PX top-ups and other
incenuves Forward order book as at 12 Novembar
2018 inciuded rovenue after cash discounts and
PX 1op ups Other ncentves amounted to £5m
FYI5 £3m)



Dividend

The Directors are propasing a final
dmdend of 3 5 pence per share in
accordance with prewious guidance
This follows the {pro-rata) ntenm
dmdend of 1 0 pence per share, gving

a total dvidend for the vear of 4 5 pence

This ramains in line with our dwidend
policy as stated at the wme of our 1RO,
which targets a pay-out of ¢ 30% of
profit after tax excluding certain
exceptional tems

Board and executive team

We expenenced some natural Board
evolution this year as a result of our
PO in Novermber 2015, qur National
QOperations Director John Tonlass
was appomnted to the Board Jonn
jomed McCarthy & Stone in February
2014 and has been mstrumantal in
drang our key strategic intiatives
within our core processes and
continues o ovarses this work at
Board level His previous expsnence
includes a number of years as Chief
QOperatng Officer at Unie ple, the UK's
leading student housing provider

£nor 1o the Group's IPO in November
2015, Nils Albert resigned from his
role as a Nominee Director on the
Board, representing the Group’s
then largest shareholder

We will shortly see the departure of
Nick Maddock, our Chief Financial
Officer, whose rgsignation will take
affect in Q1 of the 2017 calendar

year We are extrernely grateful to

Nick for hus significant contribution

to the Board over \he past five years
He has played an important role in
recapitatising the Group, delivermg

our growth strategy and prepanng us
for our successful return to the Mam
Market of the London Stock Exchange
in Novemnber 2015 The process to
appoint Nick's successor i3 now under
way and a further announcement on
this will be made in due course

In addiition to this, there was a further
change within our executive leadsrship
team, which we announced on 4 July

Annual Report and Accounts 2016
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Kings Flace, Figet

2016 Mike Jennings, Operations
Director South, left McCarthy & Stone
on 31 August after 19 years with the
Group Mike's duties as an Operations
OCirector transfemred to John Tonkiss
from 1 September 2018, with his
other responsibilities being spread
across other exusting members of

the executive leadership team

tMcCarthy & Stone has a strong platform
in place to deliver its planned growth

We have an expenenced management
team and the necessary operational
capabiity, a high-gquality land bank with
attractive margns, a strong batance
sheet and continued strength of brand to
support the achievement of our mediim-
term strategic objactive of bulding and
seling more than 3,000 units per annurm

The market for retirement housing
rermains tughly attractive With research
by the Department for Commumtes
and Local Govermment (DCLG) now
recognising that around 74% of
household growth in the UK to 2039

18 expected to come from those aged
65 and over?, McCarthy & Stone
remains uniquely placed 1o caprtalise
on this unprecedented demographic
opporturty in which demand continues
1o exceed supply The Group has made

]

£635.9m

Raverwe FY15 €485 7m

+31%

Revenue

great progress towards achreving
its strateqic objective thus year and
my thanks go to all employees, the
management team and my fellow
Board members for the sigriuficant
contnbution they have made

John White

Group Non-Executive Charman
14 Novermnber 2016

2 F¥he Department for Commiunites and Loca)
Covernment {DCLE) praecions Wuly 2016)

www meoarthyandstonegroup co uk
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Our Portfolio

l Qakfigid Court, Urmston

Graphlc removed

National scale

meeting local needs

Graphic removed

Hillbarough House, Bexhill-on-Sea
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We are the UK’s leading retirement housebuilder, with a

nationwide operation. Over the past 12 months, three new
regional offices have been established, bringing our total to

McCarthy & Stenaplc 11

nine. We enjoy close links with the local communities in which
we operate and have in-depth experience and understanding
of local housing needs and planning requirements.

Examples of our current portfolio

-

1 1 N e

1
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Kingswood Court, Sidcup, London
¢ Retrement Living

* 49 gpartments

* QOpened February 2016

* 100% reserved off-plan

Blyton House, Bourne End,
Buckinghamshire

+ Retrrement Living (Platnumy

25 apartments

Opened July 2016

100% reserved off-plan

Wykeham Court, Wickham,
Hampshire

+ Retrernent Living (Platinum}

* 31 apartments

¢ Opened January 2016

»  58% reserved off-plan

Bluebell Court, Tettenhall,
Wolverhampton

Retirement Living

22 apartments

Opened November 2015

73% reserved off-plan

* 8 & 0

Wardington Court, Northampton
s Assisted Lving

* 56 apartments

* Opened May 2016

* 6519% reserved off-plan

William Page Court, Staple Hill,
Bristol

* Retrement Lring

¢ 43 apartments

* QOpened June 2016

* B3% reserved off-plan

N B

Graphit removed
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Bewick Grange,
Harrogate, Yorkshire

* QOrius Homes

* 33 apartments

¢ QOpensd October 2015
* 85% reserved off-plan

I ]

Graphic removed
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Lawn Court,
Harwood, Bolton

* Retirement Lmng

* 28 aparirments

+ Opened June 2016

+ 619% reserved off-plan

B B

Graphic removed
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The Sycamores,
Kinross, Scotland

* Retrement Living

+ 33 apartments

* Qpened February 2016
+ 58% reserved off-plan

www mecearthyandstonegroup co uk
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3 Our Products

Graphic remoy

Retirement Living

Independence with
peace of mind

I—' _'l Retirerment Living provides
high-quality owner-occupied
apartments exclusively for those
aged 60 and above, offenng
homeowners independence
Graphic removed with peace of mind.

Apariments typcally feature one or two

bedrooms, spacious lounges, fitted

latchens, lifts to all floors, level access,
L J extra storage, en-suite bathrooms and

Heron Place, Kidiington



red

often private outside space in the form
of balcones, terraces or patios To
cater for the needs of our homeownaers,
ovens and plug sockets are raised

to waist height and bathrooms ars
equipped with slip-resistant floonng
and lever taps for sasier operation

Apartments have a camera door entry
systern and a 24-hour emergency call
system with an emergency pendant
alarrn system Developrments also
feature a large amount of communal

space, mcluding a shared lounge, guest

suites to accemmodate visiting famly
and fnends, and landscaped grounds

Annual Report and Accounts 2016

4

MNew Retirement Living
developments salas
released in FY16

1,511

Urits soid in FY16

62"

Of land bank

Heron Place, Kidington

Qur site-based House Managers provide
help and assistance for homeowners
and are responsible for the day-to-

day runming of each development

Since January 2015, the Group has
also provided Platinum Retirement
Living developments In a select
number of locations throughout the
UK These can include enhanced
internal and extemnal specifications,
such as an exclusive club lounge

www mecarthyandstonegroup co uk

McCarthy & Stone pic
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Our Products

Graphic remor

Assisted Living

A retirement apartment you own

with flexible care and support
|'— _| Assisted Living is designed
exclusively for customers
aged 70 and over, offering
a retirement apartment

with management services,
domestic assistance, personal
care and additional support.

Graphic removed

it 1s an atiractive allernative for people
J seeking support, or the opten of
l_ seeking further support, but who wish to
Liberty House, Raynes Park retain ndependent home ownership and



red

are not yet ready to move 1nto residential
care The Group s the only national
housing prowvider offenng an Assisted
Lving product with these charactenstics

Developments are similar to Retirement
tiving but have a number of additional
features They have been designed

to increase accassibdity and ease

of Iving for the later years Facilies
typically include a full table-service
restaurant with meals prepared

freshly on-sie, a function room and
secure mobiiity scooter store room

Arnual Report and Accounts 2016

10

New Assisted Living
developments sales
relsased n FY16

7

Units sold in FY16

30%

Of land bank

Liberty House, Raynes Park

Our Estate Management team is
on-site 24 hours a day, 365 days
a year, and each development has
a dedicated Estate Manager who
manages the development

Since January 2015, the Group has
also provided Platinum Assisted Living
developments in a select number

of desirable locations throughout

the UK where premium pncing can

be achieved These offer enhanced
tnternal and externat speciications

www mccarthyandstonegroup ¢o uk

McCarthy & Stonepic 15
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" Our Products

Graphicremon

Ortus Homes

Dowmnsize for the leisure years

Ortus Homes Is our newest
product for customers aged 55
and over fooking to downsize
for their leisure years.

‘— _§[ We launched Ortus Homes n October
2014 to expand our product range and
capture a wider share of the market
by appealing to more active retirees

Graphic removed Ortus Homes 1s designed for people
looking to downsize Into lugh-qualtty,
waell-located and low-maintenance
apartments Developments typically
have fewer, but farger, apartiments

L _J than our other core products, with

Shore House, Swanags
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higher car parkng ratios They are
inteligently and attractively designed
to future-proof later Iving

Features are incorporated discreetly

o achieve an ageless design and
developments typically feature an
enhanced lobby area and an open-plan
feel Each apartment has a fully fitted
kitchen and master bedroom with an
en-suite bathroom and walk-in wardrobe

As homeowners tend to be more
independent, Ortus Homes
developments have a visiing manager
who 1s on call and regularly on-site

Annual Report and Accounts 2016

This service 1S provided by our
n-house managasment sarvices
company As age exclusivity 1s less
of a focus, thess developments
emphasise secunty and hfestyle, as
well 3 pnvacy and personal space

Cur first Ortus Homes development

at Scarlet Qak in Solihull won the Best
Retrement Scheme at the annuat
Housebuilder Awards in November 2015

McCarthy & Stoneplc

5

New Ortus Homes
developments sales
released n FY16

Units sold in FY16

%

Of land bank

fQ\ Continued
product
innovation

www mccarthyandstonegroup ¢o uk

7
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N Our Products

Graphlc remon

Management Services

Ongoing support for
our customers

l" _l Our in-house management
services team provides
homeowners with peace
of mind that we will look

Graphic removed after them and their
properties over the long
term. it is a key part of how
we seek to ennch our

L J customers’ lives.



rad

Prowithng our own managemsnt
services allows us to estabish a

unicue relationship wath our customers,
providing personal and efficient services
that not only help them, but also
support the pont of saie and ajlow us
1o delwver ndustry-leadng standards

of custormer sahsfaction It inks
together our expertise In housebulding
and property management

McCarthy & Stone Management
Services (MSMS) provides management
services in the Group's Retirement Living
and Crius Homes developments Each
Retirement Living development typrcally
has a dedicated House Manager on-site
five days a week during working hours
managing the day-to-day runming of

Annual Report and Accounts 2016

the development while also helping
to facitate varcus social actities
Each Qrtus Homes development has
a visiting manager who s in charge of
all aspects of property mantenance

Yourlife Management Services
{YLMS} 15 owned 50/50 by MSMS
and Sornerset Care Group, a leading
not-for-profit care proviger It provides
management services, domestic
assislance, catenng, personal care
and additional support in our Assisted
Living developments Developments
are run by an Estate Manager and

a tearn of staff members on each
developmant to deliver these services,
24 hours a day, 365 days a year

McCarthy & Stone plc

264

Total number of
managed davelopments

200 Retirement Lving
55 Assisied Lving
9 Ortus Homes

11,072

Total nurnber of apariments
7,755 Retrement Living
3,130 Assisted Lmng

187 Ortus Homes

12,000*

Over 12,000 hormeowners
as at 3t August 2016

Within
Assisted Living
developments.

* 12,300 hours of
domestic assistance
provided per month

+ ¢ 8,400 hours of care
and additonal support
provided per month

¢ C 43,200 meals for
homeowners prowded
per month

www mcearthyandstonegroup co uk
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Business Model

The Group has a proven business model of buying land, securing
detailed planning consent and then building, selling and managing

Annual Report and Acoounts 2016

high-quality developments across the UK that are specifically
designed to meset the lifestyle needs of retirees.

Our customers

A distinct and growing
customer base

» Target custorner age over 60s
in Retirement Living, over 70s 1N
Assisted Lwving and over 55s in
Ortus Hormas

» Older owner-occupiers who are
kesn to downsize into attracuve
and secure housing with shared
benefits and comparonship

¢ Those who wish {0 maintain
their ndependence with
support on hand if and
when required

¢ Addressing undersupply of
homes dedicatad to the needs
of older customers

Design

Apartments spectiically
designed around the
needs of older customers

Land and planning

A tallored approach to
land and planning

Build

Repeatabie build
Processes

Sales and marketing

Marketing proposition
and sales approach
tallored to our customers

Management

A specialised
management services
offering

-

Graphic removed

Graphic removed

Graphic removed

Graphic removed
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Higher density than tradittonal housebuilding
Developments built to Lifebime Homes Standards or above, for lasting quahity
Saolaly apartments with an average of 41 units per development

Lower parking ratios due to lower car ownership, given the averags age of our homeowners and the
central location of our properties

Ongeing innovation with apartment types and designs to address the changing needs and asprrations
of our customers

Sites are well located within towns and cities, and are typically 0 5 to 3 0 acres in size

Less competiron for our srtes from tradional housebulders, who tend to be interested n largar, usually
greenfield, locations

Lirmited on-site affordable housing requirements and mihigated impact of Section 106 and Commurity
Infrastructure Levy payments

Expenenced, specialist in-house planning team
Optimisation of development density through reduced on-site parking and amenity Space requwernents

Majornty of matenals purchased using national framework agreements, leveraging the Group's
nationwide buying power

Standard desians and short build cycles give the Group good visibility over build costs and allow
favourable terms with suppliers and contractors to be negotated

39 years' experence in designing and building apartments in 2 way to iNcrease accessibility and ease
of iming for the later years

High-quality product which captures a significant new build pramium

Homeowners buy thew apartment plus access to shared areas, management and support services,
delivenng unique ifestyle benefits

Prced to attract older people wishing o downsize and releass equity
Expenenced sales and marketng teams who ungderstand how o sell [o this customer base

MSMS, a subsidiary company, delivers management sarvices in new Retrement Living and
Qrtus Homes developments

A flexible personal care and support service in Assisted Living developments 1s prowded by
YLMS, which is owned 50/50 by MSMS and Scmerset Care Group, a large and exparienced
not-for-profit care provider

www mccarthyandstonegroup co uk
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Chief Executive’s Review

Operational review

Our strategy

increased
investment

&

Sales growth

Continued
product
innovation

© |

Operational
efficiency

Focus on
performance

IO

Our Sirategy
See pages 30-31

Graphic removed

Our results

The Group has delvered strong growth
in 1tg first year since rejoining the Main
Market of the London Stock Exchange
Revenues increased by 31% to a
record £635 9m (FY15 £485 7m) dnven
by anincrease In legal completion
volumes to 2,299 (FY15 1,923) and an
ncrease in ngt average selbng pnce
This led to a robust InCrease in our
undertying pre-tax profits of 19% to
£105 Om {FY15 £88 4m) Under our
expenenced management team, our
legal complehons have now increased
by more than 50% since 2013 and

wa have made signficani progress
towards delivenng our medium-term
objective of doubling the s1ze of the
business by bulding and sefling

more than 3,000 units per annum

We opened 64 new sales outlets during
the year (FY15 51), which contnbuted
to a year-on-year mcreass of 10% m
our net reservations This enabled

us to debver a 20% ncreass in legal
complstions to 2,299 (FY15 1,923)

Our net average selling pnce increased
by 8% to £259k during the year (FY15
£238k), reflacung further improvement
in the quahty and location of the
developments we are now bringing to
market, together with a small element
of house pnce inflaton We saw
modest house pnce inflatien for the
first mne months of the year, together
with continuing discipline around
incentives, which ensured that they
remained at a similar overall level to
last year despite the addrional help we
provided to our customers i1 July and
August in order to close out completion
chains following the EU Referandum

In addition to our financial and
operational progress, we also
successfully rejoined the Man Market
of the London Stock Exchange in
November 2015 This took a huge
amount of preparation, energy and
focus from all involved and | am very
proud to have led the Group through
this significant milestone With the
appropnate capital structure now In
place, we have the opportunty to
focus on our operational performance
and delvary of our planned growth
over the medium and long term

Investment and growth strategy
We continue to pursue our strategy

of creating an efficient and scalable
business, capable of buiding and seling
more than 3,000 units per annurm over
the medium-term There Is sigrificant
damand for our product and we are
confident that wa have put in place all
the necessary elements that will enable
us to achieve our planned growth We
have a respected brand with nearly

40 years of experience, a high-guality
land bank, a strong balance shest

with a robust capital structure and the
necessary organisationat capabilty and
platform in order to grow our business
Qur expenenced management team

15 focused on achieving this goal

Market demand

The structural imbalance between supply
and demand within the housing market
continues to provice us with excephonal
market opportunty Desprte the recent
growth in housebuilding activity, there
remains a significant and growing
shortage of housing supply 1n the UK
Thus imbalance 18 particularly acute
the market for retirerment housing, and
McCarthy & Stone stands alona among
the national housebuiders as the only
one that focuses entrely on this market

Dunng afmost four decades as the
rattrement housing market ieader,

the Group has formulated a taored
approach to sales, site acquisition,
design, secunng detaled planning
consents and construction that
mainstream housebuilders have been
unable to replicate We also ensure
that our customers receive the highest
standards of ongoing support through
our management sarvices offenng The
barners to entry in our market ensure
that we mantain a unique position

as the only housebullder capable

of meesting the nationwide need for
huigh-qualty specialist housing for the
growing number of ¢ider people who
are looking to move to properties more
suited to therr needs and Ifestyle

Outlook and current trading

The Group dehversd strong growth this
yaar notwithsianding some impact from
the economic and political uncertamnty
following the EU Referendum result In
June We expenenced some weakness
n the secondary housing market n July
and August ang, whilst we continued
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to take new reservations, these were

at alower level than we saw n the first
nine months of the financial year and
with a higher level of cancellations This
led to the Group camrying a forward
order book® of ¢ £114m mnie the new
financiaf year, which was lower than the
previous financal year (FY15 £131m)
However, over the first ten weeks of

the new financial year, reservatons
hava been straonger and cancellaton
rates have returned to more nermal
levels Sales leads from new enquines
have increased and first time visitors

to our developments have also been
ahead of the prior year We have seen
a 13% improvement in our weskly net
reservation rate since 1 September
compared 1o the same penod last

year, assisted by three additional

sales releases (FY16 13, FY15 ten)
Consequently, the Group's forward
order book’ including legal completions
since 1 September 1s now ahead of the
prior year and stands at ¢ £250m as

at 12 November 2016 {FY15 £241m}

This provides continued evidence of
improving customer sentiment and a
return to normal trading conditions
We will continue to monitor market
conditions and consumer confidence
closely as negotiabons between the
UK Government and the EU progress

Annual Report and Accounts 2016
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Rejoining the Stock Exchange
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We were delighted to rejoin the Main Market of the London Stock
Exchange following our successful IPO 1n November 2015 The
public Iisting has helped us to put in place a long-term, sustanable
and stable ownership structure and allowed a number of investors,
as well as our employees, to take a stake in our business and
share in the benefits of our success We were also pleased to

be readmitted to the FTSE 250 following its quarterly review in

March 2016

While there will be some impact on
our growth in 2017, particularly in

H1, pnmanly resulting from a lower
forward order book brought into the
year following the EU Referendum
and a more measured approach

to land negotiation, we have seen
evidence of improved customer
senbment and a return to normal
trading conditons With the necessary
operational infrastructure and quality
land bank in place, our confidence in
achieving our medium-term objective
of building and selling 3,000 units
per annum remains unchanged

Land bank

In total, ¢ £500m was invested in land
and buwid dunng the penod We added
a further 65 high-quality sites with
attractive embedded margins into the
land bank (FY15 90), equivalent to

¢ 2,614 addonal plots (FY15 3,520},
with terms agreed on a further ¢ 1,700
plots (FY15 ¢ 486 plots)

At the year end, cur land bank stood

at 10,1886 plots, equivalent to 4 4 years'
supply, of which 2 5 years had detaled
planning consent As a result, the Group
now has sufficient land under contro!

to deliver all targeted sales to FY19

_

We delivered 60 detailed planning
consenis (FY15 56) and started buid
on 42 additional sites (FY15 70) We
now have sufficent detaled planning
consents in place to deliver all targeted
sales o FY18 and continue to make
progress towards the target of £2 Sbn
investrment in land and build over

the four financial years to FY19

The market for land remamns remarkably
benign and competrion for our

typical brownfield sites remains highly
fragmented As a result of this, we were
able to ncreass our mirmurn hurdle
rates for land purchases dunng the
year n order to mantan operatonal
focus and disciplne and maximise

our potental returns Al of our land
investment, regardless of product

or location, 1s assessed against the
same hurdle rates and 1s requrred to

be approved by our Group Investment
Committes, ensunng a disciplined
approach to investment In ight of the

1 Forward order book sncludes legal complations
between 1 Saptember 2018 and 12 Novembier 2018
and reservationg as at 12 November 2016 Forward
ordar book as at 31 August 2016 included revenue
afler cash discounts PX lop ups and cthor
incentives Forward order book as at 12 Novambar
2018 included ravenue after cash discounts and
PX top-ups Other Incentives amouniad to £5m
(FY15 £3m)

www mccarthyandstonagroup co uk
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Chief Executive’s Review continued

recent economic uncertainty, we have
been more measured in our approach
to land investment but we continue

to acquire sites in good locations

at attractive margins to ensure that
we can support future growth

Operational infrastructure

and capability

To support this iIncréased investment
and the roll-out of our land bank, we
now have a total of nine regional offices,
three of which opened at the start

of the financial year and one during

the previaus financial year Qur Narth
London region, which was the first

of our new regions 1o be established

in FY15, took occupations at eight
developments this year and had an
extremely successful year for sales
Trus regron is now selling from ten sites
and has a further 31 sites at vanous
stages of is developrent ppeline

In addition, our newer regional offices
established on 1 September 2015, i the
South West, East Midiands and North
West, are now fully operational They
have high-cahbre semor management
teams in place, combining McCarthy
& Stone expenence with volume
manstream housebuilider operational
expertise The estabhshment of

these new regional offices has been
accelerated by the roll-out of standard
processes and systems and the
transfer of warkflow from existing
regianal offices Dunng the year, these
thres regional offices acquired 21 new
development sites (881 plots), with
terms agraed on a further ning sites
(372 plots) The establishment of these
new regional offices completes the
platform required to deliver our planned
operational growth to build and sell
more than 3,000 units per annum

Strategic mitiatives

Our continued focus on ackieving
operational excellence by accelerating
our working capital cycle has allowed
us to delwer further wrnprovement in
our capital turn which now stands at

1 2x for the year endad 31 August
2016 (FY15 10x) In achieving this, we
have put significant management effart

Annual Report and Accounis 2016

into our three key strateqic intiatives
improving sales rates, reducing tme
taken betwsen secunng land and
starting bulld and mplementing
buld programme efficiencies

Sales initiative

The sales ntiative, launched in FY15,
sets out consistently to deliver off-plan
reservations of 50% or more, by the date
of first occupation and then to sell out all
remaning apartments within an average
12-month penod

{in arder to support the sales force

and enable them to achieve these
targets, new sales tooliats have been
implemented within all regions Wa have
also developed a clearer defimition of
our best customer prospects to assist
the focus of local marketing, ntroduced
a partnership with a third-party contact
centre and launched a new online
visitor booking system to provide a
marg consistent cusiomer experience

We have successiully delivered our
strategic target for off-plan reservations
this yoar, with 50% reserved ofi-plan
from the 69 sites that first occupied

n FY18 A number of sites achueved
significantly more than this, for example
Bourne End and Sidcup which both sold
100% oif-plan A further nine sites sold
more than 80% of apartments off-plan
it1s partcutarly pleasing that we have
been able to achieve these accelerated
sales rates whie improving proing

[_— j Broadfield Court, Prestwich

Graphic removed
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I addhition to thes, we have also made
good progress towards our target of
salling out all developments within

a 12-month penod and achieved a
significant reducton in the average
number of months taken to sell out
our devalopments this year This
average now stands at 18 months

for ali stes sold out dunng FY16

Development inifrative

Our development nitiative, also launched
n FY15, ams to reduce the time taken
between securing land and build start
This has involved the implementation

of a number of process iImprovements
with particular focus on the planning
process and increased standardisation
This 1s enabkng the business to bnng
forward profitable developments,

Annual Report and Accounts 2018
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accelerate its growth plans and improve
its capital tum The imtiative has now
been fully relled out across all regions
and is beginning to produce results

Our target for reducing the time taken
between secunng land and starting build
is 16 momnihs for standard sites achieving
a first-trme detalled planning consent

In FY15, we took an average of ¢ 23
months to complete this process and we
have been working hard to improve this
Dunng FY16, we improved thus overall
average to ¢ 19 months? and, for the 15
out of our 42 build starts which ware
deveioped fully under this imtiative from
the outset, | am pleased to report that
our average development tme across
these sites has beaten our strategic
target of 16 months In addition to thig

McCarthy & Stoneple 25

achiavement, we have implemented

a new information management

systern that aflows us fo achieve

greater consistency across product
speoiications and standards This
enables our teams and pariness 1o work
mora effectvely together throughout the
development’s life cycle and provides
technucal assurance and compliance
We are alsp extending the use of 3D
modeling to streamline the development
process further and improve the
accuracy of bulld cost estynates

Build mnttiative

The buld rnitiateve, launched in FY15,
has dnven improvemerts to the build
process 1o accelerate build mescales,
reduce butld costs, enhance margins
and mitigate the impact of build cost
inflation Thus includes the roll-out of

a new framewark of criical controls
designed to ensure that we maintamn
a robust, nsk-based approach to
managing bulld programmes and
budgets The inmtative 1S also targeting
margin improvernents through
improved procurement, a more
structured approach o supplier
partnership and value engineering

of ndwidual developments

This initiative has delverad a ¢ 3-week
time sawving from build start to first
occupation and has identified savings
to the value of £3 3m in reiation to
matenals used, including more than
double the amount of rebates collected
in the pnor year An additional ¢ £12m
of cost reduchions have also been
dentfied which are expected to benefit
the Group over the next four years

2 Exctiuding sites put on ho'd ‘or etther commercaat
or complex planning rgagons (FY15 savan sites.
FY16 s sites)

www mccarthyandstonegroup co uk
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Chief Executive’s Review continued

Qur product ranges

QOur two primary product ranges.
Retirement Living and Assisted Living,
are well established and continue

to ba our core focus We are also
progressing well with our third product,
Ortus Homes, which we launched

in latg 2014 This newer proguct 18
exclusvely for the over 55s and those
in the earlier stages of retirement

who are seeking to downsize for their
lelsura years We now have a lota! of
36 Ortus Homes developments In the
pipeling, representing approximately
8% of our land bank sites Thus product
15 expected to generate complelions
over the medium-temm at comparatile
margns o those generatad from our
established Retirmment Living and
Assisted Living product ranges

This new range presents an exciting
oppartunity for the future, helping us
to capture a wider share of the active
retiree market for whom the traditional
concept of retirement housing has not
been appropriate Our first Ortus Homes
davelopment, at Scariet Oak in Salthull,
reserved out within a year of opening
and also won the Best Retrement
Scheme at the annual Housabulder
Awards n November 2015 1In addition,
we were pleased that Ramsay Grange
and Lyle Court, our combired Asststed
Living and Ortus Homes development
in Bamton, Edinburgh, was also

votad Best Retrement Scheme at the
same awards in November 2016

Qur managsment services business
contitnued s rapid growth, adding

68 new developmenis to its portfoho,
which now includes 264 managed
developments Providing our own
management services allows us o
establish a urique relatonship with
our customers, prowichng personal and
efficient services that not only help
them, but also support the point of sale,
and allow us to deliver indusiry-feading
standards of customer satsfacthon

QOur customers

| am pleasad to report that we have, once
agan, achieved the full Five Star rating In
the HBF customer satisfacton survey this
year This marks the 11th consecutive
year in which more than 90% of our
customers have said that they would be
prepared to recommend us to a fnend
We are the only housebuillder of any size
or type to win this award every year since
it was introdiuced m 2005 and wa ana ong
aof enly three major housebuiders 1o have
retained the top rating this year This
sustaned recagniton by our customers
of the qualtty of product we deliveris a
strong endorsement of our contrnued
dasrra to design, build, sell and manage
the very best retiremert developments

In this regard, we were pleased to win a
further award at the annual Housebuwider
Awards in November 2016, where we
picked up Best Customer Satisfaction
libiative for cur approach to ensunng that
we deliver a five-star service for our
homeowners

Our employees

The growth delivered this year would

not have been possible without the
dedication, enthusiasm and expertse of
our paople We are building a cutture of
excellence that provicles opporiunities

for development and recognises
achieverments by regularly celsbratng
those employeas who go the extra mile
for a customer or colleague through

our nstant, quarterty and annual PRIDE
awards, | am afso delighted to report that,
in our mast recent employee survay, 89%
of cur employess confirmed that they are
proud to work for McCarthy & Stone

Dunng FY16, ten of the Group's site
managers were awarded NHEC Pnde
i the Job Awards These awards are
amongst the Ingustry’s most preshigious
awards and are an excellent reflection
of the quality of our construchon staff

Cur recent Admission 1o the Man
Market of the London Stock Exchange
has provided an oppartunity to enable
our employees to share n our medium-
term success through the intreduction
af empiloyee shara plans We have
introduced a long-term incentive plan
for Executive Directors and &1 senior
marnagers and an all-employee save

as you eam (SAYE) scheme and share
mcentive plan (SiP) We wers delighted
by the inimal 64% of payroll ermpioyees
who took up the SAYE schems launched
in Decembar 2015, providing a powerful
confimation of the commitment and
dedication of our staff to the future
success of McCarthy & Stone

Heaith and safety

| am pleased to report that we hava
continued to make good progress with
developing a culture of excellence in
health and safety across the Group
Qur vision 15 nat Just to achieve health
and safety compliance but to lead our
sector with a robust and consistent
safety culiure across our orgamsation
Qur internal momtonng ragime 1s
supported by a ngorous, iIndependent
site nspection programme mcluding
regular reporting updates 1o the Board

Dunng FY16, we receved five NHBC
health and safsty commendations,
wiih ong site gong on O receve

a highty commended award

Strategic defivery

We have slarted the new financial

year with a high-quality land bank,

a strengthening forward order book,

a strong net cash position and an
expenenced management team in place
We also have the necessary regional
infrastructure and strength of brand that
ensures that we are uniguely placed to
capitalise on the significant demographic
opportunity avalable to us We remain
on track to defiver our medium-term
strategic abjective of buiding and selling
more than 3,000 units per annum

Clive Fenton
Group Chiet Executive Officer
14 Novermber 2016
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Investment Case

An experienced housebuilder with

clear differenticttion

We are in an unparalleled position to provide
growing demographic and a company with u

We are the UK’s leading retirement housebuilder

= Largest developer of privately-owned retirement
property in the UK with a ¢ 70% market share’

* Only retirement housebuilder with coverage n all
UK maniand regions

» Expenenced management team with deep sector
and financial experbise

» Awarded Five Star customer satsfaction rating
for & record 11 consecutive years

We operate in an exceptional growth market with
positive demographics

+ Customer base is the fastest growing demograghic
n the UK

* Almost one in four of those aged 65 or over are keen
to move to purpose-built retirement properties?

¢ Structural undersuppiy of retirement housing, set wathin
the context of considerable undersupply of general
housing in the UK

= Almost thres-quarters of all household growth to 2039
will come from over 65s*

@ See 'Our Markel’ pages 28-29

investors with access to a rapidly
nique competitive strengths.

We have a distinct business modef

+ Focus entirely on retirement housing, a high-margin
business with distinct low-nsk characteristics

+ Differentrated busingss processes with competitive
advantages n an industry marked by barners to entry

s Tallored business mode! that targets different sites from

rmamnstreamn housebuillders

s Over 39 years, the Group has sold over 51,000 apartments

@ Se¢ 'Business Model' pages 20-21

We have a strong financial position and
fugh-qualty land bank

* Strong financial track record with robust balance sheet
s All planning consents in place to deliver targeted sales

to FY18

* Enough land under controt to be a 3,000 unil per
annum business

¢ Robust margins and dentified operational efficiencies

to deliver mproved return on capital employed (ROCE)

over the medium-term
@ Sea Oparating Review’ pagas 34-07

1 Based on 3 453 regrstrations o cross-tanure properties spacifically desgnad for tha aldery wih the NHBC dunng calendar yeer 2015 of which 2 872 ware registered

by McCarthy & Stong

2 YouGov Rasearch tor McCarthy & Stone m June 2015 publshed n Retrement Confidence indax (2016}

3 The Depariment ior Communities and Local Government {DCLG) projections Puly 2018)

Our market posttioning
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Ortus Retirement  Assisted Residentia
Generalist eyl . . R
Generaist  Homes Living Living __ nursing/
Downsize for the Independence with A retiremant @
‘—a“""t:l“e“gc‘“a" iBIsure years peacs of mind apartment you F““dag‘lff"‘a"g
ggp]etltea " own with flexible care business nsc:gel
P @ and support
Retirement willage Other retirement
market housebuilders Rental market
Not pravalent in the UK Lack scale national coverage UK predominantly an

and more limited access
la financing

owner-occupied market

www mecarthyandstonegroup co uk
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A pressing need
for more retirement

housing

The rate of demographic change presents an
unprecedented opportunity to increase the
supply of retirement housing in the UK.

Chart removed

Chart removed
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Rasidants at Hiltborough House,
Baxhill-on-Sea

ONS - popuation projections (2014)
DCLG projsctions [uly 201B).

The DCLG, Engish Housing Survay 201415
‘YouGov Research for McCarthy & Stonain
June 2016, published n Retirement Configence
\ngax {2018)
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The UK's population 1s ageing rapidly
Those aged 85 or over are expected to
double bstween 2015 and 2035, and
those aged 65 or over are expected to
increase by almost 50% ' Households
headed by someone aged 65 or over
n England are projected 1o ncrease
by 155,000 per year, and will account
for almost three-quarters (74%) of

total household growth to 20392

Rates of home ownership are alse
highest among older people More
than three-quarters of households
(76%) where the oldest person s
aged 55 or over own their own home
either with a mortgage or outright
This ts compared to around half
(53%) of younger households *

The growth in the number of older
people, and thew high rate of home
ownership, means thera 1S a pressing
need for more owner-occupied
retrement housing More than one

in three people aged 65 and over
(36%) are likely to move in the future
if something suitable 1s avallable,

and almost a quarter (24%) are keen
to move 10 purpose-built retrement
properties, equivalent to ¢ 3m people *

Despite ingreasing demand for more
suitable housing, few older people
currently move The UK has one of the
lowest moving rates among s oider
popultation compared to other developed
countnes, and this suggests strong
pent-up demand

5 Indapendent data prowidad by Eldedy
Accammodaton Counsel [Apal 2016)

6 Savils Housing An ageing poputanon (2015)

7 Kmight Frank Ratlremant Houswng (2016) -
‘Milbon naw homes'

B The DCLG Ive table 209 - permanant gwedngs
completed by tenure and country (2016}

9 BB8C News (2016}

Cne of the main reasons for the low rate
of moving among older people 15 the
lack of sutable alternatves, reflecting a
long-term structural undersupply of
retrement housing Only ¢ 141,000
units of retirernent housing for
homeowners have ever been built #

This indicates potential for strong
growth i this market Sawlls suggests
that a build target of 18,000 retrement
units each year would be appropnate
in future®, while Knight Frank
suggests 30,000 units per annum?

This 1s set within the wider context

of a general undersupply of all types

of housing The UK built 152,520

new homes in 20147158, short of the
200,000-300,000% homes needed each
year to meet demand In addition, the UK
has delivered over 200,000 new homes
i just four aut of the iast 14 years ™
Increasing supply of retirement housing
could make a sizeable contnbution

to reaching this national objective

Growing Government support

The importance of this part of the market
1s now recognised as being fundamenial
to UK housing policy Housing for older
people has become the only ‘crical’
housing need in the Government's 2015
Natonal Planning Practice Guidance

For the first time, # states ihat local
authonties need to consider the size,
lacation and quality of dwellings needed
for older people n order to allow them to
move to more surtable accommodation,
and that supporting independent Inng
can help to reduce the costs ¢ health
and social services, as well as free up
houses that are under-o¢cupred "

Similar policies alse now exist n
Scotland and London, with the Greater
London Authonty’s London Plan,
adopted in March 2015, stating that
oider Londoners require 3,600 to 4,200
new specialist retrament unis per
annum over the penod 2015 to 202512

As a result, the planmng systerm s
bacoming increasingly favourable for
retirement housing, and this should have
a positve iImpact on future provision
given the increasing demand for this
form of accommoadation

10 GBI Housing lor Brtam (2014)

1t danonal Planning Practics Guidance for Erkgland
{2015}

12 Esvmatad using average values of hemes and
avarage adult househoid 3ize from Undarstanding
Socsty Wave 5 (2013/14) - exciuding top 1% and
botiom 1% Apphad to ONS population estimates

13 The London Plan 2016
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| c.70%14

Share of owner-
occupred market

Barriers to entry for new starters

Despite growing demand, thera are significant barmers io
entry to the sector MNone of the principal publicty-ksted
housebulders currently operate within the speciahst
rehrermnent sector, and none of the smailer retrement
operators have natonal coverage

The lack of competition 1s a result of the challenges of
operating sustanably in this sector These challenges
nclude understanding the needs of a urugue customer
base as well as difficulies with funding, design, achisving
scale (with the efficiencies and brand recognitton this
entaifs), and acquinng suitable land and detailed planning
consent This market is a unique sector and the {aillure of
any other mamstream national housebuilder to penetrate
it successfully ilustrates the high level of intellectual capital
required to delivar a sustainable proposttion

As a result, we retain our ¢ 709%™ share of the UK owner-
occupied retirement market

141,000

Units of retrernent
housing for homeowners
have ever been built

£1.34

Approximate housing
weazlth of those aged 65
or over in the UK

1in3
People aged 65 or over {36%)
woultd consider moving

in ing future f something
suitable 1s avalable

14 Based ¢n 3 453 reg strations of cross temwe
propertas spacifoaly des gnad for tha elderly
I with the NHEBC during calendar year 2015 of

which 2,672 wera registered by McCarthy & Stone

www mecarthyandstonegroup co uk
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Our Strategy

Our strategy is to create an
efficient and scalable business
capable of bulding and selling
mare than 3,000 units per
annum over the medium-term.

operational efficiencies This enables us
to target top-quartle sector margins and
ratums on capital over the medium term

In support of this strategy we are
ncreasing invastment in our pipeline
of mgh-quality land, developing our
product to meet the changing needs
of our customers, building an
operational platform and dnving

Strategic prionty Medwm-term targets Measure/KP! FY15 FY16
% Increased Cash investment 1 Jand and buid (£bn) £04dbn £0 5bn
investment
2SS A OS  ca o pusamengn LAk e
growth and capture a larger shara of tand and buld by FY19
the retiree market
Sites acgured 90stes 65 stes
1923 2,289
/ll Sales Lagal complations (unis) Unis s
-al Sell more than 3,000 units
— grOWth per annum by FY19 ata
Sell more than 3,000 units net ASP of ¢ £300k Nal average selling pnce (ASP) £239% £259k
per annum
Revenue (Em) £4857m | £6359m
.(Q\ Continued
p ro d u Ct Retain Five Star HBF Custumer satisfaction rating 5 star S star
customer satisfaction
mnovation rating
N Grow Ortus Homes to
Maat our customears
changing needs and axpand €10% of annual legal
our customer base completions Ortus Homes legal completions 1% %
(3% of total complatons)
Operational
& efficiency
Create an even morg efficient
and scalable business to
support planned wvestment Improve capital lurn
and targeted growth m ital turn i
g 8 ordar to maxirmise ROCE Capital turn () 10% 12x
{25% ROCE target)
Underhying operating profit (Emj) £953m  £i072m
FOCUS on Improve underlying
pe rfo MMAance  operatng profit margn, Undeslying operating profit margin (%) 20% 17%
targeting top-quartile
Target top-quartlte sector sector margins ROG 20% 20
96;
marging and retums on caprtal Target Improved € (%) %
ROCE {25% targat)
Net debtAcash) (£m) £44 4m (£52 8m}
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Progress in FY16

Cash spend on target to achigva strategic objective

Land bank now represents 4 4 years' supply

Suilicient land with detaled planning to deliver all targeted sales to FY18 and sufficient land
under control to deliver all targated sales to FY1Q

Fewer sites acquired this year due to more measured approach to tand acquisition in hght of
market uncertanty In Q4

Terms agreed on a further 42 sites (c 1 700 plots) (FY15 11 sites, 486 plots) ensuning a
healthy land pipeline

McCarthy & Stoneplc 31

Priorities for FY17

- Contlnue to target high-quality land in
the best possible locations in accordance
with our stnct site purchase cnleria,
maintaining contract condironality
whare passthie

- Land acqursihon volumes to be lageted in
support of our growth strategy to build
and sell mare than 3,000 units per annum
over the medium-térm

- Target land and build spend of ¢ £0 5bn

2(% increase in legal completions this year in hne with strategic objective

Three new regicnal offices with qualily management teams now m place providing a
platform for our growth plans

8% increase in net ASP In Iing with strategic objective reflechng the quality and locabon of
now developmenits and sustaned ncentives conirol

Industry-leading growth of 31% resulting in a record lavel of revenue achieved this year

- Continue to davelop capacity and
capabilty of our regional teams o
enable growth

-~ Continus to grow completion volumes
and ophmise pncing

Five Star HBF customer satisfaction rating retalned for 11th conseculive year

Successfully Increased capacity and capability of our management services business to
ansure that we can meet the needs of customers at all new developments Volums of
developments managed increased from 196 to 264

Orius Homes now represents ¢ B% of land bank
Five new Oriys Homes developments releasad for sale In FY16 (FY15 three)

-~ Retamn Five Star HBF customer
salisfaction rating

- Contmue tor Increase capecity and
capability of managsment services
business it order to keap pace with growth
n new developments

-~ Grow Ortus Hormes to ¢ 10% of land bank

~ Coniinusd innovation n our core products
and platinum range engunng that we are
megting the neads of our customers

Sales mtrative
50% off-plan sales achieved with two davelopments reserving 100% off-plan and a further
nne al over B0%

Good progress iowards our targst to sall out our developments within an average of 12 months
of first occupation, with an average 18 months to sefl out for all sites sold out dunng FY16

— Continue to mprove off-plan sales rates
and iarget turther reductions in ime to
sell out

Oovelopment intiative
Reduchon in average time from land exchange to build start from ¢ 23 months n FY15 to
¢ 19 months in FY16 (standard sites only)

All sites fully developed within this new initiative have bean wattun our 16-month tlarget

- Continue to target further reductions In
average time from land exchange to
buid start

Build initiatve
< J-week time saving achweved from buid start to first ocoupauon

Build savings of ¢ £12m dentfied which will benefit the Group over the four years 1o FY19
Covecuon of isbaies has more than doubled sinca pror yaar

- Focus on tighter management of
build cycle by embadding consistent
working pracuces

- Continug to adopt modern methods
of construction in order 10 reduce build
tmas further

12% increase achievad dnven by mcreased completion volumes

3ppt degrease dus to additronal investment in new regions and addinonal incentives offered
{0 customers to close oul completion chains in Q4

Sustaned capital discipline enablad 20% ROCE to be mantained despile margin challengss
experianced during the year

Significant improvement in cash position dus to more measurad approach o land and build
Investment in Q4 and IPQ proceeds

- Continue to target high-gqualty
land with attractive marging

- Manmain strong balance sheat and
focus on cash managemant

- Continus to pursué builld cost savngs
via the build intiatve

JONVYNH3A0S 31vHOdHOD 1HOd3H J1931VHLS
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Key Performance Indicators

Revenue

Revenue from sales of new apariments
is the pnmary dnver of our profitability
The fundamentals of the retrement
housing market, our distinct business
model and its strong pipeline of quality
land provides the platform for sustained
revenue growth over the medium-term

Profit

Management's focus on deliverng
top-lne growth with improved
operational efficiency will deliver future
margn improvement

Workflow

Medwm-term growth 1s dependent on
our ability to develop our existing iand
bank profitably and to sell current stock
10 gsnerats cash for reinvestment

Retuns

Wa have delivered mmcreasing retumns
on capital due to a combination of
revenue growth and mproving camtal
discipline It remains our focus to
centinye to improve returns on capital
as the current land bank 1s developed

Lega! complehans {units)

18 2,209
15 1823
14 1677

Net average selling pnce (Ek)

18 259
15 239
14 214

Gross profit (Em)

18 1364
15 1231

1 1040

Gross profit margin (%)

16 2

15 25

14 27

Land bank {uruts)

16 10,188
15 10,087
14 8,701

ROCE (%)
16 20
15 20
14 17

Gapital tum (x)?

16 12
15 10

14 09

Discounts and incentives (%)

16 6

15 6

14 7

Revenue {£m)

18 535
15 4857

14 3878

Underlying operating profit (€m}’

18 107 2
15 853
14 751

Undertying aperating profit margin (%)’

16 17
15 20
14 19

Sites acquired

16 85

15 90
14 74

Tangible gross asset value (£mp

18 5741
i5 5135
14 451.2

Tangtble net asset value (Em)?

16 6268
15 469 1
14 4023

1 Undartyng operating profit has been reconct'ed within note 6 to the conso'ldated fanclal statements

2 Pleass sea glossary on page 122 logr definlion



Forward sales (Emy

198 1140

15 1310
14 88.0

Profit before tax (Em)

16 929
15 809

14 571

Underying profit before tax (Em)'

16 1050
15 88.4

14 632

Finished stock (units)

18 1,512
15 1169

14 1,370

Geanng (%)

18 -8

15 8

14 10

Net (cash)/debt {£m)

18 -528

15 44,4
14 489

Annual Report and Accounts 2016

Growth in legal completions and
mproved pacing have baoth contnhuted
towards a substantal revenue increase
in FY16 We continued to capitalise on
favourable market opportunity which has
supported growth in legal completions
An increase In net ASP reflected further
improvement in the quakty and location
of our developments together with
modest house pnce inflation

Volume growth combined with
improved pncing led to a further
ncrease n profits However, margins
have been impacted by the profitabiliity
mix of units sold, the increased usage
of mcentives n July and August and
mvestment in new regicnal
infrastructure

New, high-quality sites were added to the
land bank, which stood at 10,186 units as
at the year end This s equivalent to 4 4
years of supply and is sufficient to deliver
all largeted sales to FY19

Strong cash generatian, together with
IPC proceeds and a more measured
approach to land and build investmant,
improved the net cash position at the
year end This also helped to mantain
ROCE levels despite margin challenges
The benefits of key strategic Intiatives
continued to contnbute towards a notable
improvement in capital turn

McCarthy & Stoneplc 33

Continued disciphne around discounts
and ncentves helped to mantain them
at levels similar 1o pror year, despite
having to offer hugher discounts and
incentives as the secondary housing
market started 1o weaken following the
EU Referendurn At the year end the
Group was carrying a lower forward
order pook impacted by customer
sentiment following the EU Referendum

www mcearthyandstonegroup co.uk
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Operating Review - Strategic Initiatives

Sales
;-lll growth

Operational
O efficiency

John leads our busingss
improvement program me to anable
business growth, enhance customer
expenence and improve cperatng
performance John joined McCarthy
& Stone n February 2014 and was
previously Chuef Executive Officer of
Hyman Recognition Systems
Lrmited Prior to that he worked for
ten years for the Unite Group,
becoming Group Chief Operating
Officer in 2008

[ -

Graphic removed

L J

John Tonkiss
National Operations Director

n N

Chart removed

L _

In FY15 we launched three strategic initiatives with the
goal of accelerating the Group’s typical working capital
cycle. These initiatives foccus on improving sales rates,
reducing time taken between securing land and starting
build and implementing build programme efficiencies.

Improving sales rates

The sales initiative was introduced
to achieve 50% or more off-plan
reservations and then reserve

out remaming apartments within
12 months of first occupation

In grder to support the sales force
and enable them to achieve these
targets, we have overhauled our sales
mduction and training programmes
and introduced new sales toolkits in all
regions These tookits are designed
to mantain high levels of presentation
and saleabiiity talored to the spectfic
features and benefits of each site We
have also focused our local marketing
and lead generation on a morg
precisely defined set of best prospect
customers (n addition, we have
developed a partnership with a third-
party contact cenire and iniroduced
a new online visitor booking system
to provide a more consistent sales
process and cusiomer expenence

To improve web traffic and customer
expenence, we have also devalopad
our web platiorm, a key element
being the mobile-enabled website

We have successfully delivered our
strategic target for off-plan reservations
this year, with an average of 50%
reserved off-plan from the 69 sites

that first occupied n FY16 A number
of sites achteved significantly mors
than thig, {for example Blyton House,
Bourne End and Kingswood Court,
Sidcup which both sold 100% off-plan
A further nine sites have reserved more
than 80% of therr apartments ofi-plan

1 Excluding sites put on hold or either commerclal
o complex planning reasons {FY15 saven sites
FY1E six stes).

As a result of our focus on post first
occupation sales during the year, we have
managed to deliver a significant reduchon
in the average number of months taken

to sell out our developments, which

stood at 18 months for all sites

sold out dunng FY16

The FY17 plans aim to improve customer
relationship management and increase
conversion rates from callers to the
contact centre In addition, we are
adepting mystery shopper programmes
to drive high sales performance
throughout our business, alongside
improvements to our sales progression
process Our Group-wide marketing
team have developed a new creative
that offers a stronger brand image

and clearer ifastyle benefits while also
further developing our web content

Accelerating our development cycle
The development Initiative (Project
Fusion) aims to reduce the ime taken
between secunng land and starting
buld A number of changes designed
to accelerate this cycle have been
implamented, with particular focus
on the planning process, increased
standardisation, and cross-functonal
project teams from the cutset Qur
target for reducing the time taken
between secunng land and starting
build s 16 months for standard sites
achleving a first-time detalled planning
consent In FY15, we took an average
of ¢ 23 months to complete this
pracess and we have bean working
hard to improve ttus During FY16, we
improved this overall average to ¢ 19
months' for the 15 out of our 42 build
starts which were developed fully
under this intiative from the ocutset
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The foundaticn of these cycle-time reductions has been the establishment of a streamiined and simplified six-stage Fusion
development process from Land Evaluation through to Construction

STAGE 0 > STAGE 1 )
Lartd Evalustion Brief Dasign

4

$ 3
Lang Ofler Solalors
Accapitd lnsucled

In support of the Fusion process,
the teamn have also delvered a new
information management system
This onhne repository holds our
Group-wide product standards and
specifications, alongside our key
supphier and framework agreements
and has been instrumental in drving
increased product standardisation
throughout the business

Product
Management

Buifd programme efficiencies
This imtigtive builds on the Fusion
process in order to reduce our

build cycle times and deliver margin
improvernents The key efements
include improved procurement, a more
structurad approach to subcontractor
partnerships, value engineenng

of ndwidual developrnents and a
mare consistent set of construction
managerment practices

Durnng FY16 this programme rolled
out a new framework of critical
controls 1N support of robust build
programmes and budgets, plus the
adoption of a nsk-based approach
to manage the buiid pragrammes

— and Standards —

The information management
systern helps to ensure a consigtent
and standardised hrgh-qualty
product The process enables our
teams and partners to work more
effectively togsther throughout
adavelopment's life cycle

Specification Building

Taolkit Model

infoarmation

STAGE 2 ) STAGE 3 ) STAGE 4 ) STAGE 5 > STAGE 6

Concapt Dasign Coordinated Design Technical Dasign Siter and Build Start Construction
i 4

: ¢4 § s44 4 4

Exchirge Panning Dasgn Resohsion Planning Sita  Bodd Marksting First

Contracts Sokstion Frasze 1o Grent Approvsl Stert S Swin Opsn Oscupsiion

Hawing established the system,
we are now developing increased
functionality including integrated
30 bullding models, build cost
eshmating toals, and property
ranagermeant asset registers

Cost

_.
Tool

Operate <« Construct « Sell

The commercial structure has been
revised to reduce the admiristration
burden on surveyors and allow greater
focus on cost management We have
also dnven greater cost ownership
and comgpliance across aur regions
through streamlined cost coding,
improved reporting and benchmarking

This intiatrve has dentified savings

to the value of £3 3m in relation to
matenals used, including more than
double the armount of rebates collected
in the pnor year An additional ¢ £12m
of cost reductions have also been
identified, which are expected to benefit
the Group over the penod to FY19

1.2x

Capital turn
{FY15 10%

FY16 also saw an improved average
build time, with the 69 first occupations
delivered on average c 3 weeks

faster {from build start) than dunng
FY15 Into FY17 the continuous
improverrent plan will focus on
making further improvements and
greater standarchsation R will do this
through tighter management of the
bulld programme with more granuiar
milestones and by embedding a
framework of consistent working
practices and managemsnt tools

for all site teams The busness S
increasingly adopting modern methods
of construction (MMG) (in ¢ 25% of
sites under construction during FY17)

www mccarthyandstonegroup ¢o uk
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Operating Review - Land and Planning

Increased
investment

Graphic removed

L

Gary Day
Land and Planning Director

Chartremoved

Gary is a Chartered Town Planner and member of
the Chartered Institute of Housing. He has more
than 40 years’ experience in the industry.

Gary joined the Group in 1988 having worked in local government for

13 years as a Town Planner He was a member of the Homes and
Communities Agency's former Vulnerable and Clder People's Advisory
Group and 15 currently a member of the Walsh Government’s Expert
Group on Housing an Ageing Population Over the years he has sat on
numerous other governmental and stakeholder groups concerned with the
housing implications of the UK's ageing population

Gary was apponted Land and Planming Director in 2002 and charrs the
Group Investment Commuttes, which approves all of the Group's land
acquisihions, and the Group's Corporate Social Responsibility Commuttes
He has executive responsibility for land conveyancing, planning, politcal
and public affars, and the Group's management services DUsINess

Cansented land is the Iifeblood of our
business, forming one of the five kay
operational functions of our business
We have a well-established and tailored
approach to land and ptanring, with
clear critena for site acquisitions,
design and planning, including the
review and approval process There
are three elements that differenbate
our land model our stnct site purchase
criterta, the condionahty of our
purchase agreements, and the firmted
degree of competition that we face on
the types of sites that we pursue

We have seen significant growth

in recent years, the land bank has
increased by 17% over the last wo
financial years Sites exchanged in
FY16 are spread from locations near
Aberdeen, Scotland to a site near
Brighton, East Sussex Qur national
reach and profile, together with our
strong track record and reputation in
delivenng on our promises, Isads to
favourable responses from landowners
and agents These relationships

are fostered and mantained by our
expenenced regional land buying teams

At the year end, our land bank

stocd at 10,186 plots, equivalent to

4 4 years’ supply, and as a result

wa now have sufficient land under
control to deliver all targeted sales to
FY19 Duning the year, we secured
fegal intergsts in 65 new high-quality
development sites (FY15 90), equivatent
to ¢ 2,614 addional units {FY15

¢ 3,522) We also obtained 60 detailed
planring consents, providing 2,443
developable units (FY15 56/ 2,122)

How we buy land

Srte purchase critena

QOur differentiated land model provides
a clear land acquisition citena and

a stnct approval process The sinct
controls and processes ensure that
there 15 wisibility, by senior management,
throughout the process, enabling
considered and reactive decisions

Qur focus 18 on smaller, cantrally
located brownfield sites in urban

areas This means that we face

less compehtion for our sites than
mainstream housebuilders, who are
typically interested in larger, usually
greenfield siles We have smaller size
requirements due 1o the higher density
of the Group's developments compared
to manstream houssbuiders, which
gives us a competitive advantage n land
acquisitions and permits the acquisition
of sites that are close to amenities

and with good public transport links,
enhancing the attractiveness of our
developments to target customers We
expenence other benefits from building
on brownfield sites - such as greater
Geovernment support for previously-
developad land, reduced affordable
housing and CGommunity Infrastructure
Levy (CIL) contnbutions, and no
exposure to large nfrastructure costs
Woe also benedit from an increasing
planning policy presumphion in favour
of the type of speciahst housing that

we delver, reflecting the Government's
recognition that the housing needs of the
againg population has become ‘cntical’

The requirements around proximity
to shops, faciities and transport
inks vary depending on the type of



development but the existence of an
axstng establshed community s a
consideration for all sites We aim to
make sure that our sites are in prominent
locations, with a ‘fael good’ factor that
wiil enrich the lives of our homeowners

Conditionality

it 1s our policy to try and secure land
under the most favourable terms -

not only with regard to pnce but also
with respect to presenving optrenality
Sites are normally securad by means
of option agreements or via highly
conditional contracts, with the pnncipal
conditton being obtaming a satisfactory
ptanning consent without onerous
conditions Whers possible we seek

to preserve additional flexibility m our
condional contracts by including a
night to terminate the contract if there is
a nsk that the development will not be
aconomically or commercially viable
Such dghts are normally exercisable

at any bme bafore completon and
notwithstanding that other conditions
may have been salisfied

Land approval

The Group has strict critena which

all sites rust meet, including size

and proximity to local amenibies and
transport inks Land buyers wisit all
potential sites and perform an mihial
high level suttability appraisal using
the set land acquision critena if the
appraisal indicates that the site should
progress, the Regional Land Director
will evaluate all aspects of ihe potental
site and if thes proves positive, will
submit an Investment appraisal to the
regional investment cormmittee chaired
by the Regional Managing Director If
the Regional Investment Committes
approves the site, the appraisal wilt be
subrutted ta the Group Investment
Cormmittae (GIC) for approval At least
one member of the GIC will review
avery site, and where mamn Board
approval 1s required the Chief Executive
Officer will visit the site Main Board
approval 1s regured where a site 1S

to be purchased unconditionally for
£250,000 or more, or any land to be
purchased for £4 Om or more (whether
condittonal or uncondhttonal)

Planning process

The Group's specialist in-house
planning team, the Planming Bureau,
deals with all aspects of the planning
process including the monitoring and
influencing of emerging relevant natonal
and regional planning policies The
Planning Bureau becomas nvolved in a
sue from the inial hegh level suitability
appraisal and then works waith the design
teams throughout the design process
of each site
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Humphrey Court, Stafford

The Planming Bureau staff hotd
extensive public consultations prior
to the submisston of the plannming
application as well as iaising
throughout the process with local
planning authories

As the Group's developments are
primarily located on brownfield sites,
the Group normally apphies directly

for detalled planning consents This
typically enables the Group to complete
the planning process mere guickly
relative to manstreamn housebuilders

_

10, 186 units

All the land needed to deliver to FY19

65

New sttes exchanged n FY16

Detalled planning consents achieved
nFY16

www mecarthyandstonegroup co uk
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Risk Management

How we manage the risks
to our business

Effective management of risk is integral to the successful

implementation of our corporate strategy. Risk is managed

through a five-step risk management process, led from

the Board.

Our risk management process

Identify

Board assessment

The Group's nsk managemant
framework requires the mantenance
and regular update of Group and
regional nsk registers to dentify the
nsks 1o our business model and
strategic plan, with the major risks
reviewed by the Board in the context
of the Group's appetite for nsk

These nsk registers are supported
by frameworks of key operational
and financial controls that enable
nsks to be treated, tolerated or
transferred to third parties

How we manage risk

Determine
risk risk appetite

Risk regesters

Treat,
tolerate or
transfer risk,

Key controls framework  Key risk inchcators

The nsk registers are complemented
by the monrtonng of a sat of key nsk
indicators approved by the executive
leadership team, which provide early
warming of potential Issues and enable
management to react accordingly
Those nsk ndicators astablish the

nsk appetite for each nsk and are
monitored at Group and regional levels

Assurance s provided over the
eftective design and operation of
the nsk framework through a formal
programme of assurance actvity

Monitor
risk

Review
risk

Assurance programmse

This 1s structured around three ines

of defence management assurance,
through operational controls and
reporting, functional support in the form
of formal policies and procedures, and
a programme of assurance activity,
ncluding internal and axternal audrt

Overall oversight 1s provided by the
Board, with indwidual rmembers of the

Beard and the executve leadership team

sponsoring each of the key nsks

Board QOversight and stewardship
Group 2
managemerit
First hine of defence
Regona
management 3 aperational controls
and reporting
Site/development 4
management
Functional 5 Sacond line of defence
support pohcies and procedures
Risk and 6 Third hine of defence
internal audd internal and external audit

assurance programme provids all levels
of management with a ¢lear framework
within which to operate

The maintenance of formal nsk registers
the identfication of key control
frameworks, the monttonng of key nsk
ndicators and the pursuit of a broad



Monitoring key business risks

ey busness nsks are formally entified,
reviewed and updated by the executive
leadership tearn every six months
using a nsk sconng methodology

Each nsk is categorised based on
likelhood and potential impact Once
agreed with the executive leadership
team, the neks ars plotted on ansk
heat map and submitted to the Risk
and Audit Committeg for approval

and subsequently to the Board

The nsk appetits 1s established by a
twice yearly review of the risk heat map
by the executive leadership team Thig
review confirms whether the relatwe
postion ot nsks 15 acceptable and if
not what actions need to be taken to
reduce the ikelihood orimpact A rating
1s given to each nsk that defines whether
the nisk i1s within the nsk appente

and requires no further attention,

the nsk 1s crystallising and therefore
action should be taken before the nsk
appetite 1s breached or whether the

nsk i1s already beyond the nsk appehte
requiring immediate action The status
of each key nsk ndicator is revewed
for all risks beyond the nsk appetie and
reported to the Executive Board and
Mamn Board As part of this review the
executive leadership team will review
the actions required and ensure that
progress Is being made and whether
the propased actions are still sufficient

The Directors have camed out a robust
assessment of the pnncipal nsks facing
the Comparty, including those that would
threaten its business model, future
performance, solvengy or iquichty

Internal control environment

The core elements of the Group-wide
internal control environment are
organisational structure, culture and
values, corporate strategy and a key
controls framawork

The Group's organisational structure 1s
established around clear divisions of
responsibiihes between the Board and
the executive leadership team The
Board 15 responsible for the operational
control af the Graup, including all
strategic, financial, organisational, legal
and regulatory matters

Annual Report and Accounts 2016

The executive leadership tgam

15 responsible for the day-to-day
management of the operational
actviuies of the Group Each member
of the exacutive isadership team has
a 'leadershwp team’ of direct reports,
who are callectvely responsible

for the overall system of internal
control across the business

The Group has developed a valugs
frarnework which consisis of five
cornerstone prnciples passton,
respansiblity, innovaton, detarminatian
and excellence (PRIDE} These are used
as a guide to conduct business from
key decisions to day-to-day activmes

These values are widely communicated
across the business to ensure
ahgnment with strategic aims and

to actively encourage a culiure that
promotes teamwork, mvolvement

and empowerment at all Isvels of the
Group These values play a key role

N recruitment across the busmess

The corporate strateqy was developad
in preparation for the IPO and principally
focuses on doubling the size of the
busmness over the medium-tarm The
strategy has been well documentad

and communicated both nternally and
externally To support this strategy

the Group has dentfied five strateqic
priorties, as discussed on page 30

The key controls framawork defines

fhe Group's most mpartant internal
controls on which it places key reance
in the management of its core business
and reporting an s performance and
progress towards strategic abjectves
The Group operates consistent financial
management, reporting controls and
processes across its nme regions
These are monitored by the Group
Financial Controller and her team in
order to ensure thar sffactiveness

The key controls framework is
reviewed and tested annuatly, and s
also subject to Intermal audit review
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Viabthity statement

In addition to making a going
concern statement, the Diractors
are also required {0 make a longer-
terrm wiabiity statement to comply
with provision C 2 2 ¢f the UK
Corporate Governance Code 2014

In response to that, the Directors
have assessed the prospects and
financral viabiity of the Group,
taking into account both its current
postion and crcumstances, and
the potential impact of its pnncipal
nsks The Directors cansidered that
a three-year period was appropriate
for this assessment The caprtal
cy¢le from land completion to

final sel-out of a development, for
FY15 buid starts, 18 approxmately
three years The land pipehne also
provides us with sufficiant tand
under conlrol to meet sales targsts
for the next three years Accordingly,
i 15 consldered appropriate that

the viabilty review penod is broadly
aligned with the expected longewty
of the owned tand supply

The Group 15 subject to a number
of pnneoipal nsks (as set out In
more detall on pages 40 and

41}, and the Directors’ viabilty
statement review considered the
impact that these nsks might have
on the Group's ability to meet

its targets This was undertaken
through the performance of a single
downside case sensrivity, which
reflects a severe but plausible
mpact assuming that appropnate
steps are taken to miigate the
wnpact of the downside

The Directors have a reasonable
expectation that the Company
will be able to continue in
operaton and meet s habiities
as they fall due over the three-
year assessment period

www mccarthyandstonegroup co uk
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The pnncipal nsks and uncertaintiss facing the Group mciude, but are not limited to

Rusk area

Risk description

Mitigating actions

Risk change

EFconomic
conditions

Reputation
and customer
satisfaction

lliguidity of
land and
apartments

Owned land
may decline
in value

Housebuilding 1s cychcat and
reliant on the broader econorny
A deterioration in the sconomic
outloock could have a signfficant
impact on the Group's financial
performance The resuit of the
EU Referendum has increased
the uncertainty i the economy
and specifically ihe secondary
housebuilding market in the
shorl term

The Group constructs and sells a
quality product to an againg and
sometimes frail customer base and
provides ongoing managemeant
and personal care services

Any 1ssues with the products or
services the Group provide could
impact on customer satisfaction

to the detnment of the Group's
business model

Land and apartments can be
relatively iliquid assets affecting the
Group's abiity to value or hquidate
part of its land bank in a tmely
fashion and at satisfactory pnces in
response to changes in economic,
property market or other conditions

The net realisable value of land
owned by the Group may decline
due to changes in the property
rarket or other condions, or the
Group baing unable to secure
detalled planning consent on tand
purchased uncondtionally

The Group closely monttors
industry indicators and assesses
the potential impact of differant
economic scenanos Decisions
to allocate new capital to land
and buiid are managed centrally
through the Group Investment
Committee The Group asms to
maintain a natonal and product
spread of developments to
ensure that 1 1s not reliant on one
particular localty or product type

The Group enforces strnct
procedurss over the hand over

of developmerts for ocoupation
and the hand cver of specific
apartments 1o indnadual
customers Ongoing management
and personal care services

ara provicded within a robust
framework of controls which is
closely monitored The business
has dedicated customer services
capability and tracks customer
sahsfaction through NHBC surveys
and other routes

Whenever possible, the Group tnes
to preserve the maximum amount
of optionality in land payments

The Group also closely moniors
its forgcasted cash posiion to
ensure 1t 1S funded m the most cost
effective manner

Whenever possible, contracts

to purchase land are conditronal
on the Group obtaiming detated
planning consent The Group
performs impairment reviews in ine
with IFRS reguirements

@

©,
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@ Risk Incraased @ Rrsk decreased @ Risk unchanged
Risk area Risk description Mitigating actions Risk change
BUII d The Group's financial performance Build progress and costs arg

15 dependent on its abibty 1o deliver reviswed regutarly by dedicated

build programrmes on time and on
DI’OQI’am meS bpudget Buiid programme or cost
: over-runs could result in slower sales
aﬂd bU”d or reduced marging

COSts

The Group's employees are central
EMPIOYEES e senevement o e rovp's
objectives Falure to recrut and

retain sutficient staff resource of
the nght quality coutd constran

growth plans

Construction siles are inherently
Health aﬂd nsky, which could expose

employees/contractors to the nsk of
Safety seneus inury/fataty Home owners

in the developments the Group
manages are ageing and someatimes
fradl, with the nsk that they can be
more susceptible to inury

L n d Poor guality land and/or location
a could result in programmae/cost

te over-runs and difficulty in seling
aCQU!Slthﬂ Failure Yo obtamn timely planning

! permussions will aciversely affact
aﬂd Diaﬂﬂiﬂg workflow resuling in failure to
meet targeted growth rates,
future sales and/or cash flow

regional commercial teams, as well
as being reported to regiona) and
Group management Independent
assurance 1s proviced through a
dedicated commercial Internal audit
resource involving deep dives into
developments under construction
Framework agreements have been
established with key subcorntractors
and suppliers o provide greater
certainty of pnce and supply There
1S a contnuing dnve to realise
procurament efficiencies

The Group has put in place
attractive reward mechanisms
and provides extensiva
opportunyies for personal
development and training, bath
of wrich are regutarly reviewed
aganst peer housebuilders and
other employers n kocal markets
Resource requiremerts are
assessed against annual budgets
and recrutment processes are
designed to ensure the availability
of the nght resource to delver
aganst the Group's plans

The Group strives for exceilence
in health and safety and considers
it 1o be the top pronty The Health
& Safety Operations Director
reports directly to the executive
leadership team, :dentrfying

areas of concern, near nusses
and accidents, and supports

this with a ngorcus, ndependent
site inspecton process which
roulinely assesses and reports on
standards Building Safety Group
audits help the Group move closer
10 its goal of achieving a culturg of
excellence in health and safety

Regional land buying teams are
In place across all regions

providing local knowledge and
expertise These teams are
targeted on land exchange as
part of therr bonus structure

Regional planning teams have the
support and oversight of the Group
Investmant Committee and are
overseen by the Board

www mecarthyandstonegroup co uk
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Financial Review

Graphic removed

Nick Maddock
Group Chief Financial Officer

Chart removed

Our performance

McCarthy & Stone has made good
progress towards achieving its medium-
term sirategic objective thus year with
significant focus placed on achieving
growth, mproving capital turn and
maintaining a favourable capital
structura and robust balance shest
The Group delivered an wncrease In
legal completions, as well as improved
pricing, revenue and profit before tax

Revenue

Revenue increased by 31% this year

to £635 Sm {FY15 £485 7m) dnven by
both volume growth and an increasa

in net average selling prices Legal
completons mcreased by 20% to 2,299
units (FY15 1,923) benefiting from an
increased number of new developments
released for sale and accelerated

sales rates, especially off-plan sales

The Group's net average selling

pnce increased by 8% to £259k
{FY15 £239K) which pnmanly reflects
further mprovernents n the qualty
and location of the developments
McCarthy & Stone 1s now bnngng to
market, together with a small element
of house price inflation Management
alsg exerted continued control over
the tevel of discounts and incentives
given to custormners which, desprte
the impact of the EU Referendum and
subsequent use of higher incentves
1o close completion chains, ended at
6% for the year, in Line with FY15

Profit

The Group achieved strong growth in
underlying profit before tax for the year,
which was up 19% to £105 Om (FY15
£88 4m), and in statutory profit before
1ax, which was up 15% to £92 9m (FY15
£80 9m} This was achieved at a gross
profit margin of 21 4% (FY15 25 3%)
and an underlying operaling margin of
16 9% {FY15 196%) The reduction n
thess margin percentages was dnven
by the profitability mix of unils sold, the
ncrease i meentive usage i July and
August together with some additional
abortive land costs and our Investment
m new regions and addtonal operational
infrastructure to support our growth

+ Ungerlying operanng profil has been
reconclad within note € to the consalidated
fnanciat statements

Qur regions saw a return to modest
house price inflation duning the first nine
months of the year but the effect of this
Increase has been offset at a gross profit
tevel by budd cost inflation, particularty
drvan by an increase n labour costs
Further buld cost inflation 18 expacted
during FY17 and the work currently being
undertaken as part of our build cost
intiatve seeks to mitigate the impact of
this where possible by working towards
secunng 70% build cost cerlainty

prior to build start and managing

75% of bulld spend via centrally
negotiated framework agreements

The leve! of overneads in the business
continued to be tightly controdled,

with total administrative expenses,
excluding exceptional items and
amartisatian of brand, remamning
broadly at the sarme level as last year
of £32 6m (FY15 £32 4mj despite

a 31% increase in revenue

Capital structure and interest

The Group closed the year with a further
ncrease n its tangible gross asset

value to £574 1m (FY15 £513 5m) and

a tangible net asset value of £626 8m
(FY15 £4691m) The Novarmber IPO
raised £78 5m of net proceeds and the
Group continues 1o mantain a robust
financial positon with & net cash balance
of £52 8m at 31 August 2018 (FY15 net
debt of £44 4m) and negative gearing of
8% (FY15 positive geanng of 8%} This
reflects a strong financial year, the net
proceeds from the IPQ, actions taken by
management In response to economic
uncertainty and disciphned cash
managemant We continued to mantan
a strong balance sheet and appropnate
headroom aganst our £200m revolving
credit faciity (RCF) throughout the year

Tha Group amended its financing
amrangements relating to its RCF
duning the year This has resulted m
mproved commercial terms, ncluding
the extension of the facility’s matunty
from 19 December 2019 to 23 May
2021 and wnproved margin terms,
which are expected to save ¢ £1 0m
per annuim in interest expense



This refinancing demonstrates the
strong and engoing commitment of
McCarthy & Stone's relationship banks
In supporting our £2 Sbn invesiment
programme and our medium-term
strategic objective of bulding and selling
more than 3,000 units per annum

The Group incurred net finance
expenses of £2 2m dunng the year
(FY15 £6 9m), benefiting frarm lower
interest costs under the Group's
amended RCF and the annual
revaluation of its shared equity debtors

Exceptional costs

Total exceptional costs recognised
within the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income dunng the year
were £10 Om, of which £8 5m related to
PO adviser fees and associated costs
and £1 5m related to Management
lncentve Plan charges, restructunng,
redundancy and refinancing costs

Taxation

We adopt a clear and transparent
approach to taxalion ang do not
pursue aggresswve techniques

to reduce our lax habidity

The total tax charge for the year 1s

£18 4m which represenis an effective
tax rate of 20 9% (FY15 20 5%} based
on a profit before tax of £92 9m The
mam tax reconciling fiem that increased
the effective tax rate to 20 9% from the
statutory rate of 20 0% 1s the ¢ £6 9m
non-deductible portion of adviser

costs mcurred in connechon with the
isting These costs largely related to
the secondary proceeds and were
incurred by the Company far the benefit
of the esuting sharehotders, pnor to the
listing We expect our effective tax rate
to revert to close to the stalutory rate
from the current financial year onwards

Eamings and dividend

Adjusted underiying basic earnings
per share increased by 9% to 16 1p
[FY15 14 8p) Basic earnings per
share for FY16 were 13 9p (FY15

3 4p) Details of the calculation of
earnngs per share can be found in
note 12 to the financial statements

£25%9x

Net average selling pnce
{FY15 £233k)
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We are delighted to be proposing

our first final dividend of 3 5 pence

per share resutting in a total ordinary
dividend for the year of 4 5 pence This
reflects our ordinary dmidend policy

as stated ai the IPO which commits to
paymng a dradend equmvalent to ¢ 30%

of underlying profit after tax and before
certan exceptional tems The proposed
ddend 1s covered three times by
earnings Subject to shareholder
approval at the AGM, the dvidend will be
paid on 1 February 2017 to shareholders
on the register at § January 2017

The total cost of the final dividend 1s
£18 8m, resulting n a total dividend
cost relating to the year of £24 2m

Risk management

The Group maintains a robust nsk
managemant framework, prowviding

a clear link between strategy and the
strategic, operational and financial nsks
faced by the business The approach to
nsk 1s set by the Board, which mamntans
a close nvolvement in identifying and
mitigating nsk and montors certain key
nsk indicators al Board meetings on a
regular basis The control environment
has been further enhanced dunng the
year through the establishment of a

nsk manual and a further review and
update of our existing finance manual

As parl of managing the financial nsk
in the business, the potential impact of
a downturn in the housing market or
the broader UK economi¢ anvironment
is reguiarty evaiuated and we have

a number of key nsk indicators that
are ussed at Board level n order to
assess this Qur nattonal reach and
divargified portfolio of land ensures
that we are not overly dependent on
particular local markets or indivictual
developments in addition, our distinct
business model helps to nsulate our
bustness from a downturn, with land
acquisition normally contracted subject
to planning and also gften subject to
commercial viabiity or by way of option,
enabling us to review land acquisition
decisions n light of planrung outcomes
and latest market conditions pnor

to commithing ssgnificant capital

£105.0m

Underlying profit before tax
FY15 €88 amy)
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Target returns

We have demonstrated sustamned capital
discipline this year, maintaning a 20%
ROCE [FY15 20%) This has been
acheved despite the constrants of build
cost inflation, additional invesiment

in our operational nfrastructure
necessary o support growth, sustained
investmant in our growing fand bank
and addrional incentives used in July
and August to close out completion
chaing However, wa nave seen a
marked improvement in capital turn

to 12x (FY15 1 0x) illustrating that our
key strategic initiatives to improve sales
rates, reduce development time and
implermnent build efficiencies are an track
and continuing to produce results

The Group continues to target future
Increases in operating margin and ROCE
and remans committed to #s medium-
term strategic objective of buiiding

and seiling more than 3,000 units per
annum and achieving a ROCE of 25%

Nick Maddock

Group Chief Financial Otficer
14 November 2016

£52.8m

Net cash
(FY15 net debt €44 4m)

www mccarthyandstonegroup co uk
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Corporate Social Responsibility
-
A responsible
housebuilder
% We are commiitted to delivering
social and environmental benefits

Graphicremoved



Our approach -

enriching lives

As the UK's leading retrement

housebuilder, our dnving amiition

across our business 1 to enrich

the lives of our homeowners and

emplayaes We airn to delwear this by

« Engaging positively with the local
communities m which our
developments are built

+ Bulding safe and vibrant
developments to help older people
lead healthy independent ives

« Providing high-quality management
services for our homeowners

= Minimising the environmental impact
of our activihes

« Building a culture of excellence in
health and safety across all our
business actvitas

» Creating a great place to work
which s boih safe and inspinng
for our employees

Qur Corporate Social Responsibility
(CSR) Committee was formed in
2015 The Committes, which mests
quarterly, 1s charred by our Land and
Planning Director and reports directly
to the exacutive leadership team

Our priorities for FY16
and FY17

The main priorties of the Committee

in FY16 have been to establish

* A CSR policy covering all aspects of
the Group's business

= A framework for CSR reporting within
the Group following the IPO in
November 2015

Dunng FY17, the Commuttes will focus on

s Agreeing appropnate KP's and
targets and measuring our
performance aganst these

¢ Establishing a framework for
greenhouse gas emission repoiting

A full year's reporting across all the KPIs
has not been possible during FY16 as
data was not coliected throughout the
financial year due to the fact that this
was not a requirement prior to the listing
of the Group in Novernber 2015 There
are also, therefore, no comparatives for
previous years in this year's report

Top left Homaowners at The Sycamores,
Kinross

Bottom left Local children from Evendans
Pnmary School with the site team
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Greenhouse gas
emission reporting

As permutted under the Gompanes
Act 2006 {Strategic Directors’ Report)
Regulations 2013, the Group has
decided not to report its Scope 1 and
Scope 2 greenhouse gas emissions
but to explan why we have not
complied The Company only became
a public fmed company wath fisting
on the London Stock Exchange in
November 2015 Therefore, we were
only subject to these rules for part of
the financial year under review and are
not able to prowide data for the whole
year, due to tha requisite systems not
being in piace to capture the refevant
data The Company wilf report on its
Scope 1 and Scope 2 greenhouse gas
ermissions In our next Annual Report

Planning and design

We understand that our homeownaears
want to be active within therr community
and near to local amenrhes and

public transport finks On average our
hamegwnears mave no mere than five
miles from ther current homes into a
McCarthy & Stone apartment, so our
developments are clearly helping to meet
a cnticat and growing tocal housing need

We hava stnict cnitena whien purchasing
fand to ensure the location will suit the
needs and aspirations of customers
Qur developments are typically built

on centrafly-located, urban, brownfiefd
sites which were previously developed
or had an existing established use

We optimuse the development density
of our sitas with an average site
density in FY16 of 31 dwelings per acre
{76 per hectare) This, combined with
a relatively low level! of car ownership
and usage amongst our homeowners,
means thal we dehver a highly
sustainable form of development

Community consultation

We consuit local communitigs,
businesses and other relevant
stakehalders on every new planning
application we bring forward (both pre-
and post-subrrission), ncluding holding
one-to-one meetngs, discussions

with affected parties and public
exhibibons This gives nexghbours and

130*

Planning consultations and
exhibihons dunng FY16
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other affected parties a platform to
voice ther opinions, many of which
influence our designs and approach to
construchon During FY16, over 130
consultations and exhithhons were
held with 80% of attendees adwising
that they found them informative

A number of our developments have
recently won awards for design
ncluding Queen Elizabeth Court, Kirkby
Lonsdale and Scarlet Oak, Softwil

Benefits of McCarthy & Stone

developments

» Support of our management team

+ Central iocations

* High-quality well-designed
apartments

* Contnbution to the local economy

« Reducing stran on local
infrastructure

* Redevelopment of brownfisld land

+ Freeing up under-occupred homes

» More interaction with other people
and reduced loneliness

= Enhanced safety and secunty

» Wide range of social actwities

Construction

We are awars of the impact that the
construction phase of our achvites
can have on the local community
All of our sites must comply with
intermal policies around levels of noise,
cleanliness and presentation Some
of our sites are accredited under the
Considerate Constructars Scheme
{CC3), inclucing our site at Midhurst
in our South East region, which

won a CCS silver award in 2016

Mmimising our tmpact

on the environment

There are clear environmentat and
husiness benefits to designing energy
efficient homes, using responsibly
sourced and efficient matenals, and with
the minimum of waste sent to landfill

Having a clear understanding of whera
our money 15 being spent and how much
waste we create during tha construction
and operation of our developments
allows us to make better informed
business decisions while ensuring we
minmise our environmental impact

www mecarthyandstonegroup co uk
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Corporate Social Responsibility continued

Wa are committed to reducing levels of
waste generated by our construction
sites year-on-year as this will bnng both
financial and environmantal banefits

Dunng FY16, we replaced our waste
management suppher with two new
supphers, Kenny and Waste Cycle, and
ther environmental credentials were a
key factor n our selection process We
are proud to report that of the 21,316
tonnes of waste generated on our
construction srtes in FY186, only 5 6%
(being 1,185 tannas) went to landfill,

the rest being recycled We contnue

to wark with our waste management
companies to further improve this figure,
as well as with our suppliers to reduce
waste further up the supply chan

Effictent homes

We design our developments to maxirmse

the performance of the fabne and

matenals of the bulding This approach

15 used for a nurnber of reasons

» |t priontises the largest item of
energy consumption in homes,
baing maintaining a comfortable
internal temperaturg

+ The energy efficiency 1s integrated
into the bulding and does not require
occupants to operate complex
systems or change thewr behaviours

* Energy efficiencies will last as long
as the building lasts and costly
maintenance of heating systems,
for example, 1s avoided

We employ a range of methods across

our ‘fabnc first’ approach ncluding

s Maximising ar ightness

* |nstalling mnsulation in walls and
loft spaces

¢ Optimising solar gain through
openings and shades

* Optimising ventilation and using the
thermal mass of building fabncs

* Addition of photo vottaic cells to
bulldings where practical

Engaging with the commumity
We do not just consult with local
communities at the planming stage
- we also engage with them dunng
the construction phase Activities
include wisiting local schools or

94.4"

Of waste was diverted from
landfill n FY16

organising visits to our sites to
encourage children to understand
the dangers of construction sites

Living in a McCarthy &
Stone development

Qur Retirement Living and Assisted
Living developments have a House
Manager or Estate Manager on-site
dunng workang hours or up to 24 hours
a day, respectively Since 2010 those
services have been provided in &l

new developments by our in-house
management services companies
Therr role is not only to help deal with
any 1ssues that our homeowners may
have but also to help create a frendly
and communal erwironment where the
homeowners can, if they wish, sask
companienship and make new fnends

We are very proud of the work of our
management services business In
promoting social mteraction among
our homaowners In FY16, there were
between 1,700 and 1,900 avents

held across our developments each
month Social events are orgamised in
our homeowners' lounges and range
from coffea mornings, film and quiz
nights, music evenings, exercise and
craft classes and local interest talks
and events Participation and feedback
from homeowners 1 vary encouraging

B ]
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To support this, the Group has set

up a ‘community fund’ which can be
spent at the House/Estate Manager's
discretion with the aim of engendering
a sense of community within the first
year of each new developmant

We are very pleased that two of our
deveiopments. Rockhaven Court

in Horwich and Queen Elizabeth
Gourt in Kirkby Lonsdale won
awards at the National Housing for
Older People Awards 2015 These
awards celebrate the best specialist
housing for older people and are
voted for by residents and staff

In Apnil 2016, we published a report
in partnership with the cross-party
think tank Demos entitied 'Buitding
Companionstup how better design
can combat loneliness n later life’
which highlighted the social benefits
of our developments, particularly in
addrsssing the 1ssue of loneliness
among older people The report
showed that our homeowners feel
much higher levels of companionship
and have more social interaction since
moving intc one of our develapments

Building Compamonship how better design can combat loneliness in later life
Results of the survey companng our homeowners with the over 55s in general housing

All ages of McCarthy & Stone

Age of people surveyed population 55-64 65-74 5+ homeowners
There s a sense of communily

among the people who fve

in my housing development/

neighbourhood or strest 49% 42% 58% 51% 85%
There are sufficient social events

for my age group 38% 36% 53% 56% 73%

85%

Of our homeowners fael there
is a sense of commurity
in ther developments

1,700*

In FY16 between 1,700 and 1,900
social events wers held across our
developments every month



Our commitment o gur customers
has been recognised by us gaining the
prestigous HBF Five Star customer
satisfaction award for a record 11
consecutive years — making us

the only major housebuilder of any
size Or type 1o achieve this award
avary year since its incephon

Helping our homeowners to reduce
thesr carbon footprint

Dunng 2016, we began a rol-out of
smart electricly meters across our
developments These allow us 1o
monitor usage on a real tme bass,
both n terms of kWh and cost,

of electncity used within shared

areas on a half-hourly basis As at

31 August 2016, 57 developrments
had these new smart meters nstaited,
representing approximately 22% of the
Group's manzged developments

The data from the new meters has been
received enthusiastically by horneowners
with energy savings already starting to be
seen Some of the benefits include
laundry faciliies being used outside of
peak hours when electncity 1s cheaper:
windows and doors being kept shut
when heating 5 on, and heating beng
turned down when not required

Smart gas meters are also being rofled
out across the Group's Assisted Living
developments which use gas

With the planned dereguiation of the
English water market in Apnl 2017, we are
planning to Install smart water meters {0
measurg water usage across our
developments with the aim, again, being
to reduce the volume of water used

Charitable donations and
community contributions
We always try to contribute to
communitigs both around our
developrments and our offices Thisis
done regionally and can take the forrm of
chantabile donations or ime donated by
our employees, particularty focusing on
local chanties and local community
groups In addition, our Corporate
Centre has a monthly chanty collection,

48*

Of our workforce was fernals
at 31 August 2016

Annual Report and Accounts 2018

with the chosen chartty, typcally a small
local orgarisation, being nominated by a
member of staff

Case study

Fernheath Play Association
Since June 2015, McCarthy & Stone
has pledged £24k to Fernheath
Play Association, a Boumemouth-
based charty Femheath Play
Association offers play facilities to
local disabled and disadvantaged
children and our two-year
commitment has contnbuted
towards much-needed staffing of
the centre after it was forced lo
suspend its play work for the first
time in 38 years, and has allowed it
o reopen during schoot t8rm times

The Association Is the only fully
incluswve play and shart breaks
centre in Boumemouth, meaning

all children who attend have the
ability to nteract and engage in
imaginative play The Asseciation
has a wide range of outdoor
eguipment, as well as indoor spaces
for activities, tadte top games,

and play and sensory rooms

We are delighted to support
Fernheath Play Association
in its important role in helping
the local community

[ ]
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From left to right

Joa Eiston, Fernheath Play Managsr,
Gary Day, our Land and Planring
Diractor; Paddy Withamson,
Femheath Flay Chairperson,

and Conor Bums, MP and Fernheath
Play Patron

19%

Of our senior management at year
end were female

|
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Creating a cuiture of
excellence and a great
place to work

Qur people are vital to the continued
growth and success of gur business
The Group recognises that attracting
and retaining employees is only
possible iIf we provide the nght working
gNVIrCnIMent, appropnate reward andg
recognition schemes and opportunties
for personal development and training

At 31 August 2016, the Group employed
1,344 peopls (FY15 1,158) This figure
excludes the Estates Management
teams, subcontractors and agency
workers Some 48% of employees in
the main business are employed on
sites or al developments or as House
Managers with the balance based

in our regional and central offices

Maw  Female

Directors of
the Company
(including NEDs) 6 1

Employees in semor
management positions
n¢luding Drectors of
subsidiary compantes a8 24

Total employees of the

Group (excluding NEDs) 699 645

Al the end of the financial year 48%
of all employees were female and
45% were over the age of 50

Diversity and inclusivity

The Group 1s committed to
promoting policies to ensure that
those who are smployed by the
Group's businesses are treated
equally, regardiess of status,
gender, sex, age, colour, race

or ethnic engin

We give full considderation to
applcahans for employment from
persons with disabilities where the
requirements of the job can be
adequately fulfilled by a person with
a disability Should any employee
become disabled, it 1s the Group's
pobcy, whersver possible, to
conbnue the employment of that
person [t is the Group's policy to
provide equal opporturities for the
training and career development of
employees with disabilities

www mccarthyandstonegroup co uk
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Corporate Social Responsibility continued

Employee communications

We communicate with our employees through a vanety of channels including regutar
updates and the Group's quarterly staff newsletter Group-wide business updates led
by our Chief Executive Officer on the business sirategy provide employees with an
opporiuntty {0 provide feedback to management

Employee survey

Cur latest all-employes survey was camed out in Qctober 2015 The response rate
was 90%, up from B87% tn 2014 The results showed soms extremsly encouraging
year-on-year Improvements compared with the 2014 results, which were already
well ahead of external benchmarks Significant improvements were made aganst
our five key employee engagement metncs

Extarnal

2015 2014 benchmark

% % %

I am proud to work for McCarthy & Stone 89 79 76
1 would be happy to recommend McCarthy & Stone

as a place to work 81 68 74

| feel a sense of belonging at McCarthy & Stone 76 61 54

| fee! valued for the work | do 74 62 44

I am clear about how my role contnbutes to
McCarthy & Stone's success 9 82 62

Recogrition of achievements

Qur values, which wera chosen by our employees, are the standards to which we
hold ourselves accountable and reflect the way we work, the way we communicate
and the way we act

Qur values are’
Passion
Responsibility
Innovahon
Deterrunation
Excellence

We celebrate and recognise employees who go the extra mile for a customer or
colleague through our quarterly and annual PRIDE awards Our progress s ilustrated
by our most recent employee survey, which identified that 88% of our employees are
proud to work for McCarthy & Stone

Any staff mamber can nominate a colleague for an nstant PRIDE award which 1s
judged by our regionat PRIDE champions Each quarter, instant PRIDE winners are
then put forward for quarterly awards with overall winners being judged on an annual
basis During FY16, 572 PRIDE awards were presented

Qur overall PRIDE champyon for tha year was our Senior Benefits Adviser, Colin
Cuthbert Colin heads up the team who offer free and confidential advice o prospective
custorers on any benefits they may be antifed to This service reviews ther Indmdual
crrcumstances and determines whether they ase entitled to any Government funding,
ranging from Pension Credits, to housing support and attendance allowance, nght
down to free television licences for the over 755 The service has helped almost 500
customars access £2m of unclamed benefits in the last year

N B

1 90%*

Over 90% of our hormeowners said
that they would recommend ustoa
fnend, a great endorsement of our
customer-cantnc approach

Graphi¢ removed
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Colin Cuthbert, Seniar Benebts Adviser

Employee invoivement

Employees are encouraged to participate
in the success of the Group and dunng
the year two share schernes ware
introduced a share save plan (SAYE)
and a share incentive plan (SIF) Both
schemes ars open to all employees

The SAYE savings contracts are for
either three or five years Nether scheme
1S subject to performance conditions

NHBC Pride in the Job Awards
We are extremely pleased that our
standards are recogrised externally
in 20186, ten of the Group's Site
Managers werg awarded NHBC Pnde
n the Job Awards These awards
are the industry’s most prestigious
awards programme and recognise
Site Managers who achieve the
highest standards of housebullding
and who demonstrate the highest
qualfes of workmanship, leadership,
techmcal expertise and heatth and
safety awareness QOur Pnde in

the Job Award wmners will now
progress 1o the next stage of the
awards pracess in the autumn

Apprentices and trainees

We offer asptnng site managers the
opportunity to leam hands-on skalls on
our construction sites whilst studying
towards a NVQ qualification such

as Level 4 Diploma in Construction
and Bulding Services Managerment,
and Supervisions and Technical
Certificate Level 4 NHC 1n Constructon
and the Built Envronment We

also participate in a Shared Trade
Apprentice Scheme, Partnenng with
South West based subceontractors,
and Bournemouth and Poole College
We hope that, once qualfied, the
apprentices will centinue working for
the Group, thus helping to alleviate
national shortages in skilled labour the
industry 1s currently expenencing

We also offer trainee contracts in other
departments such as Sales, Finance and
Legal Services

Cpportunities for development

We have an ongomg commrtrment to
traiming, and personal and professional
development Performance against
objectives 1s formally reviewed on

an annual basis As well as setiing

10

NHBC Pride in the Job
Awards in FY16



objectives, the process inciudes the
identification and mplementation of a
tallored personal development pilan
Improvement programmes focusing on
quality, efficiency and customer service
provide an opportunity for all employees
to be involved in the development of
the Group's business and products

Student placement scheme

The Group 15 also developing the next
generation of housebuitders through

a student placement scheme run in
conjunction with Northumbna University
As part of the scheme, which has been
running Since 1991, students studymng
for the BSc Hons in Construction Project
Managerment have the opportunity

to spend a year working at McCarthy

& Stone This works well for both the
studenis, who gain on-site expenience,
and for the McCarthy & Stone Group,
with many students competing for
placements and choosing to becoma
employees after they graduate

Four new students started ther placement
yoars at the Group n August 2016 In
total, over 130 people have completied
the scherne with us since it was launched
with several scheme participants
continuing to work for us after complsting
therr degrees Some have ngen to senior
roles in the organisation

Building a culture of
excellence in health

and safety

Health and safety is a top prionty
for the Group The Health and
Safety Operations Dirgctor reports
directly to the executive leadership
team In additon to the central
team who determine our health and
safety strategy, we have a Group
Construction Health and Safety
Manager and regional advisers

Construction sites

On site, we emphasise both a proactve
approach to health and safety as well as
underiining the indiwdual responsiility
every site worker has for ther and

ther colleagues' health and safety All
staff (both employees and contractors)
are required to have adequate health
and safety quakficatons before

starting work an one of our sites and

98.7%

Average score achieved In
FY16 agamst the BSG's
‘generally complies’ cntena
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all contraciors are required tohold a
vald Construction Skills Certification
Scheme Card This swidences that
the contractor has the relevant skils
required for thew rate, including
understanding the health and safety
implications of the work they perform

We require all our Site Managers and
Assistant Sie Managers o have the
Construction Industry Training Beard's
(CITB) Site Management Safety Trairung
Scheme qualfications and to be
qualtied first aiders There must be a
quahfied first arder on site at all bmes

Durng FY186, we reportad nine incidents
under the Reporting of Incidents
Diseases and Dangerous Occurrencas
Regulations {(RIDDOR} to the Health and
Safety Executive

We employ the BSG to undertake
independent audits of our construction
sites throughout the year and they wvisit
each site every three weeks dunng the
buid process Dunng FY16, our average
score was 98 7%, which was achieved
by scoring 1,326 ponts in 1,032 visits
These audits help the Group move
closer to its goal of achieving a cufture
of excellence in health and safety

Since 2015, the Group has entered its
sites for the NHBC Health and Safety
Awards These have been runring for
sevan years, and recognise and reward
the very best i health and safety, with
the airn of dnving up standards, and
showcasing and sharnng best practice

Durning FY18, we receved five NHBC
Health and Safety cornmendatons
with ong srte going on ta recaive a
highly commended award [n FY15,
we received two commendations and
one highly commended award We
have also been nominated for four
awards from BSG for FY18 In FY15,
we wera BSG's UK member of the
vear and also receved two regional
awards and two site rmanager awards

Managed dovelopiments

Al 31 August 2016, we were managing
264 developments occupied by over
12,000 homeowners At our Regirement
Lwing developments, a House Manager
1s on-site dunng working hours and

5

NHBGC Health and Safety
commaendations in FY16 with
one site gang on te recenve a
fighly commended award
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at Assisted Lwving developments a
member of the Estate Management
team s typically on site 24 hours a day

All our House Managers and Estate
Managers have basic first ard training
and are qualified to make initial
assessments on minos tnps and falls
Any ncident involving a homeowner
on one of our developmants wili have
a full mquiry performed by our health
and safaty team with & view 10 ensunng
the moident 1s not repeated There
were fiva RIDDOR Incidents at our
developments dunng FY18, only two
of which coutd be atinbuted to us

Offices

All offices have a qualiied frst

aider whose training is refrashed
annyally All staff are also required to
complete a desk-based questionnaire
concerning ther desk space

and seatng arrangements

tn 2014, we brought our health and
safety training in-house, allowmng us

to tailor the courses to our needs

We have introduced traming for staff

to enable them to become increasingly
sel-supporting in their management

of health and safety Dunng FY18, the
Group delivered 355 in-house training
courses for employees and 178 in-house
training courses for contractors 563
people attended safety workshops and
12 BSG safety surgenes were held

Human rights

We support the Urnited Natong’
Universal Declaration of Human Rights
and have policies and processes in place
10 ensure thai we act m accordance with
our ponciples i relation to areas such as
anti-corruption, divarsity, whistieblowing
and the requirements of the Modern
Slavery Act 2015 All suppliers are
required o confirm compliance with

our Modern Slavery policy which

was adopted dunng the year

Our strategic report, on pages
01-49 has bean reviewed and
approved by the Board

On behalf of the Board

Clive Fenton
14 November 2016

www mccarthyandatonegroup co uk
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Board of Directors
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John White
Non-Executive Chainmman

|

Expenence

John White was appaonted as the Independent
Non-Exacutve Charman of the Group in
Septarmber 2013 and 15 Chalrman of the
Nominations Committes. He was Group
Chatrman of Persimmon pic, a position he hetd
betwean April 2006 and Apnl 2011, havang
previously been Group Chef Executve Oificer
since 1993 He has spent all heg working iife

in ihe housing ndustry and has unnvalied
axpenence of working within the sector

John i alsa Oeputy Charmarn of
Northampton Samnts pic and a director of
Northampton Rugby Foatball Club Umded

Committoes
Chaimnan of Nominations Committee and
membear of Remunegration Committea

B N
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Geeta Nanda, OBE
Independent Non-Executive Director

Experience

Geeta Nanda joined the Board n Apnt 2075 as a
Non Executve Drector She has more than 28
years' expenance in the housing sector and
currantly serves as Chyef Executive Officer of
Thames Vallay Housing Assocation (TVHA}
Geata joned TVHA 11 2008 and n 2013 was
awarded an OBE for her achievements o social
housing Geeta 1§ a Braclor of Fizzy Enterprises
{2 joint vertu with Siver Armow, a subsidiary of
the Abu Dhabi Investrrent Authonty} which she
launched n 2012, as a branded market rent
proposiion She has 23 years' expenence In
non executive rofes and has served on the
Boards of two housing organisations and nationat
and local chanties Sha 1s currently 2 member of
the coast to capital housing task forca

Committees
Member of Risk and Audit Commuitee and
Remuneration Commuttes
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Frank Nelson
Senior Independent
Non-Executive Director

Experience

Frank Nelson gonad the Board in November
2013 and is the Serwor Independent Directar and
Chairman of the Risk and Audit Committee Ha s
a qualfied accountant, with 30 years' experiance
in the housebuiding, mirastructure and energy
seclors. He was Finance Director of Galfiford

Try phc from 2000 urtd 2012 and was also
responsitie for thar PFYPPP activities. He was
previously Finance Director of Try Group pic from
1987, teading the company through is flotabon

n 1989 ardf subsaquent menger with Galiiany
Morg recently, Frank was the lreenm Chiaf
Financial Officer of Lamprell, the Duba-based
offshore construction company, where he helped
complete a complex refinancing belore leaving
nOctober 2013 He s presently the Semor
Incependant Director of HICL Infrastructure,
Tallord Homes pic and Eurocell pic

Committees

Chairman of Risk and Audit Comrrattes, and
member of Remuneration Committes and
Nominaiions Committee

B ]
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Mike Parsons
Independent Non-Executive Director

Expenence

Mrka Parsons joned the Board in Novermber
2013 as a Non-Execubve Dirsctor and s
Charman of the Remuneraton Committes He
founded Barchester Healthcare 23 years ago,
followng a successfid career in advertising.
Award-winrung Barchester has grown rapidly,
based on a premium posiioning 1n the
specialist care homes sector The Company
has grown organicalty and, through the
acquisition in 2004 ot Westmnster Healthcars
for £525m, became the fourth largest
ndapendant haalthcare prowder in the UK

Committees

Chairmman of Remuneration Commiites and
member of Risk and Audit Commuttes, and
Nominahons Committes.
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Clive Fenton
Chief Executive Officer

Expenence

Clive Fenton joined the Group as Chet
Exscutive Officer n February 2014 He has a
weaith of both housebullding and busness
axpanance, hawng spent aimost 30 years
with Barratt Developments pic He joned
Barratt v 1983 and worked i a number of
finance and operatonal roles before being
appointed to the Group Board in 2008 with
ovarall responsibity for alt operahons in the
south of England He was also responsibie
for group strategee land. parinershp hausing
and rgtirement homes. Morg recently he
was Chief Baautve Officer of Mount Anvd,
4 development company specalising In the
resigantial property market in central London

Committees
Member of Nommeahons Comimittee.

N ]
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Patnick Hole
General Counsel and
Company Secretary

Experience

Patnck Hole jomned McCarthy & Stone in July
2014 Patnck s responsible for the Legal and
Company Secretanal funchons of the Group
He 1s a qualified solcitor with mora than 20
years’ post qualification expensence. Painck has
been a partner in private practica for many
years ant also has a broad range of in-house
expenence, inckuding nteam roles at both DTZ
and Keepmoat

Bl

db
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Nick Maddock
Chuef Financial Otficer

Expenence

Nick Maddock jomed the Group as Chief
Fnancial Officer in September 2011, having
praviously worked as Finance Dwector for
Cenitnca’s upstraam ol and gas business,
Financsal Controfler at Briyish Gas and a Director
n Margers and Acquistions at ING Banngs
Nick tramed as a charterad accountant and
chartared tax adviser at Emst & Young

On 11 Ociober 2016, the Company announced
that Nick has resigned His departure date has
not yet been finalised

Committees
ong
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John Tonkiss
National Operations Director

]

Expenence

John Tonkiss joned McCarthy & Stone In
February 2014 and becarms a Board Director
n October 2015 He previously hald the roles
of Qperabons Dwector — North and Busngss
Transformation Drector, and became National
QOperations Dvector in Septamber 2016 He
is responsible for the Group s nine operating
regions and also leads the mprovement
change programme to accelerats business
growth, enhance customer expenance

and inprove operating performance John
was previousty Chief Executive Officer of
Human Recognimion Systems, the UK's
leacing bometn; solutions providar Pnor to
that, ha worked for ten years lor the Unite
Group the UK's largest provider of purpose-
built student accommodatian, becoming
Group Chigf Operating Officer n 2008

Commuttess
None

www mccarthyandstonegroup co uk
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Corporcate Governance
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This has been an exaihng and challenging year for us as we
moved from private to public ownership following the IPOIn
November 2015

This Corporate Govemance Report descnibes our governance
structure and explains how we have appled the main
prnnciptes of the UK Corporate Govemnance Code 2014 {and
rélevant updates) {the Code) {(www frc org uk) and the
Disclosure Guidance and Transparency Rules of the Financial
Conduct Authonty handbook (DTR Rules) since our flotation

We belteve that a solid corporate governance framework 15
gssential for upholding our core business vatues and delvenng
our strategy and it Is my responsibility to promots high
standards of govemance and business practica throughout the
organisation In this section of the report we explain how we
manage our business and promote such high standards of
governance across the Group

Compliance with the Code

The Company has complied with the Code for the part of the

yaar that we were (isted with the folfowing exceptions

a) The Non-Executive Directors’ letters of appointment were
not for a fixed term - this has now beean rectified (B2 3)

b} Although the Risk and Audit Cormmittea reviewed the
intermal controls and nsk management dunng the year, the
effectiveness raview by the Board took place after year end
In November 2016 (C 2 3)

The following sets out how we have complied with the Code

Annyal Report and Accounts 2016

A Leadership

The role of the Board (A1)

The Board 1s responsible for operational control of the Group,
including all strategie, financial, orgamsational, lagal and
regulatory matters and the Directors meet regularly to enable
them 1o discharge ther duties The Company Secretary 1S
responsible for ensunng that Board procedures are followed
and that applicable rules and regulations are comphed with
in addition, the Directors may take independent professional
adwice as required

There Is a formal schedule of matters speciically reserved

for Board decision which was updated in November 2015 to
ensure that it 1s relevant to a UK listed company Matters which
require Board approval nclude strategy and managament,
structure and capital, financial reporting, internal controls,
contracts and expendrure and communications

Decsions on investments and development actvibes are made by
the Group Investment Committes which meets weekly and s
chared by the Chief Executive Officer, while major rvastment
deasions are referred to the Board for approval

The Board has established three Board Committees Risk and
Audit, Rermuneraton and Nominations The membership of each of
the Committees s 1n compliance with the requirements of the Code
and the tenms of reference of the Committees are nciuded on aur
corporate website Details of the actvities of sach of the Committees
dunng the year are set out later n this docurnent The Cormpary
Secretary acts as secretary to each of the Commitiees

There are ning scheduled Board meetings sach year, although
duning FY16 there were 11 formal Board meetings Attendance
at the Board and the Committee mestings 1s shown below

Rigk and
Audit Femuneration  MNomenasons

Director Board Comymittee  Comwmittaa  Committes
Number of meetings 11 3 5 1
John White /M n‘a 5/5 11
Clive Fenton 11/11 n/a nfa il
Nick Maddock 11711 na na na
John Tonkiss! 1111 n/a n/a nfa
Mike Parsons 111 3/3 5/5 11
Frank Nalson /M 3/3 55 17l
Geeta Nanda? 111 2/2 1M n/a
Nils Albert? 3/3 1M n‘a n/a

1 Apponted to the Board on § November 2035
2 Appointed o the Risk and At and Ramuseration Comemittees on 6 Novernber 2015
3 Sasigned on 21 October 2015

Division of responsibibties (A2, A3}
Thers s a clear written policy setting out the separation of the
rolgs of the Chiairman and the Chief Executive Officer

| am, as Chairman, responsible for lsadership of the Board
and for ensunng that the strategic direction and objectives

of the Group are relevant to dellver shareholder value and to
promote the long-term success of the Group | lead the Board
inits constructive chiallenge of the executve management and
ensure that Board discussions are searching and forward-
thinking 1 am also responsible for promoting high standards
of corporate governance and good business practice

Clive Fenton, our Chief Executive Officer, 1s responsible for the
day-to-day management of the operational actvities of the
Group and the development and mnovation of the Group's



Annual Report and Accoonts 2016

business He leads the executiva team in implementing the
strategies and objectves agreed by the Board and n delwenng
operational performance and success

Non-Executive Directors {Ad)

The Board currently has three Non-Executive Directors -
Frank Nelson, Mike Parsons and Geeta Nanda - who have
all been appointed duning the past three years Tharr previous
experence of either the housing sector or prowiding services
to the elderty add valuable skills and input to the Board

Frank Nelson 1s the Senior Independent Drirector Nils Albert was
a Non-Executve Director who resigned on 21 QOctober 2015

B Effectiveness

Board composition and independence {B1}

The appointmert and replacement of the Company’s Drrectors
15 governed by the Company's Articles of Association, the
Companies Act and the indmidual service contracts and terms
of appointment of the Directors The Articles permit a
maximum of 12 Directors

The Board currently compnises the Chairman (who was
ndepandent on appointrent), three Executive Directors and
three Independent Non-Executive Directors Short biograghical
details of each of the Directors are set out on pages 50 and 51

At its mesting in August, the Nominations Committee
considered the independence of the ndividual Directors

and confirned that there are no mdependence 1ssues,
notwithstanding the fact that two of the three Non-Executive
Directors, Frank Nelson and Mike Parsons, were included in
the Company's Management Incentive Plan which was put
in place in 2013 and was wound up N November 2015 Therr
participation in the plan s a reflection of the ditferent ownership
structure of the Company at that time Since Admission,

the Non-Executive Directors have not been included in

any of the Group's share plans or bonus arrangements

Appointments and commitment {82, B3, B7)

The date of appaintmert of each of the Directors 1s set out on
pages 50 and 51 - none of the Directors has served for more
than six years Nils Albert, who had been appomnted by our
largest prvate equity investor, resigned on 21 Oclober 2015
and John Tonkiss, National Operations Drrector, joned the
Board on 5 Novermber 2015 There have not been any changes
to the Board composition since we listed in November 2015
Appointments now fall under the remit of the Nominations
Comrmitiee who will lead the process In selecting any new
Directors before making recommendations to the Board The
Nominations Cormmittes 1s working with senior management
to ensure that satisfactory successton plans are in place

The Direclors’ service contracts and letters of appointment set
out the ime commitment expected to fulfil therr role The Board
1s satisfied that each of the Directors has committed sufficient
time and input during the year to enable him/her to fulfil his/her
duties as evidenced by the 100% attendance af all the Board
and relevant Committee meetings throughout the year

The Non-Executive Directors’ letters of appointment were
put in place when the Company was still in private equity
ownership and were not for fixed three year terms This has
been ractified since year end through vanation letters

As the Company I1s Includad in the FTSE 350, all of the Dwectors

will be required {0 seek re-election at sach AGM The resolutons
for the re-elaction of the current Board members are mcluded in

the separate Motice of AGM
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Induction, development and support (B4, BS)

On joning the Board, each Director 18 prowided with a fult
mntroduction to the business and m order to assist the Directors
In thewr ongoing understanding of the business, some of the
Board mestings are held at the regional offices o provide an
opportunity for the Directors to meet local management and to
visit some of the Group’s developments Papers are circulated
1n a tmely manner to enable the Directors to undertake fult and
detalled constderation of the agenda tems in advance of the
meeting and each of the Direclors has access fo the services
of the Company Secretary

Board evaluation (B6)

An gvaluation of the performance of the Board, its members and
Commutiess was camed out duang FY18 by the Nominations
Committee and details of the evaluation process and findings
are included in the Nominations Committee Report on page 54

C Accountabilrty

Reporting (C1}

The Statement of Directors’ Responsibiities 1S on page 80 The
viability staternent i1s on page 39 The Independent Auditor's
Report 1s on pages 81 to 85 The staternent on going concem
1S on page 79 Details of the Board’s arangements to ensure
that the information presanted n this repart 1s fair, balanced
and understandable s set out on page 80

Risk management and internal controls (C2)

Detalls of the nsk management process and the pnncipal nsks
facing the Group are set out on pages 38 and 41 The Board
1S responsible for the system of internal controls, which are
designed to manage the business nsks faced by the Group,
and for reviewing the effectiveness of those centrols Business
targets are set within appropnate tmeframes, policies,
procedures and control processes for managing the Group’s
business actvities have been put in place, and key financial
nsks are controlied through clearly laid down authonsation
levels and segregation of accounting duties

The Risk and Audit Committes, together with the Intermnal Audit
function, has identified the pnncipal nsks facing the Group and
has established systems for evaluating and managing those
nsks These systems have been in place for the whole of the
yaar under review and up 1o the date of this report Further
informaton can be found on pages 56 and 57, and 38 and 39

Audit and Auditors (C3)
Detals of the work of the Risk and Audit Committee and the
auditors are set cut on pages 56 and 57

D. Remuneration
Details of Executive Directors’ remuneraton and the Group's
approach to remuneration policy are set out on pages 58 ta 77

E. Relations with shareholders

Although most direct shareholder contact 1s by the Chef Executive
Officer and the Chief Financial Officer, feedback 1s commuricated
back to the other Directors pnmanity through reports to the Board
and copies of analysts' presentations

it 18 anticipated that all members of the Board wall attend the

AGM in January 2017 and that the meeting will be organised
N comphance with the Code

ol LA

www mccarthyandstonegroup co uk

On bahalf of the Board

John White
Chairman
14 Novernber 2016
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Introduction
| am pleased to present the Committee s report for FY16

The Nominations Committee’s pnmary responsibilites are to
review the structure, size and composition of the Board and
its Committees, including making racommendations for
appointments and re-elections to the Board, and successton
planmung for the Directors and senior management in

the Group

In our first year post-IPO, the man area of focus for the
Committee has been to undertake an evaluation of our Board
and its Commuittaes and our Diractors to seek to identfy any
areas where performance and procedures can be improved
and to reassure ourselves that we have the nght people leading
our business

The results of the evaluation process are set out balow

Membership and tenure
Members of the Committee are appointed by the Board
The members of the Committee dunng FY16 were

John White
Clive Fenton
Frank Nelson
Mike Parsons

MNis Albert was alsc a member of the Committee for part of the
year until his resignation from the Board on 21 October 2015
The membership of the Commitiee was reviewed in advance
of the IPD process last year Apart from Mr Albert's resignation,
no further changes were considered necessary at that time

There was one meeting of the Commuttea dunng the year
all the current members of the Committes attended

Responsibilities and terms of reference

The terms of reference, which are avaidable on our website,
were adopted with effect from 11 Novemnber 2015 The man
areas of responsibility of the Commities are overseeing the
appointment of Directors, ensurning that the skills and
expenence of the Board remains appropriate and balanced,
succession planning, and the annual evaluation process

Activities during FY18

Cuning the year the Commitiee reviewed the size, structure
and composihion of the Board and the parformance and
effectiveness of the Board and ts Committees as well as the
performance and contnbution of each of the Directors it was
decided not to undertake an external evaluation during FY16
The Commuttes will review the timung of the external evaluation
dunng FY17

The Committes also reviewed the Group's Equal Opportunities
Polcy and its own terms of reference

Evaluation process and resuits

The Committee camed out a thorough, In-house evaluation

of the Board and each of its Committegs (Risk and Audrt,
Remuneration and Nominations), as well as the performance
of each of the Directars This was camed out by way of a
questionnarre as well as one-to-one meetings between the
Chairman and the Non-Executive Directors cn the performance
of the ndivrdual Directors The review of the Chairman’s
performance was led by the Senior Independent Director

The effectiveness of the Board was assessed in respect of
its structure, organisation, reporting and communications
Directors were also invited to make recommendations on
how the performance and operation of the Board could
be improved Board performance scored, in general, quite
highly, although there were some areas where Directors
felt there could be improvement, including successton
planning and greater communication with ermployees

| was particulanty pleased that, compared to other Boards
on which the Directors have served in the past, McCarthy
& Stone's Board Is constdered to be more open with an
excellent mix of expenence and a better balance between
the Executive Directors and the Non-Executive Directors
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Some areas were identified where improvement could be
made The Committes has therefore set up an action plan
to address these points, which will be reviewed agan as
part of next year's evaluation process O compare rogress
against objectives

Board composition and sucecession planning

Board composrion was already a focus for the Company
prior to our IPO in Novenber 2015, with emphasis on
estabhishing a Board with a strong background in the
housebuilding sector and soiid isted company expenence
that could guide the Group through the Iisting process

Consequently, the Board has been completely refreshed m
the past five years, with six of the current seven Directors
having been on the Board for three years or less

Date of appointment
Duector Role to the Board
John White Chairman 23 September 2013
Ciwve Fenton  Chiel Executve Officer 17 February 2014
Nick Maddock Chief Financial Officer 19 Septamber 2011
John Tonkiss  Operations Director 5 November 2015
Mike Parsons  Non-Executive Duector 4 November 2013

Non-Executive Director 18 November 2013
Non-Executive Director 1 Apnl 2015

Frank Nelson
Geeta Nanda

There have not been any Board appomntments since the
Company listed As part of the evaluation process, it was
identified that the composition should be kept under review
by the Committee 11 order to ensure that the mix and
expernence remains relevant to our business Due to the
resignation of Nick Maddock, the Mominatons Committes
will be involved in the search for a new Chief Financial Officer

The terms of reference of the Committee require a descnphon
and capabilities of the role to be prepared in advance of the
recruitment process The Committee may use the services of
axtemnal iIndependent advisers

Cne of the areas identfied \n the evaluahon where it was felt
that addiional attention was needed was succession planning,
which, given the recent tenure of the current Board has not
been a prionty in the past couple of years The Group 1S in

the process of formulating a new succession plan wiich the
Committee will continue to keep under review

Retirement and re-elaection of Directors

In accordance with our Articles of Association and as
a FTSE 350 company, all of our Directors are required
to retire and those who wish to continue to serve must
seek re-glechion by our snarenoiders at each AGM

As part of its evaluation process, the Commitiee reviewed

the experience and contnbution of gach of the Direclors,
before recommending to the Board that all of the Directors
should be recommendead for re-election at our AGM io

be held n January 2017 it was felt that the breadth of
knowledge and expenence across the Board was appropnate,
partcularly at this stage in our evalution Further details

on each of the Directors are set out on pages 50 and 51
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Diversity

The Group has an Equal Opportunties Policy, which commits
us to zero tolerance of unlawful discnmination and encourages
dwersity n our workforce The Committea reviewed the Policy
dunng the year and will continue to keep this under review

to ensurs that it remains appropnate for the bustness

Although the Group has not set specific gender targets,

as we believe that appointments should be based on merd,
we support the pnnciple of diversity, not st at Board level
but throughout the Group At year end we had one female
member of the Board {representing 14%) and 48% of our total
workforce were female Further breakdown i1s provided on
page 47

John White

Nominations Committee Chairman
14 November 2016

www mccarthyandstonegroup co uk
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Introduction

This 1s my first report following our isting on the London Stock
Exchange We were not listed for the whole of the year under
revisw and further changes were required in the membership
of the Committee and our terms of reference to put In placa
arrangements appropnate to our new status as a listed
company We are canfident we have the nght people in place
to drive forward the nsk and audit oversight for the Group

Memberstup and tenure

At the beginning of FY16 the members of the Committee were
Frank Nelson {Charmany), John White, Nils Albert and Mike
Parsons Mr Albert resigned from the Board on 21 October
2015 The membership was further amended in advances of the
IPO and n order to ansure compliance with the UK Corporate
Governance Cods, when John White stepped down from the
Committee and was replaced by Geeta Nanda The current
membership is therefore Frank Nelson, Mike Parsons and
Geeta Nanda, all Independent Non-Executive Directors

Pror to his appontment to the Board, Frank Nelson was
previously Finance Director of Galliford Try ple, the FTSE 250
housebullding and construction group for 25 years and the
Board has determined that his recent and refevant financial
expenence makes him the tdeal Director to char the
Commitiee The Committee as a whole has competence
relevant to our busingss with Frank Nelson and Geeta Nanda
having considerable expenence working in the housing sector
and Mike Parsons having a background in provding care for
elderly people Further details of therr background and
experence are set out on pages 50 and 51

Responsibilities and terms of reference

New terms of reference were approved by the Committee

and became effective on 11 November 2015 The principal

responsibiities of the Committee are to

* Monitar the integrity of the financial statements and any
other format announcements relating to the Group's financial
posthion and performance

¢ Assess whether management has made appropnate
estmates and judgemants and to provide advice to
the Board on whether the Annual Report and financial
statements are far, halanced and understandable

* Keep under review, and monitor the effectiveness of, the
Group's internal controls and nsk management systems

* Monitor and reviaw the effectiveness of the nsk and nternal
audt function

= Monitor and review the effectiveness of the services of
the external audhtor, incluchng negohiation of the audi fee

« Develop and implement the paiicy on the supply of non-
audit services by the external auditor

* Review the adequacy and security of the Group's
procedures on whistleblowing, anbi-bnbery and corruphon
and anti-money laundsnng

Activities during FYT6

During the year there were three Risk and Audit Commuttee
meetings, two of which were held after our IPO wath the
schedule of the meetings planned to tie in with the annual
audit cycls The table on page 52 sets out attendance

at the Committee meetings held duning the year

Meebngs can also be attended, by inwitation, by other Directors
and mambers of the intemal audit and external audi tearns, when
deemed approprate The Chief Financial Officer, the Directar of
Risk and Intemal Audtt and the external Audit Partner attended all
three meetings dunng the year The members cf the Committee
meet with the extemnal audiior without Execubve Directors or
management at every masting attended by the extamal auditor

Dunng FY16 the key areas of focus for review and

recommendation for approval to the Board were

s The FY15 Annual Report and Financial Statements together
with the report from the external auditor as well as
consideration of the going concem status of the Group

« The Historical Financial Information for inclusion in the
IPO prospectus

¢ The half year results including the review undertaken by the
external auditor

The Commuttee also recerved reports at each meeting on

¢ Risk and intemal audit, including updates on the risk
registers and the internal audi plan

* Whistieblowing and ant-bnbery and conuption procedures
and complance

Significant financial reporting 1ssues

Sigruficant financial reporting 1ssues and judgements reviewad

by the Committee during FY16 were

* Accounting and tax treatment of the IPO costs — the
Commuttea recenved a report from the Chief Financial Officer
setting out the proposed accounting treatment under IAS 32
of the costs that had been incurred n connection with the
IPO In addition, external adwvice was sought regarding the tax
reatment of the IPO costs The Committee reviewed and
appraved the proposed treatment of these costs

» Shared equily receivables - the Cammities reviswed the
accounting treatment of future recewvables due under the
shared equity schermnes that have been used by the Group
over the years The assumphons used in estimating the value
of the future recevables and which are reviewed half yearly
refate to the date of the anticipated future receipt, house price
inflation, the discount rate and the new build premium

* Share-based payments - extemal adwice was sought in respect
of charges relating to the Group's sharesave plan and long term
ncentive plan ({detalls of thase schemes ars detaled n note
32 to the consolidated financial statements) Judgements
had to be made around lapse rates, share performance and the
expected outcome of performance conditons

« Cost capialisation of overheads - the Committee received
a proposal frorn management analysing the spit of overhead
costs relating lo design, planning, commercial, construction,
procurerment, and health and safety between those that could
be atinbuted to the cost of the developments to nventory and
those that relate to ganeral business overheads to expenses
The assumptions are reviewed annually with the function
headls before being proposed to the Cormmittes

Risk management and internal controls

Our Fusk and Internal Audtt funchion was estabhished in the

summer of 2014 with the following key areas of responsibility

* The design and implementation of a robust nsk
management framework across the Group to identify,
monitor and manage key business nsks and to establish
ansk appetite for each key nsk beyond which corrective
action 1s required
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+ The development of an assurance prograrame to ascertan
whether the controls around our key business nsks are
designed and operating effectivaly

Details of how the Group manages the risk process are set out
on pages 3B and 39 The Director of Risk and Internal Audit
reports at each Committee meeting on any changes to the nisk
register and any areas for improvement

An annual internal aucit plan, focusing on the key nsks to
the business, 1s reviewed and agreed by the Committee its
cycle 1s driven pnrarily by risks identiied in the nsk registers
A separate commercial intermal audit plan has been put

n place specifically to investigate the management of our
construction activites  Findings from iternal audrts and
recommended improvements are reporled {o the Committee
The Chairman of the Commiitee meets regularly with the
Drrector of Risk and internal Audit Other members of the
Committee and the Board will also meet with the Director

of Risk and Internal Audit penadically dunng the yaar

The Board of Dwrectors recognises its gverall responsibility for
the Group's system of intermnal controls and for montdonng its
effectiveness There 15 an ongeing process for idenbfying,
evaluating and managing sigrificant nsks However, w reviewing
the effectivenass of internal controls, any intemal control system
can only provide reascnable but not absclute assurance against
rnatenal misstaternent or loss

The Board, on the recommendation of the Risk and Audit
Committes, have remaned satisfied that the system of intermal
controls continued to bae effective in identifying, assessing and
ranking the vanous nsks facing the Group, and in monitenng

and reporting progress n mrigating the potentiad mpact on the
business Systems have been in place for the year under review
and up to the date of approval of the Annual Report and Financial
Statements The Board has approved the Principal Risks and
Uncertainties set out on pages 40 and 41 of this Annual Report

External auditer
The Commiuttee is responsible for the appointment of the
external auditor, therr fee and the scope of the annual audit

Auditor independence and performance

Deloitte LILP have been aur external auditor since FYD9, the first
audt of the Company We have had the same Audit Partner
since 2013 but the Audr Director has changed during that
penod The next audit tender will take place no later than the
end of 2018

The performance and independence of the auditor and the
work they perform are reviewed annually following completon
of the external audit The Committes remains sahsfied as lo the
ndependence and effectiveness of Delotie ULP

The Company has comphed throughout the reporbing year

with the provisions of the Statutory Audit Seraces for Large
Companies Market Invesugation {Mandatory Use of Competitive
Tender Processes and Audit Commirtee Responsibilties)

Order 2014

Policy on non-audit services

It 1s the Group's practice, whenever possible, to put non-audit
work out to tender The Board only appoinis Deloitte LLP

to prowide non-audit services if the Directors have satisfied
themselves that the audrtor’s objectvity and independence
have not been compromised A policy on non-audit services
has been approved by the Committas, which ncorporates the
provisiens of the EU audit reform
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The external auditor 1S appointed to provide audit and audit-
related services, including annual audi of the Group, Parent
Company and non-dormant subsidiary financial statements as
well as the haif year review

The external auditor 15 prohibited from providing services

which nvolve

* Bookkeeping and other services relating to accounting
records and corporate financial statements

* Design and implementabion of financial information systems

* Any valuation that could have a matenal efiect on the
financral statements

¢ Tax services that depend on a particular accounting
treatment

¢ Recruting executives or providing advice on remuneration

packages

Actuaral services

Management functions

Internal audit services

Legal, broker, investment adviser or investment banking

serices

* Corporate finance or ransachon services where the
outcoma s dependent on accounting treatment, or on
a contingent fes basis f matenal to the audit firm, or the
outcome mvolves a future or contermporary audit judgement
relating to a matenal balance In the financial statements

s Any other work that 1s prohibited by UK ethical guidance

The external audior may be selecied to provide any ciher services
that do not fall within audit and audrt-related services or that are
rot prohibited, subiect 1o a compehive selection process

Bunng FY15, Deloitte LLP were apponted as Reporting
Accountants in connection with the IPC They were one of three
firms to be imvted to tender for this work and they were selected
oblectively on the basis of being the prefered and most
expenegncad firm for the nole, one of their particular strengths beng
thair property expertise A different partner within Deloitte was
appainted o oversee these services The Commiitee was satisfied
that Deloitte managed to mairtain ndependence, desprte
undertaking both roles at the same tme Fees payable to Delortte
within FY16 in relaton to transachon-relatsed audit and advisory
services are detaled n note 6 to the consolidated financial
staternents

Whistleblowing, fraud and anti-bribery and corruption
The Committee has reviewed and approved the Group's
policies and pracedures an whistlablowing, anti-brtbary and
corruption, fraud and anti-money laundenng and receives
regular updatas from the Company Secretary on compliance
with the policies across the business

Frank Nelson
Risk and Audit Committee Chairman
14 Ngvember 2016
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Remunerction Commuttee Chaarmaom’s Annual Stotement
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Dear Shareholder,

| am pleased to present, on behalf of the Board, the
Remuneration Committee’s first Remuneration Report
following the IPO, which contains the Remuneration
Paolicy (subject to a binding vota} and the Annual Report
on Remuneration (subject to an advisory vote)

Waork on the Remuneration Policy (the Policy) began
after the IPO in November 2015 when | was appointed
as Chairman of the Remuneration Committee Sinca the
PO, the Committee has reviewed and buit on the work
done by the Board on the Company’s remuneration
structure and policy in the lead up to the IPO, an

outlineg of which was published n the prospecius

Our objective is to have a Policy which supports the
Group’s strategy to create an efficlent and scalable
business capable of bulding and sellng more than 3,000
units per annum to enable us to target top-quartile secior
margns and returns on capital over the medium term

This Palicy 1s designed to ncentivise and motivate the
leadership team to implement the Company's strategic
goals and will also ensure they are aligned with shareholder
expectations This has been a guiding pnnciple for the
Commuttee This report fays out the core elements of our
Policy and our practice during FY16

In our Policy descnption we have worked to provide the
transparency and clarty required to enable our sharsholders
to understand the intent of our remuneration

Remuneration Committee Members
Mike Parsons {Chairman)

Geeta Nanda

Frark Nelson

John White

Structure of the report

+ Annual Statement (pages 58 and 59)

= ‘Ataglance’ (pages 60 to 62)

« Remuneration Policy (pages 63 to 74}

* Annual Report on Remuneration {pages 74 to 77)

Qur core principles of remuneration

* To ensure top executivas are attracted. retained and
motivated 1o dnve the Cornpany in s next stage of
developrent post-IPO

* To incentivise management in creating an efficient and
scalable business to support the growth strategy

¢ To deliver long-term sustainable value 1o sharehaolders

FY16 highhights

Buring FY18, the Group has been through a transitional
process as It moved from a prvately owned to a publicly iisted
corporate Duning the year, the Group, the Executive Directors
and the senior management team have ¢ontinued to drive the
Group's investment and growth strategy and to dsliver a
high-quality product with constant focus on exceptional
standards of customer satisfaction Full details of the strategy
and KPIs are contained on pages 30 to 33

The strategy and KPls for the Group have been the prmary
factors in seting the Policy o ensure that there s alignment
between performance and reward Further details of how the
parformance measures for our annual benus plan and long term
incentive plan align to our strategy are outhined on page 63

Remuneration Commirttee decisions made and activity
following the IPQ

The Group's remuneration policies and practices were
reviewed extensively in preparation for the IPO to ensure
appropnate remuneration arrangearments were in place

to support the Group’s strategy following the sting of

the Company

Foliowing the IPO, wa have taken the opportunity to
review alf the key components of remuneralion to ensure
that the proposed Policy 1s fit-for-purpose as a listed
Company and aligns with our strategic objectives and
shareholder expectations

In addition, we have undertaken the following actwites as a

Remuneration Committes

* Determined the Commitige's terms of reference

* Approved and implernented four share mcentive plans as
detailled later in the report

* Completed the Company’s first Remuneration Report as a
hsted Company

We shared our Policy with our top sharehotders and the main
shareholder bodies n Oc¢tober 2016 pnor to its formal
publication This was a vaiuable opportunity to receve
feedback on our Palicy
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Other key decsions/actions taken durning the year included

a) FY16 bonus outcomes

During FY16, the Group delivered record revenue, togsther
with robust growth in completions, reservations and profits
Notwithstanding strong 12% growth in underlying operating
profit for the year of £107 2m (FY15 £85 3m), the more
challenging trading condrions expenenced in Q4 resulted in the
bonus target of £129 Om (threshold £118 3m} not being achieved
and as a result no bonus 1s payable relatng to this KPi

During the year the Group exchanged on 65 good qualily sites
with attractive margins A more measured approach te land
acguisiion was taken in ight of market uncertainty n Q4 As a
result the bonus target for land exchanges of 95 {threshold 88)
was not met and no bonus is payabie in refahon 1o this KR

The Group maintams its strong financial posihon with £52 8m
of net cash at the year end to invest i future land and buitd
and to provide an mcome stream to shareholders by way of
dividend - a commitment we made an IPO Strong cash
generation, the nat proceeds from PO, and a more measured
approach to land and build mvestment resulied in generating a
positive cash inflow aganst the target cash outflow of €58 Tm
The Executive Directors were awarded the maximum bonus In
refation to thus K8t

Tha continued focus on homeowner sabisfaction has led to an
11th year of being awarded the Five Star rating for customer
satisfaction by the HBF While this 1s a fantastic result for the
Group, the targeted performance of 93% (threshold 91%) has
not been achieved Conseqguently, no bonus s payable in
retation to this KPI

b) Resignation of the Chief Financial Officer

On 11 QOctober 2018, the Group announced the resignation

of Nick Maddock, the Chief Financial Officer Nick wiill remain

in post and a lsaving date in Q1 2017 will be agreed in due
course Nick has played a pivotal rolz in transforming McCarthy
& Stane over the past five years dunng his hrme as the Chief
Ftnancial Officer and 1 would like to thank tum for his service
dunng his tenure

At the time of the pubhcaton of thig report, details of tus
terrmination arrangements are beng finalised by the
Committee The detais will be published in the FY17 Directors’
Remuneratton Report

Remuneration arrangerments {or fis successor will be n
Iine with the proposed Policy, If accepted by shareholders,
and details wiil be published n the FY17 Dwectors’
Remuneration Report

¢) Executive Director salaries

As outhned above, our Executive Directors and the senor
management team have continued to support the Company
through the next stage of development as a listed orgarusaton

OQunng the year, the Cormmuittes considarsd the salares for the
three Executive Directors (effective from 1 November 2016}

As part of this review, the Chief Executive Ofiicer was awarded
an increase of 2% (£475,000 to £484.500) No increase was
awarded to the outgoing Chref Financial Officer
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John Tonkiss was promoted to the newly created role of
National Operations Director on 1 September 2016 John
had previously been responsibile for the five northern

regions {West Mictands, East Midlands, North West, North
East and Scotland} and upon his promohen he has taken

on additional responsibiities for our four southem regions
(South West, Southern, South East and North London} which
results in John overseeing all of our regional operations

The Cormmittee awarded a salary nse to John compnsing an
increase as part of the annual review in line with the general
employee populabon and an increase to reflect his promotion
and addiional responsibiites John's new salary will be
300,000 {from £280,000 a 7% increase)

Under the vobng regime that now governs these matters,
two resolubions will be put to shareholders at the AGM In
January 2017

We will first seek approval for the Policy {pages 63 to 74) This
outhines the Company’s Remuneration Policy for Executive
DOirectors effectiva from the 2017 AGM The vote s binding on
the Company and s intended o apply for up to three years

The second 1s seeking approval for the Annual Report on
Remuneration for the financal year ended 31 August 2016
{pages 74 to 77) it details decistons and actions taken by the
Committee based on the performance of the Group and
remuneration conseguences This section of the report s
subyect to an annual advisery vote

Full dstais of the resolutions are set out In the separate Notice
of AGM

Our goal has been to be thoughtful and clear in the layout of
both parts of the report and | look forward to your support on
both resolutions

Mike Parsons
Remuneration Committee Charrman
14 November 2016

W ?"“""/:_’L——-

Notes
An avaluation of the Asmunaraton Gommilies s sllactweness will be conducted afier
a il year of operabion.

Ths raport has been preparad n accordance wath Schedule 8 to the Large and

Medium sized Companies and Groups (Accounts and Reports) Reguiaions 2008 as

amended in 2013 1he omsions of 1ha UK Corporate Governance Cods and the

Usting Aules The roport conasts ol three sections

*  The Annugal Staterneni by the Remuneration Commmites Chakman and associated
at a glance seciion

*  Tha Pokcy which sets out the Company 8 Remunaration Pokcy for Directors and
tha Hay factors that were faken into accoun v saiting the Poiity This Poficy s
Irtancad 1o apply for thzee years romits date of approval at the 2017 AGM

s The Annug) Report on Remuneration which sais oul payments made o thg
Directors and detalls the link batvean Group parformance and remunarsticn
for FYi6
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Directors’ Remunercation Report continued

At a glance

Introduction
In this section, we set out the remuneration outcomes for FY16 and an overview of our proposed Remuneration Policy for FY17
(subject to a binding vote by shareholders at our 2017 AGM)

2016 FINANCIAL YEAR

Remuneration outcomes

FY16 was a transtional year for the Comparny as we successfully foated in November 2015 to become a listed Company
This marks a significant change for the Company and for the roles of aur Executive Directors

Our FY16 resulis and the associated annual bonus outcomes outined below reflect the performance measures and targets
put In place from the start of the financial year and therr level of satisfaction

FY16 annual bonus outcomes Percentaga trorus value achevod
Thrashold Tanget Maxdrmwrn of maximum
performance performance  parformance Actual  performance Clive Nick John
Periormance conditlon Weighting recurired required required performance achieved Feniton Maddock Tonkiss
Underlying operating
profit? 70% €1193m £1290m £1387m £1072m 0% - - -
Cash flow 10% (EB37m} (E587m) (£337m) £484m 100%  £61,750 =3 £36,400
Land exchanges 10% a8 85 100 65 0% - - -
Customer satisfaction 10% 91% 93% 95% 90% 0% - - -
Total 100% - - - - 10% £61,750 - £36,400
Notes.

1 Under tha terms of tha FY186 annual bonus, 25% for aach elsmant is payabila for achieving Lhe threshold performance, 50% /s payable for achiaving target periormance
increasing 1o 100% lor achisving maximum performance. Actuevaments bietween these ponits are calculated on a straght-ine hasie Bonus up to 100% of salary is pad in
eash with any bonus above 100% of salary belhg pawd in shares whwch are deferred fos thvee years subject to continued empioyment

2 Undemmyng oparating profii 1s calculated by adding amorusation of brand and exceptior al administrative expensas to operaiing orofit See nota 6 to the consolidatad fnancial
Staternents for further niormason

3 Nick Maddock 1s not gligible for an annual bonus as per the ndas of the McCarthy & Stona Annual Bonus Pran as he wilt be under notice when the bonus will be paxd

The detail of the outcomes can be found in the Annual Report on Remuneration on page 74 The FY16 bonus will be paid entirely
in cash No deferred shares will be awarded since 10% of the maximum performance was achieved

Long-term incentives awarded
Awards under the Long Term incerdive Plan (LTIP} were made on 25 November 2015 on the following basis

FY16 LTIP awards

Faca/maximum % of award
Number of valus at date of grant vesting 4t Performance
Exaculve Direciors shares awarded {% of salary} thrashokd parod
Clve Fenton 263,888 100% 25% 3years
Nick Maddock 166,666 100% 25% 3years
John Tonkiss 155 655 100% 25% 3vyears

The awards were granted as nil-cost share options and vesting will be subject to achiewing a challenging shding scale of samings
per share (EPS), return on capital employed (ROCE} and relative total shareholder returm (relative TSR) against a bespoke group of
housebuiiders over a three-year periormance penod The performance schedule for these measures is as follows

Maasure Wolghtng Threshold performance Maximum parformance
Cumulative EPS 30% 614p 69 8p
FY18 ROCE 30% 22% 25%
Relative TSR’ 40% Equaltoindex Index+75%pa

t The rglatve TSA comparator group comp the unweighted ge TSR of the folicwang housebudders Barratt Sovis Belway Crast Nicholson Persinmon, Redrow and

Taylor Wimpay
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Equity exposure of the Board
As a result of the IPQ, the Executive Crectors have sigrwficant shareholdings in the Company as sel out below, providing them
wiih a matenal stake in the business

The following chart sets cut the percentage value of all subsisting wtarests n the equity of the Company held by the Executve
Directors at 31 August 2018

The Company's mimmum shareholding requirements are currently 200% of base salary for alf Executive Directors

0%  100% 200% 300% 40D% 500% BOO% 700%  BOO%  900%
T T 1 T T T T T T ]
Chve Fenton Sharsholding requirement S
(96 of salary)
Vaiue of beneficially owned shares L]
Vaiue of/gain on mnterests over shares
(e unvested/unexercised awands) S
Nick Maddock  Shareholting requirement L ]
(% of salary)
Value of beneficially owned sharas |
Value offgain on interesls over shares
fte unvested/unexercised awards) A
John Tonkiss  Shareholding requirement L]
{% of salary)

Value of beneficially owned shares L |

Value of/gain on interests over shares
(e unvested/unexercised awards) ——

The numbar of shares of the Company in which current Directors had a beneficial nterest as at 31 August 2016 are set aut n
detail on page 76

www mecarthyandstonegroup co uk
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Directors’ Remuneration Report continued

2017 FINANCIAL YEAR

Implementation of the Pohcy

On 1PQ, the remuneration arrangements for the Group were updated to reflect the Company's new public status and to align wath
Group strategy as wa transitioned into a listed environment

The Remuneration Committes has reviewed and considered the key components of remunerabion since the IPO to ensure that the
proposed Policy 1s fit-for-purpose and aligned with the expectabons of a isted cormpany

Our praposed Folicy (summansed below} has been designed to align remuneration of our Exacutive Diractars with Graup strategy
and to dnve confinued success wathi a remuneration framework that mests the shareholder and govemnance expectations of a

FTSE 250 company

Qverview of Policy for FY17

F(ear l H 2 +3
Base salary H The base salanes for Clive Fenton, Nick Maddock and John Tonkiss are
currently £475,000, £300,000 and £280,000 respectvely For FY17, base
salanes for the Executive Crrectors are Clive Fenton £484,500 (2% increase),
Nick Maddock £300,000 {no mncreass), John Tonkiss £300,000 (7% increase
io refisct promotion and increased responsibilities) The new salanes are
effecive as of 1 Novernber 2016
Pension The maximum contnbution into the defined contribution plan or & salary
h supplement in ieu of pension will be 20% of gross base salary
Benefits Standard benefits will be provided See the Policy for further details
For FY17 the maximurn bonus opportunity will be 150% of salary
The performance condions and therr weightings for the FY17 annual bonus
Annual are as follows
bonus * Group operating profit (70%)
plan (ABP) s Group full year cash flow (10%)
s Cash + Group customer satisfaction (10%)
e Deferred » Group land exchanges {10%)

share award
One-thud of any banus earned will be in the form of detarrad sharas

The ABP contains ciawback and malus provisions Please refer to page 69 for
turther details

The performance conditions for the FY17 LTIP awards will be cumulative EPS,
ROCE and relative TSR against the comparator housing group

All three measures are assessed over a three-year performance penod and
are egually weighted

LTip For the achrevement of threshold pesformance, 25% of the slement will vest
with straight-king vesting in between o maximum performance

In FY17, an LTIP award of 150% of salary will be awarded to the Executive
Directors

The LTIP contains clawback and malus provisions Please refer to page 69 for
further details

The current fess for the Non-Executive Director roies are
« Charmman £230,000

NED fees = Board fea £53.000

* SID additonal fee £10,000

* Comrmittee Chairman fee (per Committes) £10,000

The Committee proposes to implernent the Policy for FY17, subject to shareholder approval at our 2017 AGM Further detarls of
the Policy and how our proposed Policy aligns to Group strateqgy are Set out in the following section
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Remuneration Policy

intraduction

In accordance with the remuneration reporting regulations, the Policy {the Policy) as set out below will, subject to sharsholder
approval from the 2017 AGM in January, become formally effective at the conchsion of that meeting and 15 intended to apply for
the penad up to three years from the dale of approval

The Company's core pnncipies of remuneration are

= To ensure top executives are atiracted, retained and motivated to dnve the Company in its nexd stage of development post-iPO
* Toincentvise managemenit In creating an efficrant and scalable business to support the growth strategy

* To delver long-term sustanable value to shareholders

The Comrmttee will review anrually all elements of the remuneration including the base salary, annual bonus levels, proportion of
bonus to be deferred into shares and the annual and long-term incentive performance conditions for the Executive Directors and
selected rernbers of the senior management tearm, drawing on trends and adjustrnents made to the remuneration of all
employees across the Group and taking into consideration

Our business strategy

Overall Group performance

Market conditions, including practice of oiher housebuilders

Views of key stakeholders of the business

Corporate governance considerations

Changing views of institutional shareholders and therr representative bodies

* ® & & = 9

Qur Policy and its link to our Group strategy
The Group's strategy Is laid out on pages 30 and 31

Ensuring the alignment of the proposed Pohcy to the Group's strategy was key for the Remuneration Cormmittee in developing the
proposed Policy below The key elements of the Group's strategy and how its successful implementation is linked to the Executve
Directors' remuneration are set out In the followsng table

Our growth strategy
Retaln and
Cortinuad Equily ownershp  reward Exacutive
Policy {irom the daie of Incroased Sales prochuct Oporationsl Facus on and retention of  Direciods to dalvar
shiaraholger agpoovel) Ivasitngnt Greroeth, {naguation aticloncy shares tha strategy
Annual bonus metrics V4 s / 7 v v 4
Tha maximum bomua Land exthanges  Profit, cash flow Customer Profit, cash fiow Prafii, cash flow
{inclusding By part of the e The succass gf our  + The increasy satlisfaction, « The success In = The succassin
boras elgned o 30 ABR invgsiment and in sales wil profit, cash flow MEDATVEINgG achigving fof Saciof
owpd) delverable under the  daveloping oul future D manswed + The efsciant operezional marging and retum
ABP wil Nt exceed 150% pipoing wil be by d rioni ol excalanco wil bo on capatal wil ba
of a participant § 2ual radeciad through protiabdty and the products  feRectsd tvough maasued by
baie salary e number of cash fow measwred lvough increasad profiahifity  increaasd profitatwiy
fand axchanpes cusiomar satistaciion  and cash fow and cash Sow
comphetad during raings wil be
the yaar refected in increasedt
oeofltabiity Bnd
cash fow
LTIP metrics " v 7 v '
Maximum aonual pwartis TSR EPS, TSR EPS, ROCE, TSR
narmaily 350% of salary + Growng tha « An incentive {o grow o The success
Compary s a30ts saigs I the longe: Inmaximeing
Awards wil vest at thg end will ba reflac.ad tarm wil lsad to EPS oparationgl athcuacy
ol ihroo years the valuo of the growih Tha success wh be measured
Comparty which of ihug slzvnend of the thvough tha long term
Fot FY17 tha perfocmance will s meesuwed stratagy should be EPS aswel s
condltions. K awards o ihwough the rodlectad o long term ROCE n addttion
cumulative EPS ROCE Company s relative TSR periormonce susisined value
and relative TSR which ere TSR periormance ghneation wik
equely weighted ba rebociad in
ihe Company s
TSR performance
Share Incentlve Plan s v I's
{SIP)
Save As You Earn Plan J s s
(Sharesave}
Minimum shareholding 4

requirements
« 200% of satary for af
Executiva Direciors

www.mecarthyandstonegroup co uk
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Poficy table

Blemen: of
remneration

How 11 supDonta the Group's short and kang wem
siraiegic objactives

Annual Report and Accounts 2016

Qperation

Maximum opporunily

Base salery

Providas & base lavel of emuneration to
support recrustment and retantion of Execulve
Directors with the necessary axpanence and
axpertise to deliver the Group s strategy

An Exacutive Director’s bese salary Is set on
appointment and reviswad annually or whan
there |2 a changs in position or responsibility

Whan detarmiming an appropdate level of

salary the Committee considers

« Aemunerabion practices within ihe Group

¢ Tha gensral periormance of the Group

« Satarias within the ranges paid by the
companies in the comparator group used
for remumeration benchmarking

= Any ¢hange in scope role and
responsibilitias

* Tha gtanomic anvironment

\ngivicuals who are recnimed or promoted

lo the Board may, on accasion, have ther

salgries St balow the targeted policy leval untt

they bacome established in ther role In such

cases subsequan Increases in salary may be

feghar than the gengral nsas lor employeas

unilil the tanget pasitioning 1s achiaved

The Commitiee ansures that maximum
salary lavels ame sat in ling with
compames of a sirmilar size to McCarthy
& Stone operating in a similar sactor

The companies i the comparator group
are the constituents of the FTSE 250
and sector peer organisahions of

a sivker size

The Comimittes intands to raview the
comparator groups each year and may
add or remove comparvas from the
group as | conswders appropriata Ary
changas to the comparater group wilf be
I 1he sachion headed Implameniation of
Ramunaration Pollcy, in the foliowing
financial year

In general salary increases for Exacutive
Direciors will ba n hna with the ecrease

for employees.

The Company will sat out In the section
aaded imptamantation of Remunerabion
Policy Exscutive Director salarigs for that
year gnd the foltowing vear

Benefits

Provides a bensfils package in lne with
practice relative io its comparator group to
enablg the Company to recrut and retain
Exacutiva Diractors with the axperiance and
axpartise to defiver the Group s strategy

The Executive Drectors lypically recaive
private medical nsurance e insurance and g
car or car gllowance. The Committee retaing
tha fiexibiity lo provde ather banafits

The Committee recogrises the need to
maniain suitable Nexibiidy In the benefits
provded to ansura It Is able ko support the
cbjective of atiracting and retaining personnal
n order to deliver he Group stratagy
Additional bensfits may therefore be offered
such as relocation allowances on recrinitment

The maximsm wil ba set al the cost of
prowding tho benailts described

Penslons

Providaes a pension proviston in fne with
practica mlativa to its comparatar group (@
anable the Company to recrult and retain
Exgtuive Dwectors with the expenance and
axpertisa & defivar the Group's strategy

The Gompany offers a Group Parsonal
Pansion schame Tha Exacutive Diractars are
entitiod to receve a maxynum employer
contnBubon nte tha Group Personal Pensipn
schema of & salary supplamant in sy of
ponson of 20% of basic salary par annum

The maximurm contnibutfon inta the
Graup Parsonal Panmion schama or a
salary supplement in llau of persion wil
e 20% of gross basic salary

Tha Gompany will set out in the saciion
headed Implamentaton of Remuneration
Folicy, i the foflowang financial year tha
pansian contributions for that year for
vach of the Executve Directors
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Elemant of How i suppons the Group s short
fTHINErElion and jong «arm sirategic objaciives  Operaben MRXATHIM OpPOor funity Parforrmance metrics
Annual and The ABP provides a significant  The Committae wil detevmima e The maximum bonus {including  An award under tha ABP 15 subject
Deferred 8onus  incentive to the Executive bonus lo be awardad followang the  any part of the bonus deferred 10 sausfying financial and strategic/
Plan (ABP) Dwuciors inked to end of the relevant financal year into shares) dellverablo under  operatenal performance/personal
achievernent s delvenng the ABP will not exceed periormance conditions and targets
goals that ere clossly allgned  The Company will setoutintha 1509 aof a perticipant s ancual  measured avar g padod of one
with the Group s strategy saction headsd implementation  basa salary financial year

and the creation of value
for sharsholders

in particar, ths ABP supports
the Compeny’s objectvas
allowing the setting of annual
targats based on the business
strategy at the time, meaning
thal & wider range ol
pérformance matrics can

be used that gre refavant

and achievable

The Committae has disergtion
to defer part of tha bonus
aamad n sharas undar

the ABP

The advantags of dafarral 18

+ Increased algrment
between Exacutive Dirgelors
and sharehcldars created
irvough deferred shares
and the increased equity
staka of menagement In
the Co

= Viasting of defarod sharas
arg subjact to an Exacutive
Director 5 continuing
amployment which prowidas
an effactive lock-in

of Remuneration Polcy, in the

following financial year the nature

of the targets and thair weighting
for each year

Delaiis of the pericrmanca

conditions, targets and their level

of satisfaction for {he yeer baing
raported on will be set out in the
Annual Report o Remunaration

The Committee can determing
that part of the bonus eamed
under tho ABP 15 dolivared as
an gward of shares

The maximum value of
daterred sharag ts 50%
of tha bonus samed

Tha portion of borus samad to

be defermed into Company shares
Tor the year being reported on will

b sat out in the Annual Report
on Ramunsration

The rman tems of thess

awards are.

* Mirwmum defarral penod of
thrae years during whch
no parformance conditfons
will apply

« Tha participant 8 continuad
employmant at the end of the
deferral pericd unless he/sha
is a good leaver

The Committee may award
divdend equvalents on thase
sharas 1o the participants to
the extant thal thay vest

The Committes has the
discration to apply a hoiding
penod of two years post vesting
of deferred shares

The ABP contalns clawback and
malus provisions Plaase reler o
page 69 for further datails

Percontage of bonus

maximum sarned for lavels

of performance

» Threshold 25% of
maxirmum bonus

* On targst 50% of
maximum bonus

 Maximum 100% of
maximurr bongys

The annual bonus wik be paid
n cash and dalerred shares

A mimmum of S0% of the bonus shalt

be based on financial performance
maeasures. The Commitiaa will determing
the bonus t0 bae deliverad following the
end of tha relevant finanaial year

The Comnemittee is of the oprvon that
grven the commercial sensitmty afsing
In relation 10 the detaited financial targets
usead lor tha bonus, disclosing precise
targets tor the ABP in advance would
not be in shareholder interasts Targets
pariermance achavad and ewards
rmade will ba published at the end of tha
performance panod so sharaholders can
fully assess the basss for any pay-outs
undar the ABP

In axcapuonal cicumstances the

Commattaa retains tha discration to.

» Change the performance measwos
and targets and the weighting anached
ta the parformance measures
and largets part way through
a partormance year if there s a
significant and matartal eveni whweh
causes tha Committee to balisva the
orlginal measures, weightings and
targets are no longer appropriate

* Make downward of upward
adiustmants to tha amount of banus
earmed resullng from the applicabon
of the performance measuras i tha
Commitiae behave that the bonus
outcomes are not & fair and accurate
refiaciion of business performance

Any adjustments or discretion apphed by
the Committee will oe fully disclosed in
tha following yaar's Remunaraton Report

www mccarthyandstonegroup co uk
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Elemant of
remuneralion

How it supports the Group s ahort
andd long-tesm oK DL

Ox o

Maxumum opportunity

Pariorrnance mairics

LTP

The pupese of the LTI 13

ta incantrase and reward
Exacutive Directors In rlation
to long-term performance
and achievarnant of Group
strategy

This will batter aflign
Exgcutive Direciors intarests
with thg fong-term interests
of the Group and act as a
ratanton machanism

The use of retalive TSR
measuras the success of

the impiementation of the
Group s strategy In delivaring
a return abova our

peer group

The use of three-yesr
£PS and ROCE ensuras
Exacutive Directors ara
focusad on sustainebla
long-term financial
performance

Awards are granted annually
1o Exacutive Diractars in the
form of a candiional share
award or 8 nll Gost option

Datais of tha perfarmancs
conviitions for grants made
in the year and the future
financial year will e set
oul i the Annual Raport
on Remunergtion

Awards wil vest at the end of
2 three-year pertod subject to
* The Executrve Diractor's
contmuad employment
at the date of vasting
+ Satisfaction of the
perlormance condiions

The Committeo may award
dwidand aguivalents on
awards to the extant that
thasa vast

The Committes has the
ciscration to apply & holding
pariod of two yearg post
vasting of LTIP awards

The LTIP contams clawback
and malus provisions
Pigasa refer 1o page 69

for further datails

MNormal annual maximum
vawe of 150% of annual basa
salary based on the market
valia al the dals of grant set
in accordance with the nules
of the LTIP

In exceptional crcumsiances
tha Committae may grant an
award with a maximum of
200% of annual base safary
* 25% of the award will vast
for thrashold performance
= 100% of ihe award wilf vast
for maximum performance

There s straight-hng vestng
between thase points

The performanca conditions for the
FY17 LTIP awards are curulative
EPS ROCE and TSR Tha waightings
of which are cutkined on page 62

The Committae may change the
balance of tha measures, of u3a
diiferant maasuras for subsequent
awards &5 approfyiale

No matarial chenge will be made
(o ths type of pertormance
conditions withourt prior
sharahotder consuliation

In gxcaptional circumstances the

Commiitea retamg the disoraton (o,

+ \ary, substitute or warva the
parformanca conditions appiyig
to LTIP awards o the Gommutiee
considars it appropriate and that
the new parformance conditions
arg degmed reasonable and are
not matanally kess difficult to satishy
than the ordgnal conditions

» Make downward or upward
adjustments 1© the ameamt vesting
under the LTIP regulting from tha
applicaton of tha performance
maasures if the Committes beleve
that the outcomas are not a falr and
pecwate reflaction of business
performanca

All employee
share plans - S1P
and Sharosave

The SIF and Sharasave

ara ali smpioyee share
ownership plans which have
been desyned 1o spcourags
all smployeas {0 bacoms
shareholders in tha Comparny
and tharaby align their
nteresis with sharehokiers

Exacutive Directors arg
eligibia o participats in both
the SIP and Sharesave

The Exacutive Directors shall
be antilled to participate in
any cthar all amployae
arrangement Implementad by
the Company

The maxirmnum lovel of
partiepation set by
legisiation from time to tme

In accordance with the lagistation the
Company may snipose ¢byective
periormance condiions and/or
tongth of service/hours workadAavel
ol remuneration to determine the
level of awards mada under the SIP

Minimum
shareholding
requiremeant

The Commiitee has adopted turmal shargholding guxdslines that wil encourage the Executive Directors 1o buld up over a five-year pencd
and then subsequently hold a shareholding equivalent to a pevcentage of base salary Adharence to these guidelines i3 & condition of
cortfinued participation in the equity ncentive arrangements This requiroment ansuras that the intsrests of Executive Directors and thosse of

sharaholders ars cigsely aligned

Currantly the requirernent is tor alt Exacutive Directors to buld up a sharghoidng equal 1o 200% of salary

The Comnuties retains the drscretion to increase {he sharaholding requiraments
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INustrations of the apphcation of the Policy
The charts below illustrate the remuneration that would be paid to each of the Executive Directors, based on salanes at the start of
FY17, under three different performance scenarios {)) mimmum, (i} an-target, and (i) maximum The table befow these charts sets
out the assumptions used to calculate the elements of remuneration for each of these scenanos The elements of remuneration
have been categonsed mto threa components () fixed, {i)) annual bonus (including deferred bonws), and (i) LTIP

Chref Executiva Officer (Clive Fenton} (£'000)

McCarthy & Stoneplc 67

Chlef Financial Officer (Nick Maddock) (£°000)

Maxemum | 30% 35% 5% 12 Maximum (30% 5% lss% 13281
On targel [42% 25% 1% : 1,445 On-target [a2% 25% 33% 1899
Miramum 509 Murmum | T00%% Ism
Drasd (Bona OLTP Dftea O8onas TLTP
National Cperations Director {John Tonkiss} (£'000)
Maxmum [30% _[35% Jss% 11,276
On larget |42% 25% 33% 1893
Mnwrum 1100% 376
Orbed O8ons LW
Blement Deseription Mirdmum Target Maxmum
Fixed Salary, benefits' and penston  Included Included Included
Annual borus  Annual bonus (ncluding No annual vanable 50% of maxmum bonus  100% of maximum bonus
deferred shares)
Maximum opporturty of
150% of satary
LTP Award under the LTIP No muitipe year vanable 65% of the maximum 100% of the maximurn
award award
Maximum annual award of
150% of salary
Notas.

1 Based on Fri6 bensfits paynents as per the Single Figure Tatle The actual tenefits paid tor FY$7 will only ba known al the and of the financa) year
2 See page 74 for the Single Figute Tabie and the accompany'ng notes

3

dance with the ragu!

shara prica growih has o Deen inciuded In addition divdend equivalents have ndi been added 10 the deoferred shares and LTIP awards

www.mccarthyandstonegroup co uk
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Pay at risk
The charts below set oul the single figure for each Execubive Director based on whether the elernenis rernamn 'at nsk' For exampla

+ Payment is subject to continuing employment for a period (deferred shares and LTIP awards)
* Parformance canditions have 1o still to be satisfied (LTIP awards)
s Elenents are subject to malus or clawback for a perlod, over which the Company can recover sums paid or withhold vasting

Further details of what tnggers clawhack or malus are set out on page 69,

Figures have been calculated based on target performance (fixed slements phus 50% of the maxamum annual bonus and 65% of
the maximum LTIP} The charts hava besn based on the same assumptions as set out on the previous page for the diustrations of
the application of the Remuneration Policy

I N

Chartremoved

1
I

Chartremoved

1
S

Chart removed
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Malus and clawback

in ine with best practice, the ABP and the LTIP include malus and clawback provisions in order to ensure that payments
are not made to Executive Directors in cicumstances which are subsequently desmed to not have warranted a payment
{or have warranted a reduced payment)

Malus 18 the adustment of unpaid bonus and deferred shares under the ABP, outstanding LTI awards and deferred bonus
shares as a rasuft of the occumence of one or more crcumstances isted helow The adiustrment may result in the value baing
reduced tc zero

Clawback is the recovery of payments or vested awards under the ABP and vested LTIP awards as a result of the occurrence of
one or more circurnstances histed below Clawpack may apply 1o alt or part of a participant's award and ray be effected, among
other means, by requinng the transfer of shares, payment of cash or recluction of awards or bonuses

The circumstances in which malus and clawback could apply are as follows:

+ The discovery of a matenal misstatement resulting In an adjustment m the audited consolidated accounts of the Company

¢ The discavery that the assessment of any performance target or condition in respect of an ABP or LTIP award was based on
grror, or inaccurate or misteading iInformation

+ The discovery that any information used to datermine the number of ordinary shares subject to an ABP or LTIP award was
based ¢gn error, or inaccurate or misleading information

s The action or conduct of a holder of an ABP or LTIP award which, in the reasonable opirion of the Committee, amounted to
fraud or gross misconduct

» Events or bahaviour of a nolder of an ABP or LTIP award teading to the censure of the Company by a reguiatory authonty or
having a significant detnmental impact on the reputation of the Group, prowded that the Commitiee i3 salisfied that the relevant
holder of an ABP or LTIP award was respansible for tha censure or reputatronal damage and that the censure or reputational
damagae is atinbutable to tim

Malus and ¢lawback may be operated under the ABP and LTIF, as set out below

Annyal Bonus Plan - cash Anvwal Bonus Plan - deferred shaves Long Term Incentiva Plan

Malus Up to the date of payment of To the end of the three-year To the end of the three-year
a cash bonus defarral penod vasting penod

Clawback Three years post the bonus n/a Two years post vesting
deterrnination

The rutes of the Plans prowide sufficient powers to enforce malus and clawback where required

Discretion
The Committes has disCrebon in several areas of policy as set out in this report

The Committee may also exercise operatronal and administrabve discrations under relevant Plan rules approved by shareholders
as set out in those rules and in relation to the SIP and Sharesave, as permitted by the relevant legisiation In addition, the
Committee has the ciscretion to amend the Polrcy with regard to minor or admrnistrabive matters where it would be, in the opinion
of tha Committes, disproportionate to segk or await shareholder approval

Any use of discretion will, where relevant, be explained in the Annual Report on Remunaration far the following year

It 1s the Comrmittee’s mtention that carmmitrnents made in bhe with its policres pnor to Admission will be honoured, even if the
fulfiiment of such commutments ts post the Company's first AGM following Adrnission, notwithstanding that they may be mconsistent
with the Pohcy

Recruitment policy

The Gompany’s principle 18 that the remunaration of any new recruit will ba assessed n ine with the same prncinles as for the
Executive Drectors, as set oul in the Policy Howaver, the flexibility prowided by the recruitment palicy will alfow the Company to
attract the best tatent by providing an appropnate package The Commuttes 15 mindful that it wishes to avoid paying more than it
consiclers necessary to secure a preferred candidate of the appropnate calibre and vath tha appropnate expenence needed for
the role In setting the remuneration for new recruits, the Committee will have regard to guidelines and sharehoider sentmant
regarding one-off or enhanced short-term o long-term incentive payments as well as gvng consideration for the appropnatenass
of any performance measures associated with an award
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Directors’ Remuneration Report continued

The Comipany's detaled policy when setting remuneration for the appamntment of new Directars 1S summansed in the table below

Ramuneration glarman Quervaw of racrutment policy

Ponciples The Company's pnnciple 1 that the remuneration of any new recrutt will be assessed in iine
with the same pnnciples as for the Executive Directors

Whaera an existing emplayee s promoted to the Board, the poiicy set out above would apply
from the date of promotion but there would be no retrospective application of the Policy in
relation to subsisting incentive awards or remunerabon arrangements Accordingly, prevailing
elaments of the remuneration package for an existing employee would be honoured and form
part of the angeing remuneration of the person concerned These would be disclosed to
sharehaclders in the Remunaration Report for the relevant financial year

Salary, benefits and penston ~ These will ba set in ine with the Policy for existing Executive Directars

Annual bonus Maximum annual participation will be set in lne with the Company’s Policy for existing
Executive Diractors and will not excead 150% of salary
LTiP Maximum annual participation will be set in line with the Company’s Policy for existing

Executive Directors and will not exceed 150% of salary in normal crecumstances and 200% of
salary in exgceptional circumstances

‘Buyout’ of incentives forfeited Where the Committee determines that the individual circumstances of recruitment justifies the
on cessation of employment  prowvision of a buyout, the equnalent value of any incentives that will be forfeited on cessation
of an Executive Director's previous employment wiil be calculated taking into account
the following
» The proportion of the performance penod completed on the date of the Exacutive
Director’s cessation of employment
¢ The performance conditions attached to the vesting of these ncentivas and the ikelhood
of them being satisfied
* Any other terms and condittions having 2 matenal effect on ther value

The Committee rmay then grant up to the same value of any incentives forferted, where
possible, under the Company's incentive plans To the extent that it 1s not possible or practical
10 provide the buyout withun the terms of the Company’s existing ncentive plans, a bespoke
arrangement will be used

Maximum variable The maximum vanable remuneration which may be granted in normal circumstances
remuneration {excluding buyouts} 1s 300% of salary (350% of salary f the maximum LTIP award made)

The Company's Policy when setting fees for the appaintment of new Non-Executive Directors is to apply the Policy which applies
to the current Non-Executive Directors

Payment for loss of office

The Committee will honour Executive Directors' contractual entitlements Service contracts do not contain iquidated damages
clauses if a contract is to be terminated, the Committee will determing such mitigation as it considers fair and reasonable n each
case There 1s no agreement between the Company and its Executive Directors or employees, providing for compensaton for loss
of office or employment that occurs because of a takeover bid

The Committee reserves the nght fo make addiional payments where such payments aré made in good faith in discharge of an
existing legal obligation for by way of damages for breach of such an obligation), or by way of settlement or compromise of any
claim arising n connection with the termination of an Executive Director's office or employment
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Tregumant o cessaton of amplaymaent

Principle

The Committee will honour Executive Directors’ contractual entit'emnents If a contract Is to be terminated,
the Committae will determine such mrtigation as it considers fair and reasonable in each case

Newly appomnted Executive Directors will not have a notice penod of longer than 12 months

Salary, benefits
and pension

These will be paid dunng the notice penod The Company has discretion to make a payment as set out
above In addiion, provision 15 retained io make a payment in lisu of notice

The Company 1s entrtled to dismiss an Executive Director without notice In certain speciiied
crrecumnstances, such as gross misconduct or following any serious or persistent breach of any of the
terms of the refevant service contract

ABP cash awards

Good leavers® Performance condhions will be measured at the bonus measurement date Where the
ndividual 1s ehgible for a bonus, 1t will normally be pro-rated for tha penod worked dunng the financial year

Othar leavers No bonus payable for year of cessaton

Discretion: The Commiitee has the following glerments of discretion

* To datermune that an axacutiva 18 a good leaver [t s the Commutiee’s ntention only to use this
discretion in circumstances where there 1s an appropnriate business case which will be exptamed
in full to shareholders

* To determine whether to pro-rate the bonus for time The Committee's normal poilcy 1s that ot
will pro-rate bonus for time it 1s the Gomwuttea’s intention to use discretion ot 1o pro-rate
n circumstances where there 1$ an appropnate business case which will be explained m full
to shareholders

ABP share awards

Good leavers All subsishng deferred shares will vest at the end of the onginal deferral penod
Other leavers Lapse of any unvested deferred shares

Discretion: The Commutiee has the following elements of discretion

+ To determine that an executive is a gaod leaver It 1s the Cornmittee’s intention only to use this
discrehon in orcumstances where there s an appropnate business case which will be explaned
n full to shareholders

+ To vest deferred shares at the end of the onginal deferral panod or & the date of cessation The
Committee will make this determination depending on the type of good leaver reason resulting
in the cessation

« To dstarmine whether to pro-rate the maxamum number of shares for the time from the date of grant
to the date of cessaton The Comnuttee's normal policy is that it will not pro-rate awards for time
The Committee will determing whether to pro-rate based on the circumstances of the Executive
Drirecior's departure

LTIP

Good leavers. Pro-rated for time and performance in respect of each subsisting LTIP award
Other leavers' Lapse of any unvested LTIP awards

Duscretion. The Committee has the following elements of discretion

» To determme that an execubive 15 a good leaver it 1s the Commitiee’s intention only to use this
discration in circumstancas where thare i an appropnate business case which will be explained
tn full to shareholders

* To measure performance over the onginal perfarmance penod or at the date of cessation The
Committes wilt make this dstermmation depending on the type of good leaver reason rasutting
mn the cessation

+ To determine whether o pro-rate the maximum numnber of shares for the tme from the date of
grant to the date of cessatton The Commitiee’s normal policy 1s that i will pro-rate awards for tme
Itis the Cornmitieg’s ntention to use discretion not to pro-rate In circumstances where thare 1s an
appropriate business case which will be explasned in full to shareholiders

Other contractuat
ablhigations

There are no other contractual prowsions other than those set out above agread pnor to 27 June 2012

A good leaver reason is defined as cessation in the following creumstances

Daath

li-health

Injury or disabihty
Redundancy
Retrement

Employing comparny ceasing to be a Group cormpany
Transfer of smployment to a comparty which is not a Group company
At tha discretion of the Commutiea (as descnbad above)

Cessation of employment in ¢circumstances other than those set cul above 1s cessation for other reasons and will be treated as

‘bad leavers'
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Directors’ Remunerction Report continued

Change of control
The Cormmittee's policy on the vesting of iIncentives on a change of control 1s summansed below

Change of conirol dacrebon
Pro-rated for ttme and performance to the date of the changs of control

nama of Incenave Plan
ABP cash awards

The Committee has discretion regarding whether to pro-rate the bonus for ime The Commuttee's
policy 1s that it will normally pro-rate the bonus for ime Itis the Committes'’s miention to use its
discretion not to pro-rate in circumstances only whers there) s an appropnate business case
which will be explained in full to shareholders

Subsisting deferred share awards will vest on a change of control

ABP deferred share awards
Tne Committee has discretion regarding whether to pro-rate the award for ume The Committes's

normal pokcy 1S that it will not pro-rate awards for tme The Commuttee will make this
determination depending on the circumstances of the change of control

LTIP

pro-rated to time and performance

The number of shares subject to subsisting LTIP awards will vest on a change of control,

In normal circumsatances the Committee will pro-rate for ime The Commuttee will only waive
prorating in exceptional crcumslances where it views the change of control as an event

which has provided exceplional enhanced valug to shareholders which will be fully explamned
to shareholders

in all cases the performance condions must be satsfied

Non-Executive Director remuneration
How o suppoarts the Graup g

Bament of short and long-term sirategic Partormance
ramuneration oDyEciives Operation Opportusnty fmeuics
Non-Executive  Provides ailevel of flees  The Board is responsible for The fees for Non-Exacutive Nong
Director and to support recrutment  setting the remuneration of the Directors and the Chairman
Charman fees  and retention of Non-Executive Directors The are set in lne with the
Non-Executive Commities 1s responsible for comparator group
Directors and @ setting the Chairman’s fees
Charman with the In general the lavel of fee
necessary expensnce  Non-Exscutive Directors are paid an ncrease for the Non-Exacutive
to advise and assist annual fee and addibonal fees for Oirectors and the Chawman
with establishing and chairmanship of Committees The will be set taking accourt of
monitonng the Group's  Chawrman does not receve any any change m responsibiity
strategic objectives, addiiona! fees for memberstwp and will take nto account
of Committees general rise In salanes across
the UK workforce
Fees arg reviewed annually based
on equivalent rolss In the comparator The Company will pay
group used to review salanes pad to reasonable expenses incurred
the Exacutive Directors Fees are by the Non-Executve Directors
set at brogadly the medhan of the and Chairman and may settle
comparator group any tax incurred in ralatron
to these
MNon-Executive Directors and the
Chairmar do not participate in
any variable remuneration or
benefits arrangements
Executive Director contracts and letters of appointment for Chawrman and Non-Executiva Diregtors
Executive Directors Notwoe panods Cormponsaion prowisons
Name Date of sarvice contract Nabwa of contract Frorn Company From Diractor {or earty terrmination
Chve Fenton 30 January 2014 Rolling 12 months 12 months At the discretion of
Nick Maddock 9 August 2011 Rolling 12 menths 6 months the Committes
John Tonkiss 21 January 2014 Roling 12 months 6 rmonths
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Non-Executive Directors

Data of lattar of
Name apponiment
John Whire 24 Septernber 2013
Frank Nelson 11 November 2013
Mike Parsons 28 Cctober 2013
Geeta Nanda 4 March 2015

The Commiites’s poficy for setting notice penods 1s that a 12-month pencd will apply for Executive Directors

The Non-Executive Directors of the Company (including the Chairman) do not have service contracts The Non-Executive
Directors are appointed by letters of appointment  Each independant Non-Executive Directar's term of office runs for a
three-year perod

The terms of the Non-Executive Directors' posttions are subject to therr re-election by the Company's sharehoiders at the
AGM and to re-election at any subseguent AGM at which the Nen-Executive Direciors stand for re-electhion

All Directors will be put forward for re-election by sharehoiders on an annual basis

The service contracts and the lstters of appaintrment of the Directors are available for inspection at the Company’s registered
office durnng normal office hours

Statement of considarations of emplayment candttions elsewhere in the Group
The Poticy for all employees 1s determined in terms of best practice and ensunng that the Group s able to attract and retain the
best pecple This principle 1s followed m the development of our Policy

Tha remuneration strategy of the Company has been designed to ensure all employees share i #s success through performance-
related remuneration and share ownership On [PO the LTIP was introduced for Executive Directors and other selected members
of senior management Awards under the LTIP will provide alignment between sanior leaders and our sharsholders based on
overall performance of the business

For all employess, the Gompany has adapted the Sharesave and tha SIP Under these Plans, all amployees have the apportunity
to purchase shares in the Company subject to certan restnctions

The Company does not use remuneration CoMPanson measurements nor have employses been consulted cirectly on the Policy
tn sgiting ihe Policy for Orrectors, the pay and condiions of other ernployees of the Group are taken nto account, Inciuding any
base salary increasss awarded

The Committee is provided with data on the remuneration structure for management level tiers below the Executive Drectors,
and uses this information to ensure consistency of approach throughout the Group

Link to objectives
The following table demonstrates how key objectives are reflected consistently i plans operating at all fevels wathin the Group

Objactives
Long term
vailue craation
Strategcand  (Bncowagad
Financial operational  through equity Share
Pian Purpase Ebgublinty porfommance goals retantion) ownershp
Sharaesave/ To broaden share cwnershipy  All employass
SIP and share in corporate success
over the medwm temn 4 s
ABP Incentrvise and reward short-  Executive Directors, senor
term performance At semor  executives, semor managers
level an element of bonus 1 and managers
deferrad In shares 7/ v 7/ v
LTIP Incentivise and reward long-  Executive Directors and
term performance senior executives e v v v
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Directors’ Remuneration Report continued

Statement of consideration of shareholder views
The Committee takes the views of the shareholders senously and these views are taken into account n shapwng the Policy and
practice Shargholder views are considerad when evaluatng and setting the remuneration strategy and the Committea commits to

consuling with key shareholders pnor to any significant changes to its Policy

The Committee consulted with the Company's key shareholders along with the Investment Assocration and the Instilutional
Shareholder Services on the proposed Paolicy set out in this report

Annual Report on Remuneration

Single total figure of remuneration (audited)

Executive Directors {audited)
The table below sets out the single total figure of remuneration and breakdown for each Executive Owector in respect of FY16

Comparalive Tigures for FY15 have not been provided because of the change in circumstances as a resuit of tha listing The
Committee does not believe that the remuneration payable n its earlier ygars as a private company bears comparatve vaiye to
that which will be paid post-fPC In the FY17 report comparative information will be prowded

Taxabls
Singla figure table Pariod Salary banafits’ Bonus? Lne Fanslon* Tedal
Clive Fenton FY16 £467,617 £27.407 £61,750 n/a £71,250 €£628,024
Nick Maddock FY16  £288,781 £21,156 - n/a £54996 ©364,933
John Tonkiss Fy1e £229,445 £15,782 £36,400 na £42990 £324,617

1 Seo ssclion balow seiling out details ¢f the benefits prowdad
2 Dotals of the bonus targets \hew favel of sahsiaClion and (he resuling bonus BAmed are sat oul Delow Nick Madoock s not elgible Toe an annual bonus as per the roies of

the McCarihy & Stong ABP as he wil ba under notice when the bonus wil ba mags

3 Fist LTIP award made on 25 Novernber 2015 No LTIP award waa aligible io vast n FYi6
4 Compnsas the vaive of Group Personal Pension schema contnbutens and salary suppiements n Neu of pansion Sag nota on the lollewng pegs for further details

Taxable benefits (audited)
Benefits in the year comprised a company car or campany car allowance, Iife assurance and private medical insurance

Annual bonus {(audited}
In respect of FY16, the bonus awards payahie to Executwe Directors were agreed by the Committee having reviewed the

Company’s results Details of the targets used to determine bonuses in respect of FY16 and the extent to which they were
satisfied are shown in the table below These figures are inciuded in the single figure table

Percentage Annwgl bonus value achreved’
Thrashold Targat Maximum of maximum
pedormance perfmence  perfommance Actual  perfomance Civa Nick John
Parformance condiion Walghting required required requirsd performance achieved Fenton  Maddock Tonkiss
Underlying operating proiit 70% £1193m £1280m £1387m £1072m 0% - - -
Cash flow 0% {£837m) (£587m) (€33 7m) £48 4m 100% £61,750 - £36,400
Land exchanges 10% 88 95 100 65 0% - - -
Customer satisfaction 10% AN% 93% 95% 0% 0% - - -
Total 100% - - - - 10% £61,750 - £36,400

1 Under the terms of the FY16 annual bonus  25% for aach slemant « payable for achieviy the tiveshold pertormance 50% 15 payable for achigwng larget performance
wcraasing to 100% for actuevang mamum performance Achlevemants betwaen these points are calcutated on a strakght-ing basis Bonus up 10 100% of salary i paid In
cash with any bonus above 100% of satary being paid in shares which are deferred for three years subjoct 1o continued employment As tha FY16 oulcoma is beiow 106% of

salary thare is no bonus deferral
2 MWick Maddock is not oligible for an annual bonus as per the rules of the McCarthy & Stone ABP as he wil be undar notice when tha borus will ba paxd

No discrenon was exercised by the Commities in relation to the cutcome of the annuat bonus awards
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Lang-term incentives awarded (audited)
Awards under the LTIP were made on 25 November 2015 on the foliowing basis
Basts of Mazamum
award percantage of
Number grantad % of award  the face value
ofshares (¥ ofbasc  Facevalue vesting at that could  Parformance
Executiva Directors awarded salary) of gward’ thrashokl vast peniod
Clive Fenton 263,888 100% £612,220 25% 100% 3 years
Nick Maddock 166,666 100% £386,665 25% 100% 3 years
John Tonkiss 155,565 100% £360,888 25% 100% 3 years
1 Face value calcutated usng share price at dats of grant (£2.32 on 25 Novamber 2016) As outfined on grant, the number of awarté over Shares was calcutatad by reference to
the Company's IPO ofier price of ©1 80 as parmiited under the nuies of the LTIP and referred o m the PO prospectus.
Face value calculated using share price at date of grant
The awards were granted as ni-cost share options and vesbng will be sutect 10 achieving a chalienging shding scale of EFS, ROCE
and relative TSR against a bespoke group of houssbuilders. The performance schedule for these measures 1s as follows
Hoasure Weighting Threshold performante Maxdriunn performance
Cumulative EPS 30% 614p 69 8p
Fy18 ROCE 30% 22% 25%
Relative TSR’ 40% Equal to index Index + 75% pa

1 The TSA comparator group ndex comprses the unweighiod avarage TSA of the laliowang housebulders Bamatt, Bovis, Ballway, Crost Nicholson Persimmon, Redrow
and Taylor Wimpey

Pension entitlements
The Group operates a Group Personal Pension schema under which Executive Directors are entitled to receive contnbutions of up

to 20% of salary
The Group does not cumrently operate a defined benefit scheme

Non-Executive Directors (audited)

The table below sets out the single total figure of remuneration and breakdown for each Non-Executive Drrector For similar
reasons to the single figure table for Executive Directors, no comparative information has been prowided for FY15 In the Fyi17
report comparative information will be provided

FY16 taxable
Non Exegulive Direciors FY16 faes benafits Roles
John White £209,083 £2.334 Non-Executive Chairman
Frank Neison £68,360 - Senwor independent Non-Exacutive Director
Mike Parsons £60,322 - Independent Non-Executive Director
Geeta Nanda £52.283 - independent Non-Executive Director

Payments to past Directors/payments for loss of office (audited)
There ware no payments i the financial year

Statement of Directors’ shareholding and share interests (audited)
Directors’ interests in share awards
The outstanding LTIP and Sharesave awards for the Executive Directors are showrn in the table below

Oatg on
Awards which award
Numbar of lapsed  Number of vasts/
awards held Awards Awards curing the  awards hokd Exsrcise bacomes
Director Plan Dats of grant at 111115 granied vastad year at3i 816 pnca () exercisaDie  Expwy dats
Chve
Fanton LTiP 25115 - 263,888 - - 263,888 Nil 251118 251125
Shargsava 101215 - 10,752 - - 10,752 1674 280118 280719
Nick
Maddock LTIP 251115 - 186,666 - - 166566 Ml 251118 251128
Sharesave 101215 - 10,752 - - 10,752 1674 280119 280719
John
Tonkiss  LTIP 251115 - 155,555 - - 155,555 NI 251118 251125
Sharesave 101215 - 10,752 - - 10,752 1674 280119 280719
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Directors’ Remuneration Report continued

Diractors’ shareholdings
At the end of FY16, tha Executive Drectors had each met ther shareholding requirements A summary of ther shareholding

mcluding unvested awards is provided i the table below

Shares halt Sharey Opuons
Unvested
LTIP {rd-cast
ophions
Sharaholding Subect to Mot subject to subjectio  Unvestad  Sharsholding
raquirament SmrShOUDQ Benoficilally performance performance  Vestedbut performance  Sharesave  requismant
Directors (% salary) salany) owned condiions? conditons  ungxercisad  condibons) options met?
Executive Directors
Chve Fenton 200% B24% 1,651,311 - - - 263888 10,752 Yes
Nick Maddock 200% 676% 825,361° - - - 166,666 10,752 Yes
John Tonkiss 200% 536% 578,685 - - - 1555585 10,752 Yes
Non-Executive Directors
John Whie nfa - 1,650,192 nfa n/a n/a nfa nfa nva
Frank Nelson n/a - 173270 n/a nfa n/a n/a n/a nfa
Mike Parsons nfa - 173,270 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
Geseta Nanda n/a - - n/a n/a n/a na n/a n/a

1 Asat 31 Aygust 2016 Thisis based on a closing shams price of £2 043 and the year-end saisnes of the Exasutiv Dractors Values not calculated for Non-Exacutive DireClors
as they are fot subjact 10 sharenviding requVemests

2 LTIP awards ware granted In the form af nd-price sham opiions
3 Sice year end Nick Macidock has bought an addtional 87 shares twough the SIP There have been no other changes io the shareholcings above

Fees retained for external non-executive directorships
Executve Orectors may hold postwons in other companies as Non-Executive Directors and retam the foes

Clive Fenton, Nick Maddock and John Tonkiss do not hold any extemal directorships

Companson of overall performance and pay
The graph below shows the value of £100 nvested in the Company’s shares since listing compared with the FTSE 250 index
The graph shows the Total Shareholder Return generated by both the movement i share valug and the reinvestment over

the same perod of dividend income

As the Company is currently & congtituent of the FTSE 250, the Committee considers this an appropnate ndex This graph
has been calculated in accordance with the regulations 1t should be noted that the Comparny Iisted on 11 November 2015 and
therefore the companson 1s only for the period from 11 Novembrer 2015 to 31 August 2016

N B

Chart removed

Chief Executive Officer historne remuneration

The table on the following page sets out the total remuneration delivered to the Chisf Executive Officer over the fast year valued
using the methodology applied to the single total figure of remuneration

The Commities does not beheve that the remuneration paid in s sarlier years when the Company was prvale bears any
comparative value ta that which will be pad post-IPQ, therefore the Committes has chosen to disciose remuneration only for
FY16 Inthe FY17 Report comparative information will be prowded
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Chiat Exacutive Otficar Frig Cur main responsibilities are to
Total Single Figure {£) 628,024 + Determine and agree with the Board the broad Policy for

the Exacutive Directors and other selected members of

Annual bonus payment level achieved the senior management team
{% of maximum opportunity) 0%« Undertake perodic reviews 1o assess the appropnateness
LTIP vesting tevel achigved! and refevance of the Policy ensunng alignmant with best
(%9 of maximum oppor[unlly, 0% practice pnncipies of the UK Comorate Governance Code

1 Neavard has vested under the LTIP

Relative impaortance of tha spend on pay

The table below sets out the relative importance of spend on
pay in FY18 The Company did not exist in 1its current form
dunng FY15 and therefore there are no retevant comparalors
for FY15 All figures provided are taken from the relevant
company accounts In the FY17 report comparative imformation
will be provided

Distursements

from proft in FY18

{€m)

Profit distnbuted by way of dwdend 242

Total tax coninbutions 307
Overall spend on pay Including Executive

Owectors 633

Change in the Chief Executive Officer's remuneration
comparead with employses

The Committea does not believe that the remuneration payable
in #s earkier years as a prvate company bears comparatve
value to that which will be pard post-IPO In the FY17 report
thig inforrnation will be provided

Statement of unplementation of the Palicy \n FY17
Sea table on page 62

Consideration by the Directors of matters relating to
Diractors’ remuneration

The Board has delegated to the Comumittes, under agreed
terms of reference, responsibilty for the Policy and for
deterrmning specific packages for the Executive Diractors and
other selected members of the seruor management teamn Prior
to the establishrment of the Cormmittee, remuneration dacisions
were made by the Board The Company censults with key
shareholders in respect of the Policy and the introduction of
rnew mcentive arrangements

= Consider the relative importance of the Group's expenditure
on pay compared to the Group's profits, dividends and
tax pad

* Review any major changes in employae benefit structuras
throughout the Cormpany or Group and to admnister all
aspects of any share scheme

The Comrnittee receives assistance from the HR Dwector and
the Company Secretary, who will attend mestings by invriation,
except when 1ssues relating to ther own remunerahon are
being discussed The Chief Executive Officer, Chref Financral
Officer and the National Operations Director attend by invitation
On 0Ccasions

Adwvisers to the Remuneration Committee
Following a selection process carned out by the Board
pnor to and then following the 1IPO of the Company,
the Commuttee has engaged the servicas of PwC as
independent remuneration adviser

Dunng the financial year PwC atvised the Committee on all
aspects of the Policy for Executive Directors and selected
rmembers of the semor management tsam PwC also provides
certan other non-audit services to the Group and the
Committes 1s satisfied that no confiict of interest exists

or existed it the provision of these services

PwC is a member of the Remuneration Consultants Group
and 15 a signatory to its voluntary code of conduct which is
designed to ensure objective and independent advice is given
to remunerabon committees Fixad fees of £24,000 (FY15 Enil)
were provided 1o PwC dunng the year in respect of
remuneration advice given to the Committee

Statement of voting at AGM
The 2017 AGM will be the first AGM of the Company since
hsting and therefore there 1s no fystonc voting information

Mike Parsons

Remuneration Committee Chairman
14 November 2018

W\ Q"”“/":w:'—*
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Directors’ Report

The Directors present ther report for the financral year ended
31 August 2016

Caorporate governance statement

The inforrmaton that fulfits the requirements of the corporate
governance staternen! for the purposes of the FCA's Disclosure
Guidance and Transparancy Rules can he found m the corporata
governance information on pages 50 to 80 (all of which fornsg
part of this Directors’ Report} and in this Directors' Report.

Cross-references to other sections of the document
DOisclosures that are in other sectrons include

Subject matter Section and pagoe referanco

Employee dversity and inclusivity  Strategic Report, page 47
Empioyee involvemnent Strategic Report, page 48
Greenhouse gas emissions Strategic Report, page 45

The only disclosure requied under LR 9 8 4R which 1s
applcable to the year under review 1s detalls of long-term
mcentive schemes, which can ba found on page 60 of the
Directors’ Remuneration Report

Duwndends

An intenm dnadend of 1 0p per ordinary share was paid on

31 May 2016 to those shareholders on the register on 29 April
2016 Subject to shareholder approval at the 2017 AGM, the
Directars are proposing a final dvidend far the financial year
ended 31 August 2016 of 3 5p per ordinary share This bnngs
the total dividend for the year to 4 5p

Duwractors

The names of the Directors who were Directors at year end
and up to the date of this report are on pages 50 and 51 Nils
Albert served as a Director untl 21 October 2015 when he
resigned from the Beard Details of the Directors’ interests in
the share capital of the Company are sst out in the Directors’
Remuneration report on page 76 in accordance with the UK
Corporate Governance Code, all the Direclors will be seeking
ra-alaction at the 2017 AGM

The powers given to the Directors are contained in the
Company's Articies of Assotiahion and are subject o relevant
legisiation and, in cartam crcumstances, including in refation
to the issuing or buying back by the Company of its shares,
subjact to authonty beng given to the Directors by
sharsholders m general meeting The Arbicles of Assomiation
also govern the appointmeant and replacerment of Directors

Articles of Association

The Articles of Association may be amended m accordance
with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006 by way of a
special resoiuton of the Company's shareholders

Arrwal Report and Accounts 2016

Share capital and control
Details of the Company's share capital are on page 104 in note
26 to the consolidated financial statements

At 31 August 2015, there were 1,905,549,751 ordiary

shares of 20p nominal value inssue The share caphal was

regrganised i advance of the Company's Adrrussion to the

London Stock Exchange

a) the normmal value of the ordinary shares was reduced from
20pto2p

b) a further 43,706,526 ordinary shares ware allotted

¢} the shares were consolidated so that four ordinary shares of
2p nominal value became one ordinary share of 8p nominal
value, gving a total of 487,314,089 25 shares, and

d) a further 50,000,000 ordinary shares were allatted on
11 November 2015

Al 31 August 2018, there were 537,314,069 25 ordinary shares
of 8p nominal value inissue A resolution to authonse the
Company to buy back and cancel the quarter share will be put
to shareholders at the forthcoming AGM

The Company has one class of shares ordinary shares of 8p
norminal value, each of which cames the nght to one vote at
general meetings of the Company Shares may be issued with
such nghts and resinchions as the Company may, by orinary
resolution, decrde or, If there is no such resolution or so far as
it does nat make specific provision, as the Board may decide

There are no restnctions on the transfer of our ordinary
shares and there are no shares carrying special nghts with
regards to control of the Company The Company is not
aware of any agreements between shareholders that may
resull i restictions on the transfer of shares or on voting
nghts There are no specific restriclions on the size of a
holding or on the exercise of voting nghts which are governed
by the Articles of Association and prevaning legistation No
person has any special nghts of control over the Company's
share capital and all issued shares are fully paict

Shareholder authonty will be sought each year to authonse
the Dwectors to aliot new shares and to disapply pre-emption
nghts and to make market purchases of our ordinary shares

By way of a special resolution dated 26 October 2015
{prioy to Adriussion), shargholders authonsed the Comparny
to allot shares other than to existing shareholders up to

a maximum nomina value equal to 10% of the nominal
vaiue of the Company's issued share capital mmmediately
faliowing Adrmission, beng €£4,298,512 nominal value
equal lo 53,731,406 shares Dunng FY16 options over
6,040,285 shares were granted The Dwectors are

sesking renewal of the authority at the forthcoming AGM,
n accordance with relevant institutional gudehnes

Purchase of own shares

By way of a special resolution dated 26 October 2015
{pror to Admrssion), shareholders authonsed the
Company to purchase i the market a maximum of

14 99% of the Company's 1ssued shares No shares have
been purghased under this authonty The Directors are
seelkung renswal of the authonty at the farthcoming AGM,
in accordanca with refevant institutional guideiinas
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Substantial shareholdings

As at 31 August 2016, we had been notified, in accordance
with the rules set out in the FCA’s Disclosure Guidance and
Transparency Rules sourcebook, of the following interests In
our ordinary share capial

Number % atarast

oishares  invoting
Name of notifying entity/nature of hokfing disclosad rights
Anchorage Capital Master Offshore
Limited {indirect)’ 59,176,445 nm
Aviva plc and subsidranes (indirect} 41,202,954 767
Standard Life lnvestments (Holdings)
Limited (indirect) 35,262,778 656
FIL Limited (indirect) 32,196,145 599
The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc
{indhrect) 24,383,723 454
BHHL TPG Holdings (dwect) 20,886,456 389
Canada Pension Plan Investment
Board {dhrect) 20,150,000 375

In the period from 31 August 2016 to the date of this report,
we receved the following notificabions

Number % interast

of shares invoting
Name of notifying entity/nature of noklng disclosad nohls
The Goldman Sachs Group, inc
{indirect) 23,498,640 437
Anchorage Capital Master
Offshore, Ltd (iIndirectl? 66,136,100 1231
Canada Penston Pian Investment
Board {direct} 29,084,082 541
FIL Limited (indirect) 30.545,791 568

1 Wchudes Conracts for trffarence represanting 18,458 788 voling nghts {3 44%)
2 inciudes contracts for difierence representing 25 418 443 volng rghts (4 73%)

Information provided to the Company under the Disclosure
Guidance and Transparency Rules s publicly availlable via the
regulatory Inforrnation service and on the Company’s website

Significant agreements (change of control)

The Company has in place a revolving credit faciity dated

19 December 2014 {as amended by an amendment letter dated
10 February 2015 and further amended by a supplemental
agreement dated 23 May 2016) The revoiving credit factlity

and our jomt veniure with Somerset Care refating to YLMS
both contan termunation provisians that could be tnggered

n certain circumstances, including if any person or group

of persons acting in concert gamn control of the Company

There are no agreements batween the Group and s Qwectors
and employees providing for cormpensation for loss of office
or employment (whether through resignation, purported
redundancy or otherwise) in the event of a takeover bid

Directors’ insurance and indemnities

The Group mantans Directors and officers' hability insurance
which provides cover for any legal action brought aganst

the Diractors

Tha Group has also granted indemrities to each of the current
Directors of the Company and its mamn trading subsidiary to
tha exient permited by law Qualfying third-party indemnity
prowsions were in force dunng the year ended 31 August 2016
and continug to remain in force
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Palitical donations

By way of a special resolution dated 26 October 2015
{prior to Admussion), sharehoiders authonsed the
Company to make political donabens and political
expenditure up to a maximum of £100,000 Dunng the
year the Group did not make any political donations or
incur any pohical expenditure The Direclors are seeking
renewal of the authonty at the forthcoming AGM, In
accordance with relevant insututional gudelnes

Financial instruments

Details of the Group's financial Instruments and 1its exposres
o price risk, credit nsk, iquidity risk and cash fow nsk are set
out in note 31 to the financial stataments on pages 106 to 108

Going concem

The Directors have assessed the Group’s business activities
angd the factors hikely to affect our future performance in ight of
current and anbicipated economic condiions The Directors are
coniident that thay are satisfied that the Group has adequate
resources m placa to continue in operational existence for a
penod of at least 12 menths from the date of approval of the
financial statements For this reason, they have cantinyed to
adopt the going concern basis in prepanng the Annual Report
and financial statemants

The Drectars are alag required to prowde a broader
assessment of viability over a longer penod, which can be
found on page 38

In making the going concem statermnent and the wability
statement, the Directors have taken into account the ‘Guidance
on Risk Management, Internal Controls and Related Financial
and Business Reporting’ 1ssued by the Financial Reporting
Couneil in September 2014

Discilosure of information to the auditor

Each person who 1s a Director of the Company as at the date

of approval of this report confirms that

a) so far as the Dwectar 15 aware, there is no relevant audit
mformation of which the Company's auditor is unaware, and

b} the Director has taken all the steps that he/she ought to
have taken as a Director in ordler to rmake himselithersett
aware of any relevant audit information and to estabhsh that
the Company's auditor 1s aware of that mformation

AGM

The 2017 AGM will be held on Wednesday 25 January 2017
Full details are contained in the Notice convening the AGM,
which I1s being sent to shareholders with thrs Annual Report
On benalf of the Board

Patrick Hote

Company Secretary
14 November 2016

o/
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Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

Financtal statements and accounting records

The Directors are responsible for prepanng the Annual Report
and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law
and regulattons

Company law requrres the Directors to prepare financtal
statements for each financial year Under that law the
Directors are required to prepare the Group financial
statements in accordance with Intermational Financial
Reporting Standards {IFRSs) as adopted by the European
Urion and Article 4 and have elected to prepare the
Parent Company financial statemants in accordance with
United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice
(United Kingdom Accounting Standards), including FRS
102, The Financial Reporting Standard apphicable in the
United Kingdom and Repubbic of freland, and appficable
law Under company law the Directors must not approve
the accounts unless they are sabisfied that they give a true
and farr view of the state of affars of the Company and

of the profit or loss of the Company for that penod

In prepanng the Parent Company financial statements,

the Directors are required to

« Select sutable accounting policies and then apply
them consistently

* Make jJudgements and accounting estimates that are
reasonable and prudent

+ State whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have
been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed
and explained in the financial statements

* Prepare the financral statements on the going concern basis
unless it 1s inappropnate to presume that the Company will
continue N business

In prepanng these financial statements, Internatanal

Accounting Standard 1 requires that Dhrectors

= Properiy select and apply accounting policies

* Present information, including accounting policies, in a
manner that provides relevant, reliable, comparable and
understandable information

* Prowvide additional disclosures when compliance with the
specific requremnents in IFRSs are insufficient to enable
users to understand the impact of particular transactions,
other events and conditions on the enbity's financial position
and financial performance

* Make an assessment of the Campany's ability to continue
as a going concern

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate
accounting records that are sufficient to show and
explain the Company's transactions and disclose with
reasonable accuracy at any tme the financial position of
the Company and enable them to ensure that the financiat
statements comply with the Comparugs Act 2006 They
are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other irregulanties

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integnty
of the corporate and financial information included on the
Company's webslte Legistation in the United Kingdom
governing tha preparation and dissemination of financial
stataments may drffer from legisiation in other junsdictions

Fair, balanced and understandabie

The Board confirms that the Annual Report and financial
statements, taken as a whole, 1s fair, balanced and
understandable and prowides the information necessary
for shareholders to assess the postion, performance,
strategy and business model of the Company

Responsibility statement

Tha Directors confirm that, to the bast of each parson's

knowledge

* The financial statements, prepared in accordance with
International Financtal Reporting Standards as adopted by
the Europsan Union, give a true and farr view of the assets,
liabikties, financial position and profit or loss of the Company
and the undertakings included in the consolidation taken as
awhale

* The Strategic Report includes a fair review of the
development and performance of the business and the
position of the Company and the undertakings included
In the consoldation taken as a whole, togather with a
descnphon of the pnnclpal risks and uncertainties that
they face

This responsibility staternent was approved by the Board of
Directors on 14 November 2016 and 15 signed on ris behalf by

Nick Maddock

Chief Financial Officer
14 Novembar 2016

1 'f/]/’::’

Clive Fenton
Chief Executive Officer
14 November 2016
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of

McCarthy & Stone plc

Opinion on financial statements of McCarthy & Stone plc

In our opiNKN

* The financial statements give a true and fair view of the state
of the Group's and of the Parent Company’s affarrs as at
31 August 2016 and of the Group's profit for the year
then endad

* The Group financial statements have been property
prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS} as adopted by the
European Union

* The Parent Company financial statements have been
properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, mcluding FRS 192
'The Financial Reporting Standard agplicable in the UK and
Republic of Ireland’

+ The financial statements have been prepared in accardance
with the requiremenis of the Companies Act 2006 and, as
regards the Graup financial statements, Article 4 of the
!AS Regulation

The financial statements compnse the Consolidated Staterment
of Comprehensive Income, the Consoldated and Parent
Company Statements of Financial Posttion, the Consolidated
and Parent Company Statements of Changes n Equity, the
Consohdated and Parent Company Cash Flow Statement

and the notes 1 t0 35 relating to the Consolidatad financial
statements and 1 1o 12 relating to the Parent Company

financal statements Tha financial reporting framewaorl that
has been appiied in the preparation of the Group financial
staternents 1s apphicable law and IFRS as adopted by the
European Union The financial reporting framework that has
been applied in the preparation of the Parent Company
financial statements 15 applicable law and Unrted Kingdom
Accounting Standards {Unted Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice), inciuding FRS 102 'The Financial
Reporting Standard apphcable in the UK and Republic

of lrefand’

Going concemn and the Directors’ assessment of the
principal nisks that would threaten the solvency or
hquidity of the Group

As required by the Listing Aules we have revewed the
Directors' statement regarding the approprateness of the
gomg concern basis of accounting contained within note 1
to the consohidated financial stalements and the Directors'
statement on the longer-term viability of the Group contained
within the Strategic Report section on page 39

Wa have nothing matenal to add or draw attention {0 in
retathion to
¢ The Drrectors’ confirmation on page 39 that they have

camed out a robust assessment of the principal nsks facing
the Group, including those that would threaten its business
modael, future performance, solvency or hauidity

+ The disclosures on pages 38 to 41 that describe those nisks
and explain how they are being managed or mihgated

* The Directors' statement in note 1 to the consolidated
financial statements about whether they considared it
appropnate to adopt the going concern basis of accounting
in prepanng them and ther identificatton of any material
uncertainties to the Group's abiity to continue to do so over
a period of at least 12 months from the date of approval of
the financial statements

* The Directors' explanation on page 39 as to how they have
assessed the prospects of the Group, over what penod
they have done so and why they cansider that penod to be
appropnate, and their staternent as to whether they have
a reasonable expectation that the Graup wilt be abte to
continue in cperation and meet its kabilities as they fall due
aver the penod of ther agsessment, inctuding any related
chsclosures drawing attention to any necessary
qualfications or assumptions

We agreed with the Directors’ adopton &f the gong cancern
basis of accounting and we did not identify any such matenal
uncertanties However, because not all future events or
condihons can be predicted, this statement is not a guarantee
as to the Group's ability to continue as a gong concern

{ndependence

We are required to comply with the Financral Reporting
Council's Ethical Standards for Audrtors and we confirm that
we are iIndependent of the Group and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responaiiliies in accordance with those
standards We also confirm we have not provided any of the
prohibited non-audyt services referved to n those standards

Our assessment of risks of matenal misstatement

The assessed nsks of matenal misstatement descrbed befow
on pages 82 to 83 are those that had the greatest effect on
our audit strategy, the allocation of resources in the audit and
directing the efforts of the engagement team As pant of our

audit of the Group, 1In addimon to substantve tests set out below,

we also svaluate the design and implementation of miernal
controls over financial reporting i each of the nsk areas

www mccarthyandstonegroup.co uk
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Independent Auditor’'s Report to the Members of

McCarthy & Stone plc continued

Haaw the scope of our auoit rasponded to tha fsk

Cost capitalisation of overheads

Refor to paga 56 (Report of the Risk and Audit Commuttes) and
page 96 (Cnlical accounting judgements and kay sources of
estimation uncertainty)

Inventory compnses land, work in progress and firushed stock
The value of mveniory as at 31 August 2016 1s £685 8m (2015
£585 8m) and 1s the most significant itern on the Consolidated
Statement of Financral Position Overhead costs caprtalised at
31 August 2016 amount to £25 7m (2015 £16 7m) representing
4 8% of stock additions (2015 4 2%) Amounts released to cost
of sales totalled €13 2m (2015 £51m)

Management perform a detailed exercise to analyse by
department the proportion of costs relating directly to site
development versus general business overheads

We consider the aliocation and recognitton of overhead costs

nto mventory to represent an area of sk with significant

judgement identified in

* Identfying which costs, based on ther nature, should be
captalised into inventory rather than expensed

* Determining the proportion of Planning, Dasign,
Commercial, Construction and Health & Safety costs
mcurred n bnnging the inventones to therr present iocation
and condition, n accordance with 1A3S 2 ‘lnventones’

The judgements above impact the carrying vatue of nventory in
the Consolidated Statement of Financial Poswion and the gross
rmargin recognised on each unit sold

We challenged the reasonablensss of the allocation and the

accuracy of costs capitalised for each category of inventory

Qur work involved the following

= Laising with sentor departmental management to
undarstand the process employed in determining the
allocaton and analytically reviewing the movements
year-on-year

= Perforrrung sensitivity analysis on the proportion of costs
capitaised in the year in conunction with benchmarking
analysis (where avallable}

= Chacking the mechanical accuracy of the calculatons and
identfying any anomaiies

* Testing a sample of the costs absorbed to assess wheather
these are valued and aflocated correctly

* Performing a recalculation based on the final percentage
allocation and cost inputs to establish whether the amounts
capitalisad are accurate

Shared equity receivables

Refer to page 56 (Report of the Risk and Audit Commuttee),
page 96 (Crircal accounting judgements and key sources of
estimation uncertainty) and page 102 {financial statement
disclosures)

The Group offers shared equity-based arrangements {o
buyers The présent value of shared equity receivables as at
31 August 2016 1s £29 3m (2015 £28 0m)

The Group’s assessment and supporting calculation

ara dependent on a number of assumptions, which are
nherently judgmental due to thar forward-looking nature
Key assumphions includer

e Property price projections

* Expected matunty date

* DOigcount rate

* New build premiumn agamst subsequent sales

The above assumptions are dependent on management's
abilty to estmate market actwty, future trends and
fluctuations Changes to these assumptlons could

result in a matenal change m the value of the recevable
recognsed within the Staterment of Financial Position and
the associated movements recorded in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income

We cntically assessed the accuracy of the inpuis and the

reasorableness of the assumptions applied in the Group’s

far value modal Qur work wwolved the following

* Consulting with our Internal Real Estate specialists to
challenge the rates and meihodcloges applied through
companson with the market

* Obtanung relevant sector data (e g Office of National
Statistics and the latest indices) 10 challenga the
reasonableness of house pricing inflation and new
buid premtums

* Assessing the impact of the UK Referendum and the
decision to exit the European Untan on each of the
assumptions applied through review of the most recent
available public information

= Performing tests of detall to assass the ntegrity of inputs

+ Benchmarking the Group's assumptions aganst other
house bullders {where avalable)

* Performing sensitwity analysis over the key assumptions
applied on both an indvdual and collective hasis

* Companng the cash received on redemptions dunng the
year to the carnang value of the related receivable to ensure
proceeds were not significantly different

+ Checking the mechanical accuracy of the fair value
calcutation for all schemes and assessing whether
the correct amounts have been recognised in the
financeal statemenis
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How the scope of our audcht responded 1o the risk

Incentive schemes

Refer to page 56 {Report of the Risk and Audit Commuties),
page 96 (Cntical accounting judgements and key sources of
estimation uncertainly) and page 110 (financial statement
disclosures)

The Group Iisted on the London Stock Exchange in November
2015 Upon listing (IPO), the Group awarded the parficipants
of tha Management Incentive Plan {MIP) £0 8m in cagh and
£19 7min equity Subsequent to listing, the Group introduced
four new mcentive schames

* [ong Term Incentive Plan (LTIF)

* Save As You Earn (SAYE)

* Annual and Deferred Bonus Plan

* Share Incentve Plan (SIF)

The accounting treatment and supporting grant dats far value

calculations are inherently complex and give nse to a nsk of

material misstatement with significant judgement required in

determiming the following assurnptions

» Share prce movernents (for the total shareholder return
tranche of the LTIP schems)

= Expected future performance

& Expected parbcipant attriion

Qur work in respect of the vesting of the MIP invalved

the following

* Verifying the tanms of the plan to signed agreement

* Recalgulating both the cash and equrty elements of the
settiement based on the terms of the plan and the equity
value of the Group pror to IPO

= Perforrming tests of detal over a sample of cash paymenis
for salected participants through agreement to paysip

* Venfying that the shares awarded and the related unwind
tiad been accounted for corectly in accordance with the
cntenia per IFRS 2 ‘Share-based payments’

* Reviewng the techmcal accountng paper prepared
by management

Our work in respect of the assumptions applied It determining

the far value of the newly intreduced schemes included

the following

* Consutting with our valuation specialists 10 confirm
that the principles behind the assumptions used and the
methedology applied are in line with IFRS 2 'Shara-based
payments’ and that they fall within an acceptable range

* Performing sensitvity analysis over the assumptions to
assess the impact and cnhtical pont that would result in a
matenal misstatement to the financial staterents

* Assessing the reasonableness in the expected participant
lapse rate agamnst histoncal trends n head count

* Assessing performance aganst the Group's budget

* Recalcufating the grant date far value of each scheme and
assessing whether any related charge 1s spread corractly
over the vesting term

Treatment of transaction costs

Refer to page 56 (Report of the Risk and Audr Comrmitites),
page 96 (Cntical accounting judgements and key sources of
estimation uncertainty) and page 97 (financial statermnent
disclosures)

In the current year the Group incurred exceptional costs of
£11 6m {excluding tax) in connection with the IPO, £4 Om of
which was capitalisad as a reduction to share premium

The Group undertook a detaled assessment of all costs
incurred dunng the IPO process to ensure that the aflocation of
cost was accounted for correctly n ine with 1AS 32 ‘Financia!
Instruments Presentation’

We consider the accuracy and allocation of these costs to
pose a significant nsk of material misstatement owing fo the
impact on baoth share pramium in the Consohdated Statement
of Financial Posiion and expenses within the Consohdated
Staternent of Comprehensive Income

In assessing these costs there are two key considerations

that apply

* Defiring the IPO costs that are eligible for capitahisation,
ie accounted for as a deduction from shareg premium
and those that should be expensed The former are
costs that ars directly attnbutable to the issue of shares

s The determination of which of the IPO costs are tax
deductible and non-deductible

Qur work invalved the following

* Performing tests of detail over a sample of costs incurred
to assess both the accuracy of amounts recorded and
appropnate allocation between share premium and
expenses in e with the gurdance set out in IAS 32

* Consutting wath our tax spectalists to understand and
challenge the tax treatment for deductible and non-
deductible expenges (and the allocation thereaf)

* Reviewing tha technical accounting paper prepared by
managemert outhning the accounting policy adopted and
the methedology of allocation of costs between share
premuum and exceptional costs

* Assessment of the accuracy and completeness of
disclosures made in respect of exceptonal costs n the
Staternent of Comprehensive Income

www mccarthyandstaonegroup co uk

AINYNHIAOD JLVHOLHOOD LHOJIY J1D3LvHLS

SLNIWILYLS IVIONVYNIL



84 McCarthy & Stone plc

Annual Report and Accounia 2016

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of
McCarthy & Stone plc continued

The descriphiion of nsks should be read in conjunciion with the
signficant issues cansidered by the Risk and Audit Gommittes
discussed on page 56

These matters were addressed i the context of cur audit
of the financial statements as a whols, and in forming our
opimon thereon, and wa do not provide a separate opinon
on these matters

Qur application of matenahty

We define matenality as the magmitude of rmigstatement in the
financial statements that makes it probable that the economic
decisions of a reasonably knowledgeabie person would be
changec or influenced We use matenality both in planning the
scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our wark

We determmed materality for the Group to be £5 2m which 1s
calculated based on 5% of pre-tax profit for the year excluding
exceptional items of £102 8m as descnbed on page 86

Pre-tax profit, excluding excephonal items, has been chosen
as the basis for materality as this 1s the measure by which
stakeholders and the market assess the wider performance
of the Group The exceptional expenss, principally IPO costs,
1s excluded as this does net represent part of the underlying
rachng performance of the business

We use perfarmance matenalidy to detect russtatements at a
lower level of precision, for the current year this is set at £3 9m
This 1s lower than matenalty and is used 1o detarrmine the size
of the samples that are selected for audit work and in forming
the conclusions that we make dunng the course of our
procedures

We agreed with the Risk and Audit Commuittee that we would
report to the Committee all audit differences in excess of

£0 3m, as wall as diffarences beiow that threshold that, in our
view, warranted reporting on qualtative grounds We also
report 10 the Risk and Audit Cornmittee on disclosure matters
that we identified when assessing the overall presentation of
the financial statements

An overview of the scope of our audit

Our Group audit was scoped by obtaining an understanding of
the Group and its environment, ncluding Group-wide, and
assessing the nsks of maienal misstaternent al the Group tevel
All subsidianes are managed from the Group's head ¢ffice in
Bournernouth and subject to a commaon ¢contral environment

Based on that assessment, we focused our audit scope on the
four largest subsidianes in the Group, McCarthy & Stone plc,
McCarthy & Stone {Developments) Limited, McCarthy & Stone
Retirement Lifestyles Limited and McCarthy & Stone {Exira
Care Leang) Urited  Thase entiies represent the pancipal
entities and account for 98% of the Group's net assets, 100%
of tha Group's revenue and 98% of the Group's profit before
tax They were also selected to provide an appropnate basis
for undertaling audrt work to address the nsks of matenal
misstalement identified above

We have performed an audit of select account balances on
McCarthy & Stone {Home Equity Interests) Limited and
McCarthy & Stone {Equity interests) Liruted and deskiop
review procedures over highly immatenal subsicianes

Our audit work on these entifies was executed at lovels of
matenality apphcable to each indnvidual company ranging
from £0 m to £4 Bm which were lower than Group matenaiily

At the Parent entity level we also tested the consolidation
process and carried out analytical procedures to confirm

our conclus:on that there were no sigrificant nsks of matenal
mrsstaternent of tha aggregated financial information of the
remaning components not subject to audil or avdt of specified
account balances

The Group audit is performed centrally and Includes coverage
of all nine regional offices within the Group As part of our audrt
we visit a sample of three regional offices each year on a
rotabonal bass with reference to size and complexity among
other factors The purpose of thess wisits 15 to conduct
proceduras gver salected controls that are i place at each
regional office

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies

Act 2006

In our opinion

* The part of the Owectors' Remuneration Report to be
audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act 2006

* Tha information given in the Strategic Report and the
Eirectors’ Report for the financial year for which the
financral staternerts are prepared is congistent with the
financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report

by exception

Adequacy of explanations received

and accounting records

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to reporl 1o

you i, 1N Qur opInIoN

* We have not recaived all the information and explanations
we require for our audit

* Adequate accounting records have not been kept by the
Parent Company, or returns adequate for our audit have not
been received from branches not wisited by us

= The Parent Company financial statements are not n
agreament with the accounting records and retums

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters

Directors' remuneration

Under the Compames Act 2006 we are also required 10 report
If, 10 our oprvon certain disclosures of Drectors' remuneration
have not been mada or the part of the Directors’ Remuneration
Report to be audited 1s not in agreement wath the accounting
records and returns We have nothing to report ansmng from
these maiters
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Corporate Governance Statament

Under the Listing Rules we are also required to review part
of the Comorate Govemancs Statement relating to the
Company's compllance with certain provisions of the UK
Corporate Governance Code Wa hava nothing to report
ansing from our raview

Qur duty to read other information in the Annual Report
Under intemational Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland), we
are required 1o report 1o you i, in our opinlon, irformation in the
Annual Report 1s
* Materiglly nconsmstent with the information in the audited
financial statements
* Apparenily matenally incomect based on, or matenally
inconsistent with, our knowladge of the Group acguired
In the course of perfonrng our auadi
» Otherwise mislsading

in particuiar, we are required 1o conslder whather we have
dantfied any mconsistencias between our knowtedge acqulred
during the audit and the Directors® staternent that they constder
the Annual Report 1s fair, balanced and undersiandable and
whather the Annual Report appropnately discloses thosa
matters that we communicated to the Risk and Audit
Comrnittes which we consider should have been disclosed

We confirm thal we have not identified any such
nconsistencies or mistaading statements

Ragpective responsibilities of Directors and auditor

As explained more fully in the Directors' Responsibiiites
Statement, the Drectors are responsible for the preparation

of the financial statements and for being satisfidd that thay give
atrue and fair view Qur responsibility 15 to audh and express
an opinion on the financial statements i accordance with
applicable law and Intemational Standards on Audning {UK and
ireland) We also comply with internatonal Standard on Quality
Control i {UK and Ireland) Our audit methodology and tools
airn to ensure that our quality control procedures are affective,
understood and appied

Our quality controls and systems include our dedicaiad
professional standards review tearn and independent
partner reviews

This report is made solaly o the Company’s members,

as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companigs Act 2008 Our audit work has besn undertaken so
that we might state 1o the Company's membars those matters
we are required 1o state io them in an Auditor’s Report and for
no other purpose To the fultast extent permitted by law, we do
not accept or assume responsiility 1o anyone other than the
Company and the Company's members as a body, for our
audit work, for this report, or for the opmons we have formed

McGarthy & Stone plc  B5

Scope of the audit of the financlal statements

An audit invalves abtalning evidence about the amounts

and disclosures in the financial statements sufficrant to give
reasonable assurance that the financial statemants are frea
from matenal messtatermnent, whether caused by fraud or error
This ncludes an assessment of whether the accounting
policigs are appropriate to the Group's and the Parent
Company's orcumstances and have besn consistently applled
and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of significant
accounting astimates made by the Directors, and the overall
prasentaton of the financlal statements In additton, we read all
the financial and non-financial information i the Annval Report
to idsntify materlal inconsistencies with the audrted financial
statements and to ideniify any information that 1s apparently
matenally incorrect baged on, or materdally inconsistent with,
the knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing

the audlt f we become aware of any apparent matenal
misstatements or iNnconsisiencias we consider the implications

for our report C)f‘t - CJ ,) Ll

Gragory Culshaw ,?cn (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of Daloite LLP

Chartered A¢countants and Statutery Auditor
Southamptan, United Kingdom

14 Novamber 2616

www mccarthyandstonearoup ¢¢ uk
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 August 2016

2016 2015
Notes fm fm
Continuing operations
Ravanue 4 635.9 4857
Cost of sales {489.5) (3626)
Grass profit 136 4 1231
Other operatng income 8 85 91
Administrativa expenses (447 (399
Other operating expenses 51) 4 5)
Opaerating proft 851 878
Amortisation @1 21}
Exceptional administrative expenses 6 {100) 54
Underlying cperating profit 1072 853
Finance income 9 2.7 12
Finance expense 10 49) 81
Profit before tax 82.9 809
Income tax expense 1 {19.9) 166
Profit far the year from continuing operations and total comprehensive incame 73.5 64 3
Prafit attributable to
Owners of the Company 731 641
Non-controlling interest 0.4 g2
73.5 643
Nates 1 to 35 form part of the financial statements shown above All trading denves from continuing operations
Earnings per share
Basic {p per sharg} 12 139 34
Diluted (p per share) 12 139 34
Adjusted basic {(p per share)’ 12 139 135
Adwsted diluted (p per sharg)’ 12 13.9 135
Adjusted measures
Underlying operating profit 6 107 2 8953
Underlying profit before tax 6 1050 884

1 Prox year EPS hag been athusted lo reflect the 4 | share consolidation thal took place i FYIG A raconcikaton (o the prevousty stated EPS has been providad 0 note 12
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

As at 31 August 2016

2016 2015
Noles £m £m
Asseots
Non-current assets
Goodwill 13 417 17
Intangible assets 14 29.6 317
Property, plant and equiprnent 15 29 26
Investrnents in joint ventures 17 04 04
Investment properbes 02 05
Trade and other receivables 19 27 315
Denvative financial assets 21 - 03
Taotal non-current assets 1075 1087
Current assets
Inventories i8 6858 5858
Trade and other recevables 19 75 109
Cash and cash equivatents 29 119.0 569
Total current assets 812.3 6536
Total assets 9198 7623
Equity and habilities
Capital and reserves
Share capital 26 430 3811
Share premium 27 100.8 564
Retained eamings 553.5 104 3
Equity attributable to owners of the Company €973 5418
Non-controling interests o8 07
Total equrty 698 1 5425
Current habilties
Frade and other payables 22 1074 838
Short-term borrowings 24 1.3 -
Land payables 23 49.3 365
Total current liabilities 1677 1203
Non-current hiabiities
Long-term borrowings 24 525 992
Deferred tax habity 20 15 03
Total liabilities 2217 2198
815.8 7623

Total equity and habilities

Notes 1 to 35 form part of the financial statements shown above

These financial statements were approved by the Board on 14 November 2016 and signed on its behalf by

Clive Fenton Nick Maddock
Drrector Director

LRl S

www mccarthyandstonegroup co uk
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 31 August 2016

Non-

Share Share  Rotalned convoling Total
caplita premium eamngs Total wdenest equity
Notes £m £m fm om £m £m
Balance at 1 September 2014 3811 56 4 393 476.8 04 477.2
Profit for the perod - - 641 641 02 643
Total comprehensive income for the penod - - 641 64 1 02 64 3
Transactions with owners of the Company*
Share-based payments 32 - - 09 09 - 09
Movement in non-controliing interest - - - - 01 01
Balance at 31 August 2015 3811 56.4 1043 5418 0.7 5425
Profit for the penod - - 731 731 04 735
Total comprehensive income for the penod - - 731 731 04 735
Transactions with owners of the Company
Issue of ordinary shares 26 49 1048 {19 4) 903 03 900
Capital reduction of share capital and share premium 26 {3430} (56 4) 3854 -~ ~ -
Share-based payments 32 - - 15 15 - 15
Share 1ssUe related costs - {4 0) - @0 - 4o
Divdends 26 ~ - 54 54 = 54
Balance at 31 August 2016 43.0 1008 5535 6973 X :] 6981

Notes 1 to 35 form part of the financial statements shown above
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
For the veco ended 31 August 2016

2018 2015
Notes £m £m
Net cash inflow from operating activities 29 183 197
Investing activities
Purchases of property, ptant and equipment {1 5) (20}
Purchases of intangible assets 0.4 (10
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 0.1 15
Net cash used in investing activities {18) {15)
Financing activities
Proceeds fromissue of share capial 860 -
Proceeds from long-term horrowings - B79
Repayment of long-term borrowings (35.0) (1600)
Purchase of interest rate cap - 03
Dividend paid (5.4) ~
Net cash from/{used In) financing activittes 456 {72 4
Net increase/{decrease} In cash and cash equivalents 62.1 (54 2}
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 569 1111
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 1190 569

Notes 1 to 35 form part of the financial staterments shown above

www meccarthyandstonegroup co uk

FINYNHIACD ItvdDdH 0D 1HOJd3IH D193.1VHLS

SINIWILVLSE IVIONYNIL



80 McCarthy & Stone ple Annual Report and Accounts 2016

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 Significant accounting policies
The principal accounting pelicies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out below
These policies have been consistently appled to all the years presented, uniess otherwise stated

Basis of preparation

McCarthy & Stone plc 1s a Company incorporated in England and Wales under the Companies Act The Group financial
statermnents consolidate those of the Comparny and 1ts subsidianes (together referred to as the Group) and include the Group's
interest in jaintly controlled entites The Parent Company financial statements present information about the Company as a

separate entity and not about the Group

The Group financial statements have been prepared and approved by the Directors in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union (EU IFRS) and have been prepared under the histoncal cost convention
as modified by financial assets and financial habibties {including derwative instruments} at far value through profit or foss

Going concern
The Group meets its day-to-day working capital requirements through cash in hand and its bank facilities The Group's forecasts

and projections, taking into account reasonably possible changes in trading performance, show that the Group should be able to
operate within the level of its current faciliies After making enquines, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group
has adequate resourceas to continue i operational existence for the foreseeable future The Group therefore continues to adopt
the going concern basis in prepanng s financial statements Further information on the Group's barrowings 1s given n note 24

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the results of the Company and its subsidianes For the purposes of consolidahon,

subsidianes are enhities over which the Company has the power to govern the financial and operabng policies so as to obtan
benefits from its activities

Where necessary, adjustmenis are mads to tha financial statements of subsichanes to binng the accounting policies used into fne
with those usaed by the Group All intra-Group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eiminated in full on consolidation

Non-cantrolling interests in subsidianes are identfied separately fram the Group's equity therein The interests of nen-controlling
shareholders may inrhally be measured at farr value or at the non-controling interests’ proportionate share of the fair vatue of the
acquiree's dentifiable net assets The choice of measurement 18 made on an acquisition-by-acguisiion basis Subseguent to
acquisition, the carying amount of non-controlling interests is the amount of those interests at initial recogrution plus the non-

controfling interests' share of subsequent changes in equity

Goodwill
Goodwill ansing in a business combination ts recogmsed as an asset at the date that control s attained {ihe acquistiion date}

Goodwill 1Is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the far value of the acquirer's previously held equily interest (if any} in the entity over the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identfiable assets acquired and the labilibes assumed

Goodwill 1s not ameortised but is reviewed for mpaimment at least annually For the purpose of imparment testing, goodwill

15 allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating unil (CGU} expected to benefit from synergies ansing from a business
combination The CGU to which goodwill has been attnbuted 1s tested for mpairment annually, or more frequently when there is
an indication that the CGU may be impaired If the recoverable amount of the CGU 1s less than the carrying amount of the CGU,
the impairment loss 1s allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU and then to the other
assets of the unit pro rata on the basis of the camrying amount of each asset in the CGU

Revenue recognition
Revanue I1s measured at far value of the consideration receved or recevable and represents amounts receivable for goods

supplied stated net of discounts, rebates, VAT and other sales taxes or duty

The Group recagnises revenue when all the fallowing conditions are satisfied

* The Group has transferred to the buyer the significant nsks and rewards of ownership of the goods

* The Group retains naither continuing managenal invalvernent to the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective
control over the goods sold

* The amount of revenue can be measured reliably

* {15 probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will fiow to the entity

¢ The costs incurred or to be incured in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably

Revenue recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Incame but not yat invaiced is held on the statement of
financial position wathin *Trade and other recervables' Revenue invoiced but not yet recognised in the Consohidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income 1s held on the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position within ‘Deferred revenue’
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1. Stigmificant accounting policies continued
Revenue 1s classified as follows

Sales of leassehold interests

Revenus represents the consideration recelved from the sale of leasshold mterests in retirement apartmants and IS recognisecd
onlegal completion Where the Group commits on completion to provide an additonal cash amount above an offer given by

a third-party part exchange provider, this additional cash arnount 1s recogrised as a deduction from revenue Cash incentives
are consiwered to be a discount from the purchase price offered to the acquirer and are therefore accounted for as a reduction
of revenue

Freehold reversionary interests (FRIs) and haouse manager fiat freehold interests (HMFis)
FRIs and HMFs i respect of developed sites are penodically sold to third paries Ravenue ansing from these sales 1s recogrised
only to the extent that the underlying leasehold interest in the retirement apartment has been contractually sold

Other operating income
Other operaiing ncome includes management services income, Nel rental Income, profits ansing from the disposal of
undeveloped land sites, VAT refunds, non-build rebates and profits ansing from the realisation of shared equity recevables

Finance income
Ravenue 1s recognised as interest accrnyes, using the effective interest rate mathod, being the rate used to discount the estimated

future cash recaipts over the expectad Iife of the financial instrument

Cost of sales
Costs directly attnbutable to the unit sales are included within cost of sales This mcludes the cost of branging the inventory nto use
and regional marketing costs that are directly altnbutable to sales, including show flat rurning costs and estate agent referral fegs

Exceptional items

Excephional items are defined as items of income or expenditure which, i tha opinion of the Directors, are matenal, non-recurang
and unusual in nature or of such significance that they require separate disclosure Exclusion of these balances allows review of
the underying trading position of the Group These are detailed further in note 6

Leases
Leases are classified as finance leases whenaver the terms of the lease transfor substantially alt the nisks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee All other leases are classified as operating leases

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to income on a straight-ing bagrs over the term of the relevant lease

Retirement benefit costs
The Group operates a stakeholder retrernent benefit scheme

A retirement benefit scheme 1s a post-employment berefit plan under which the Group pays fixed contnbutions into a separate
entity and has no legal or constructive obligation 1o pay further amounts Obligations for contnbutions to benefit schemes are
recognised as an expense in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Incorne m the years during which services are
rendered by employees

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and defarred tax

Current tax

Tax currently payable s based on taxable profit for the year Taxable profit differs fram net grofit as reported i the Consolidated
Statement of Comprehensive Income becausa it excludes temns of Income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and it further exctudes iterns that are naver taxable or deductible The Group's hability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have bean enacted or substantively enacted by the year end

Deferred tax

Deferred tax 1s the tax axpected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and habiiies
in the financial statements and the comesponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit and s agcounted for using
the balance sheet habity method Deferred tax habrities are generally recogmised for all taxable temporary differences and
deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable thal taxable profits will be avalable against which deductible
lernporary differences can be uthsed Such assets and habimies are not recognised if the temporary difference anses from the
inatial recagrution of goadwill or from the inthial recogrition {other than in a business combination) of other assets and habilities

In a transaction that affecis netther the taxable profit nor the accouniing profit

Deferred tax iabilities are recogrised for taxable temporary differences ansing on mnvestments i subsidiares, where the Group
is unable to controf the reversal of the temporary difference and it 1s probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the

foreseeatile future

www mccarthyandstonegroup co uk
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

1. Significant accounting policies continued
The carrying amount of deferred lax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting penod and reduced lo the extent that it 1s no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be avaiable to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered in the foresesable future

Deferred 1ax 15 calcuiated at the tax rates that are expected to apply In the penod when the liability 1s settled or the asset is
realised based on tax laws and rates that have been anacted by the year end Deferred tax 1s charged or credited m the
Consohdated Statement of Comprehensive Income, except when it relates to tems charged or credited in other comprehensive
income, in which case the deferred tax is also deait with in other comprehensive income

Deferred tax assets and kabilities are offset when there 1s a legally enforceable nght to set off current tax assets agamst cuvent tax
habiittes and when they relate to mcome taxes levied by the sama taxation authonty and the Group intends to settle its cumrent tax
assets and lrabiies on a net basis

Tangible and intangible assets
Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any recognised mpairment loss

Depraciation 15 recognised so as to wite off the cost of assets less ther residual value over thew useful thes, usng the straight-ine
method, on the following bases

Fixtures, fithngs and equipment 3-10 years

The gain or loss ansing on the disposal of an assst 18 deterrined as the difference between the sales proceeds ard the camrying
amount of the asset and 1s recogrised 10 Income on the transier of the nsks and rewards of ownership

The Group has no class of tangible fixed asset that has been revalued On transibon to IFRS the net book values recorded at
1 September 2012 have been applied and these are based on histonc cost or far value recogrised at the date of acquisiten

Intangibie assets - brand
Separately acquired brands are shown at histoncal cost Brands have a findte useful kfe and are camied at cost less accumulated

amortisation Amortisation 1s calculated using the straight-ine method to allocate the cost over ther useful Iives, estimated at
20 years

intarnalfy-gensrated intangible assets - research and devefopment expenditure

Costs associated with maintaining computer software programmes are recognised as an expense as mncurred Development
costs that are directly atinbutable to the design and testing of identifiable and unigue software products controlled by the Group
are recognised as intangible assets when the following critena are mat

+ ltis technically feasble (0 complete the software product $o that  will be avalable for use

* Management intends to complete the software product and use or sell it

e Thare s an ability to usa or sell the software product

= It can be demonstrated how the software product will generate probable future sconoric beneiits

« Adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell the software product

are avalable
* The expenditure attnbutable to the software product during its deveiopment can be reliably measured

Diractly attnbutable cosis that are capiahised as past of the software product include the software development employee costs
and an appropnate portion of refevant overheads

Other development expenditures that do not meet these criténa are recognised as an expense as incurred Development costs
previously recognised as an expense are not recognisad as an asset n a subsequent year

Computer software development costs recogrused as assets are amorused over therr estmated useful Iives, which do not exceed
ten years

Development sxpenditure relating to scftware has been capitalised and is detalled in note 14

imparrment of tangible and intangible asseis excluding goodwill

At each balance sheet dals, the Group reviews the camying amounts of its 1angible and intangible assets 1o determine whether there
1s any inchcation that those assets have suffered an imparrment loss If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset
1s estrmated to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any} Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are
independent from other assets, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU to which the asset belongs

Recoverable amount is the higher of (1) fair value less costs to sell, and () value In use In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to therr present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the nsks specific to the asseat for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted
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1 Sigmficant accounting pohcies continued

If tha recoverable amount of an asset (or CGU) 1s estimated to be less than s carrying amount, the carnang amount of the asset
{or CGU) 1s reduced to its recoverable amount An imparrmeant 10ss s recogrised immediately in peofit or loss, unless the relevant
asset 1s camed at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss 1s treated as a revaluation decrease to the extent that the
revaluation balance 1s greater than the imparment loss

Joint ventures
The Group has a number of contractual amangements with other parties which represent jont ventures These take the form
of agreement to share control over thase enithes Jomt ventures are accounted for usmg the equity method of accounting

The Group classifies 1ts interests in jolnt arrangements as etther jomt operations {if the Group has nghts to the assets, and
obligations for the iabiliies, relating 1o an arangement) or joint ventures {f the Group has nghts only to the net assets of an
arrangement} Whan making this agsessment, the Group considers the structure of the arrangements, the legal form of any
separale vehiclas, the contractual terms of the arrangements and other facts and circumstances

Inventories

inventones are stated al the iower of cost and net reahisable value Cost compnses direct matenals and, where applicable, direct
labaur costs and those overhaads that have been mcurred n brnging the mventones 1o therr present focakion and condition

The cost of sites in the course of construction and finished stock compnses the cost of land purchases, which are accounted
for from the date of contract exchange, when the Group obtains the effective contro! of the site, bullding costs and attnbutable
construction overheads Net realisable value represents the estirnated selling price less all estimated costs of compleghon

and cosls to be incwrred in marketing, selling and distnbution. completion and disposal

Land mventones and the associated land payables are recognised in the Consoldated Statement of Financial Postion from
the date of uncondtional exchange of contracts Where, through deferred purchase credit terms, cost differs from the normunal
amaount which will be paid n setting the deferred purchase terms ability, the imtial cost of the fand 1s discounted to far value
The iand payable 15 then increased to sattlement valus over the pertod of financing, with the financing element beng charged
to the Consolidated Staternem of Comprenhensive Income as a finance cost

Options purchased in respact of land are caprtalised initially at the cost of the optfon Regular reviews are complated for
impairment in the value of these options and provisions made accordingly to reflact loss of value The imparrment reviews consider
the perod elapsed since the date of purchase of the option given that the option contract has not been exercised at the review
date Further, the impairment reviews consider the remaining Ife of the option, taking nto account any concerns over whether the
remaining tme will allow successfl exercise of the oplion The carmying cost of the option at the date of exercise 1s included within
the cost of land purchased as a result of the option exercise

Expenditure on land without the benefit of detaled planning consent, erthar through purchass of freehold land or non-refundable
deposils paid on land purchase contracts subject to detalled planning consent, ane capitatised nally at cost Regular reviews are
completed for mparment i the value of these nvestments, and provision made to reflect any irecoverable element. The impalrment
reviews consider the existing value of the land and assass the kkelhood of achieving detalled planming cansent and the valus thereof

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents compnse cash and short-term bank deposits with an onginal maturity of three months or fess, net of

outstanding bank overdrafts

Financiai instruments
Financial assets and financial labhibes are recogmised n the Group’s Consclidated Statement of Financial Position when the Group

becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument

Financial assets

All financial assets are nonmally recognised and derecognised on the date thal an agreement has been entered nio where the
purchase or sale of a financial asset 1s undar a contract whose terms require delivery af the financial asseat within the bmeframe
established by the market concemed They are iitrally measured at fair value plus transaction costs, excapt for those financial
assets classtfied as at far value through profit or loss, which are inittally measured at farr valus

Financial assets are classified inlo the following specified categones financial assets al ‘far value through profit or loss' (FYTRLY),
‘hald-to-matunty’ investments, ‘avalable-for-sale’ (AFS) financial assets and loans and receivables’ The clasarfication depends
on the nature and purpase of the financial assets and is determmed at the time of intal recognition The Group held no financral
assafts classified as held-to-matunty or AFS dunng the reporting penods presented herem

Effechve interest method

The effective mterest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of aliocatng interest ncoms
over the relevant penod The effective interast rata 15 the rate that exactly discounts sstmated future cash recerpts (ncluding all
fees and points paid or recerved that form an integral part of the effective mterest rate, transacton costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected Iife of the debt instrument, or, where appropnate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
mnitial recognibion

Income 1s recognised an an effective mterest basis for debt instruments ather than those financlal assets classified as at FVTPL
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

1. Significant accounting policies continued
Classes of financial asset

Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial assets are classifiad as at FYTPL when the financial assets either held for raging or is designated as at FVTRL

A financial asset 1s classified as heid for trading I1f

= )t has been acquired pnncipally for the purpose of seling in the near term

* Onthal recognition it 1s a part of a portfolio of identified financial nstruments that the Group manages together and has
a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking

* |t1s a derivative that s not designated and effective as a hedging instrument

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading may be designated as at FYTPL upon iwttal recegrinon

« Such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measuremant or recognition nconsistency that wauld otherwise anige

* The financial asset forms part of a group of financial assets or financial liabilimies or both, which 1s managed and its performance
is evaluated on a faw value basis, 1n accordance with the Group’s documented nsk management or investment strategy and
information about the grouping is provided internally on that basis

« |t forms part of a contract cantaiming one or more embedded denvatives and IAS 38 ‘Financial Instruments Recogmition and
Measurement’ permits the entire combineg contract (assel or liability) to be designated as at FVTPL

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at far value, with any gans or lasses arising on remeasurement recogrised in profit or loss The net
gan or loss recognised in profit or loss Incorporates any dividend or interest sarned on the financial assat and 1s included in the other
operating income hne tem n the Consohidated Staternent of Comprehensive Income Far value is determined i the manner described

innote 31.

The Group uses denvative financial instruments 1o reduce exposure to interest rate movernents The Group does not 1ssue or hoid
denvative financial instrumants for speculative purposes

Shared equity raceivables
Shared equity interests anse from sales mcentive schemes under which the Group acquires a contractuai entiiernent 1o receve

a praportion of the proceeds of sale of an apartment These trterests are narmally protectad by a legal charge over the relevant
apartment and/or a restnction on title

The value of the shared equity receivables changes in response to an underlying vanabie and therefore is accounted for as a
denvaiive The shared squily recewvables are intially recognised at far value, being the estimated future amount recevable by the
Group, discounted to present valug The far value of future anticipated cash receipts takes into account the Directors’ view of
future house price movernents and the expected timing of receipts The Directors revisit the future antcipated cash receipts from
the assels at each reporting date and the difference between the anticipated future recempt and the inwal far value 1s credited to

finance income/expense

Loans and receivables

Trade recevables, loans and ather receivablas that have fixed ar determinable payments that are not quated n an active market
are classiiied as ‘'loans and receivables’ Loans and receivables are measured at amartised cost using the effective interest
rmethod, less any iImparment Interest income s recogrised by applying the effective interest rate, except for short-tem
recevables when the recognmiion of interest would be immatenat

Financial rabiities and equity
Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial liabiltes or as equily In accordance with the substance of the

contractual arrangement

Equity instruments
An equity nstrument 1s any cantract that evidences a residdual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting al of its ilabiities

Equity instruments ssued by the Group are recagnised as the proceeds recenved, net of direct issue costs

Financial habilities
Financiat habiiies are classified as ‘other financial kabihties’

Other financial habilities
Other financial rabities, including borrowings, are iniially measured at farr value, net of transaction costs

Cther financial habiibes are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, with interest expense
recognised on an effective yield basis

The effective interest method 1s a methed of calculating the amaortised cost of a financiad habity and of allocating nterest expense
over the relevant penod The effective interest rate 15 the rale that exactly discounts asstimated future cash payments through the
expeacted Ifa of the financial habiity, or, where appropriate, a shorter perlod, to the net carrying amount on mibal recogrirtion
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1 Significant accounting polictes continued

Land-related promssory notas

Land-related prormissory notes are treated as financial labilties and are classified as land creditors or borrowings depending
on the substance of the contractual arrangernents

Share-based payment schemes

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees 1s measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which they are
granted and s recogrised as an expense over the vesting penod In valuing equity-settied transactions, ro account 1s taken of any
non-market based vesting conditions and no expense 1s recogmised for awards hat do not uitmately vest a3 a result of a falure to
sahsfy a non-market based vesting condition

The cost of cash-settled transactions 1s measured at far vaiue Farr value is estimated inmially at the grant date and at each
reporting penod end thereafter untl the awards are settled Market-based conditions are taken into account when determining
faw value

Further details regarding the schemes are set out in note 32

2 Outlook for adoption of future standards {new and amended)
There have not been any new standards and amendments adopted for the first time for the financial year ending 31 August 2016

At the dale of approval of the financial statements, the following standards and mterpretabons which have not been applied by

the Group in the Mnancial statements were in 1ssue but not yat effsctive fand n some cases had not yat been adopted by the EU)

» IFRS S ‘Financial instrumants' was reissued in October 2010 as the second stap in the International Accounting Standards
Board {IASB] project to replace |AS 39 ‘Financial instruments. Recognrt:on and Measurement' Dunng the year the IASB
reissuad IFRS & to include hedge accounting and details on sarly adophon The final revision to the standard incorporating the
impatment, classification and measwemant requirements was 1ssued by tha IASS n July 2014 and the standard is expacted
to be effective from 31 December 2018 The Group s currently assassing the impact of the revisions on the Group's results
and financial position

* IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’ was 1ssued on 28 May 2014 This standard sets out revenue recognition
conditions for the Group This 1s apphicable to accounting penods beginning on or afler 1 January 2018, once endorsed by
the EU The impact of this standard on the Group is being assessed

» IFRAS 16 ‘Leases’ was published in January 2016 This standard is a replacernent of the current leases standard IAS 17

Thes brings sigruficant changes to the accounting of leases by lessees IFRS 16 requires lessees (o recogruse a lease labity

refleching future lease payments and a ‘nght-of-usa asset’ for virtually all lease contracts The IASS has included an optonal

exermnplion, for lessess, for certain short-term leases and leases of iow-value assets, however, this exemption can only be

applied by lessees This 1s apphicable 1o accountng penods beginning on or after 1 January 2019, once endorsed by the EU

The impact this standard will have on the Group 1s baing assessed

Amendments o IFRS 11 ‘Acquisrdions of interests m Joint Operations’

Amendments to IAS 16 ‘Property, Plant and Equipment and IAS 38 Intangible Assels'

Amendments to I1AS 1 ‘Presantation of Financial Statements’

Amendmants to IAS 27 ‘Equity Method in Separate Financial Statemants'

Amendmenits t0 1AS 10 and 1AS 28 'Sale of Contrnibution of Assets betwsen an Investor and its Associate or Jont Venture'

Arnendments to IAS 7 'Statement of Cash Flows’

Amendments to IFRS 2 ‘Share-basaed Payments’

Annual improvements to IFRS 2012 - 2014 Cycle

The potential mpact of the above standards and mterprelations is stifi being assessed by the Group

3 Cnitical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are dascnbad in note 1, the Directors ars required to make
judgements, astimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and habiiities that are not readily apparent from
other sources The estimates and associated assumptions are based on histoncal sxpenence and other factors that are
considered to be relevant Actual resufts may differ from these estimates

The estimates and underting assumplions are reviewed on an ongomg basis Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
In the perod in which the estimate 1s rewised if the revision affects only that pencd, or in the penod of the revision and future
penods if the mwision affects hoth currant and future periads

Cntical judgements i applying the Group's accounting pohicias

The following are the critical judgements that the Directors have madle n the process of applying the Group's accounting policies
and that have the most significant effect on the amounts recogrised In the financial statements The cntical judgements made by
the Group all involve estimation uncartainty
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

3 Crnitical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty continued

Accounting and tax treatment of the iPO costs

Within the year the Group incurred exceptional costs in relation {0 transaction fees and other costs of listing These costs have
been reviewed by management under the accounting traatment gudance af IAS 32 to ensure the correct allocauon of costs
between share premiwm in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position and expanses wiihin the Consolidated Statement
of Comprehensive Income External advice has been sought regarding the tax treatment of these costs

Fair value of shared equity recevablas
Shared equity receivables are inmally recognised within revenue at farr value, being the estimated future amount recenable by the

Group, discounted 1o present day values The fair value of future anticipated cash receipts takes into account the Directors' view
of future house pnce movements and expected tirming of recepts The assessment of anticipated future cash flows from the
assets 1s camed out at each reporting date

Cost capitalisation of overheads

Inventory inciudes a proportion of design, construction, commercial and planning costs During the year procurement costs have
alsa been included within the cost calculations based on a change in the procurement focus and approach across the Group
Costs associated with these funchions are reviewed by management to attnbute those costs relating directly to the cost of the
developments to inventory and those that relate to general business overheads to expenses The assumptions vsed are reviewed
annually by the function heads before being proposed to the Risk and Audit Commitiee

Share-based payments
Assumptions are made in deterrmining the far value of employee services received in exchange for the grant of options under

share-based payment awards at the date of grant Assumptions are around lapse rates, share performance and the expected
outcoma of performance condittons An element of one af the equdy-settled sharg-based payment plans 1s subject to markat-
based condrtions, judgements have been made in order to determing the far values of this market-based element Further detall of
the share-based payment schemes has been prowided in note 32

4. Revenue Contimang operaions
Year endod 31 August ‘
2018 2015
Em £m
Urit sales 608 2 468 8
FR! revenue 27.7 169
6359 4857

All unit sales revenue arose from the sale of properties and 1s attnbutable to continuing operations All revenuse was generated
within the UK No indmdual custormer 1s significant to the Group's revenue in any penocd FRI revenue 1s explaned within note 1

5. Segmental analysis
IFRS 8 'Operating Segments’, establishes standards for reporting mformation about operating segments and refated disclosures,

products and services, geographic areas and major customers Operating segments are cormpanents of an enterpnss about
which separate financial information 1s available that 15 evaluated regularly by the chief operating deciston-maker in deciding how
to allocate resources and in assessing performance

The Group conducts its activities, made up of four key products, through a single operating segment Consequently, no detared
segment information has been presented

None of the Group's custormers represerted more than 10% of the Group's revenue generated from the building of retirement
apartments for any reporting penod presented heran

6. Profit for the year

Profit for the year has been arnved at after charging/(crediting) Gontinuing oparations
Year ended 31 August

2016 W5

Notes €m m

15 11 10

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Amortisation of intanglbles 14 2.5 25
Operating lease rental expense 28
Land and buildings 09 10
Plant and machinery 2.3 20
Cost of inventones recognised as an expense 436 0 31486
Staff costs 7 693 592
Changa in far value of denvatives 21 03 01
Share-based payments charge to profit and loss 32 15 15
03 25

Movement m inventory provision
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6. Profit for the year continued

Recoencihation to underlying operating profit and profit before tax
The followng tables present a reconciliation betwaen the statutory profit measures disclosed on the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income and the underlying measures used by the Board to appraise performance
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Exceptional items are items which, due (o their one-off, nan-trading and nan-recurring nature, have hean separately classified by
the Directors in order to draw them 10 the attention of the reader Amortisation of brand has been adjusted in order 10 reconcile
to underlying operating profit and underlying profit before tax given the Directors do not believe this cost reflects the undertying

trading of the businass In the judgement of the Directors this presentation shows the undertying psrformance of the Group
Exceplionals
Exceptional  Adjusted cost
Administrative  Amortisation
Statutory costs efbrand  Underlying
Year ended 31 August 2016 Nolas £m £m Emn £m
Operating profit 851 100 21 107 2
Finance mcome 9 27 - - 2.7
Finance expense 10 {4.9) - - 4.9}
Profit before tax 92.9 100 21 105.0
Income tax expense (19 4) 0.7} {0 4) (20 5}
Profit for the year from continuing operahons and
tolal comprehensive ncome 73.5 93 1.7 845
Earnings per share
Basic (p per share) 13.9 18 04 161
Diiuted {p per share) 139 18 04 161

The exceptional administrative costs in FY16 pnmanly relate to the transacton fees and other costs of isting (£8 5m} Other costs
recognised within exceptionals relate to redundancy and restructunng costs (€0 9m), Management Incentive Flan payments

{£0 4m} and refinancing and othar costs (£0.2m}

Exceptional costs Adjusted cost
Restructwing  Refiiancing  Amortisation
Stat relatad costs costs of brand Undadying
Year ended 31 August 2015 Noles mgrr"y £m £m £m £m
Opaerating profit 878 50 04 21 953
Finance income 9 12 - - - 12
Finance expense 10 81) - - - 81
Profit before tax 809 50 04 21 BB4
Income tax expense {166 {09 [(h)] 04 ({80
Profit for the year from continuing operations and
total comprehensive iIncome 643 41 03 17 704
Earnings per share
Adjusted basic (p per sharg}! 135 09 01 03 148
Adjusted divied {p per share) 135 09 01 03 148

1 Prior year EPS has baen adjusted to reflect the 4 1 share consokdaton that took placa N FY16 A reconcilation {o the previousty statad EPS has been provided in notg 2

The operating exceptional costs in FY15 relats to advisory costs in relation to a potental transaction, redundancy, office relocation
and restructuning costs following an operational review of the business, and advisory costs in refation 10 the refinancing of the

Group's debt

Auditor's remunaration

Coninuing cperalons
Year ended 31 August

2016 2015
£€m £m

Fges payable to the Group's auditor
Annual audit 02 02
Transaction related audit and advisory services 07 05
0.9 o7

There wara ne othar non-audit fees payable to Group auditor n the year

Audit fees in relation to joint ventures audited by the Group’s auditor wers £3,000 (2015 £2.000)
www mccarthyandstonegroup co uk
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

7. Staff costs

Staff costs for the year include Directors’ emoluments, which are detaied below Continuing aperations
Yaar ended 31 August
2016 2015
£m £m
Wages and salanas 58.4 503
Social security costs 6.5 57
Other pension costs 20 17
Share-based payments 1.5 15
Termination payments 0.9 -
693 592
The average number of persons, ncluding Execulive Directors, emplayed by the Group durng the year was as follows
Contruns) operations
Yaar ended 31 August
2016 2015
Number Rumber
Office management 1,048 824
Construction 24 220
1,289 1044
Al 31 August 2016, the Group employed 1,344 people {2015 1,158}
Amounts recognised n respect of Directors’ emoluments
Directors' emoluments Gontinuing operations
Year gnded 31 August
2016 205
€m £m
Wages and salanes 15 14
Social secunty costs 02 04
Share-based payments 06 o8
Other pension costs 0.2 -
25 28
The emoluments of the highest pad Director was £0 9m (2015 €0 7m), including pension contmbutions of nil (2015 mily
The number of Directors in the Company pension plan was two (2015 oneg)
8. Other income and expenses Continuing ons
Yaar anded 31 August
2018 2015
£m £m
Net rental ncome 06 03
Other ncome 5.9 46
Non-core business revenue 23 3¢
Land sates (loss)/profit 0.1 03
85 91

Other mcome arises on the services provided by Group subsidianes to manage cerlain developments Non-core business revenue

relates to other income such as rebates and customer extras

9. finance incomea Contiuing operatrons
Year eoded 31 August

2018 2015

£m Em

Change m far valug of shared equity receivables 2.5 09

Interest income received 0.2 03

27

12
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10. Finance expense

Conbnung operations
Yooar endad 31 August
206 2015
£m Em
Loans and overdraft fees 36 77
Promigsory note interest and feas as -
Refinancing issue costs 05 03
Fair value moverment on interest rate cap 03 01
4.9 g1
11 Tax 2016 2015
Hees tm om
Corporation tax charges
Current year 186 160
Adustments i respect of pror years o4 03
Deferred tax charges
Current year 20 12 av
Adjustrments in respact of pnor years - 02
19.4 166
The tax charge for each year can be reconciled to the profit per the come statemeni as follows 2016 2015
£m £m
Profit before tax on continuing operations 929 809
Tax charge at the UK corporation tax rate of 20 00% (2015 20 58%) 186 166
Tax effect of
Expenses that are nol deductible in determming taxable profit 15 03
Income not taxable in determining taxable profit ©1) 03
Adjustments in respect of previous periods {04) -
Other reconciing tems (02 -
Tax charge for the year 194 %6

Reductions in the rate of corporation tax 1o 19% and 18% from 1 Aprnil 2017 and 1 Apnl 2020 were substantively enacted on
18 November 2015 The UK deferred tax assets and habilites at 31 August 2015 have been calcufated based on the appropriate
rate at which the asset/labiity will unwind

12. Earnings per share

Bastc earnings per share s calculated as the profit for the financial penod attnbutable to shareholders of the Company dvidad by
the weighted average number of shares in 1ssue durng the period The actual weighted average number of ordinary shares during
the fult year ended 31 August 2016 was 525 6m for basic and 525 9m for diuted calculations, giving a statutory earnings per share
for the year ended 31 August 2016 of 13 9p (both basic and diuted)

2016 2015
Profit afinbutable to shargholders (Em) 731 841
Weighted average number of shares (m) 525.6 19056
Bastc garmings per share {p} 13.9 34

For diluted earnings per share, the weighted avarage number of shares in 1ssug 1s adjusted to assume the conversion of all
potentally dilutve ordinary shares At 31 August 2016, the Company had two categones of potentially diutive ordinary shares
1 9m nil cost share oplions under the 2015 LTIP and 4 1m 167 4p share options under the 2015 Sharesave plan

A calculatron 18 done to determine the number of shares that could have been acquired at far value based on the aggregate of the
exerciss pnce of each share option and the farr value of future services to be supplied to the Group, which 1s the unarnortised
share-based payments charge The diffarence between the number of shares that could have been acquired at far value and the
total number of options 1s used In the diluted earnings per share calcuiation
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12 Earmings per share continued 2016 2015
Profit used o determine diluted EPS {E£m) 734 641
Werghted average number of shares (m) 5256 19056

Adjustrnents for
Share options = 2015 LFIP {m) 0.3 -
Share ophons - 2015 Sharesave plan {m) - -
Shares used to determine diluted EPS (m) 5259 18056
39 34

Diluted earnings per share (p)

The year ended 31 August 2015 earmungs per share calculations shown below have been calculated using a rebased weighted
avarage number of ordinary shares of 476,387,438 {for both the basic and diluted calculaugns) to allow meaningful compangon
with the year ended 31 August 2016 earmings per share data This was pursuant to the consolidabon of the Group's share capital
at a raho of 4 1 which occurred on 11 November 2015

Earnings per share for the year ending 31 August 2015, reconciliation to prior year reported figures
Basic Ohutad

Profit atinbutable to shareholders (£m) 64 1 641
Wenghted average number of shares (m) 1,9056 19056
Earmings per share (p) 34 34
Reduction in shares following share consolidaton (1,429 2) {14292
Weighted average number of shares {m) - restated 476 4 476 4
Adjusted earmings per share (p) 135 135
13. Goodwiil em
Cost
At 1 September 2014 and 31 August 2015 and 2018 417
Carrying amount

a7

At 1 September 2014 and 31 August 2015 and 2016

No imparrment losses have been recognisad in anvy of the reporting penods presented herein

Goodwili arose as a result of an acquisiion n 2009 of the assets and liabiites of Monarch Realisations 1 plc (i hquidation)
As the goodwill refates to the business as a whole, 1t has not been aliocated to a specific CGU For key assumptions In
determining recoverable amounts in goodwill impairment testing, refer to note 16

14, Intangible assets Softwara Total
fm em £m

Cost

At 1 September 2014 414 29 44 3

Additions - 10 10

At 31 August 2015 114 39 453

Additions - 04 04

At 31 August 2016 414 4.3 457

Amortisation

At 1 September 2014 {11y - (11
Chargs for the year 21 {04 295
Al 31 August 2015 (132 € 4) (1386
Charge for the year (21) 04 25
At 31 August 2016 (15 3) {0 8) {16.1)
Carrying amount
At 31 August 2015 282 35 37
261 3.5 296

At 31 August 2016

Brand assets reprasent McGarthy & Stone pic brand name purchased as part of the business combmnation in 2009 Brand assets
have 12 years and 7 months of useful ife remaining

All amortisation charged 1s recogrused in administrative expenses n the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
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15 Property, plant and equipment

Fixtwras
fltings and
squipment Total
tm Em

Cost
At 1 September 2014 59 69
Additions 20 20
Disposals 29 {29}
At 31 August 2015 60 60
Addions 15 15
Disposals 03} @3)
At 31 August 2016 7.2 72
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
At 1 September 2014 40 @0
Charge for the year 10 (10}
Elminated on disposals 16 16
At 31 August 2015 34 34
Charge for the year (11} (1
Elminated on disposals 02 02
At 31 August 2016 {4.3) (4 3}
Carrying amount
At 31 August 2015 26 26
At 31 August 2016 29 29

16 Impairment testing

Dunng the perods reported i the financal statements, no wmparments have bean recagrused aganst the Group’s assets For
each reported pencd, management have performed an imparrment review of goedwill, being an indefinitely ived asset The Group
only has one CGU, baing the McCarthy & Stone {Developments) Limited’s business, which was acquired in 2009

The key assurmptions for the value m use calculations are those regarding the discount rates, growth rates and expected changes
to earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amartisation (EBITDA} used as a proxy of free cash flows beyond the budgeted
years) as well as the level of capital expenditure required 1o maintam the existing business nto the fidure These assumptions are
reviewed and revised annually 1n hght of cument economic conditions and the future outiook for the busingss Management
estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect current market assessments of the time valus of monay and the nisks
specific to the business, rates used for 2016 are 8 4% (2015 8 4%}

The farecast penod employed in the impairmant assessment was five years fallowed by an assessment of cash flows and growth
mito perpetuity The growth rates used are based on management's assessment of tha cash flow forecasts over the medium term
Due to the headroom withn the calculation no further growth has been assumed within the perpetuity calculation These are
based on conservatve estimates of the Group's abiiity to participate in the growth expected in the industry Changes n selling
prices and direct costs are based on past practices and expectalions of future changes In the market

The value of goodwill recogrised in the financeal statements has been compared to the derived value in use with no Impairmsnt
charges ansing The Group has conducted a sensitivity analysis on the key assumptions which ara matenal to the imparment
assessment including the discount rate, the cash flow projectons and the terminal growth rate and concluded no material
sansitivity exists in these calculations

No imparrment charges ware recarded on dems of property, plant and equipment throughout the penod cavered by these
financral staterments

17 Investment in joint ventures

The Group has a 50% ownership interest of ordinary shares in each of Kindle Housing (Worthing) Limited, Kindie Housing
{Chnstchurch) Lumuted and Kindle Housing (Exeter) Lirnited, which rent affordable housing to local key worker employees

The Group also has a 50% ownership interest in Kindle Housing Uimited, which manages atfordable housing These companres
are all registered in England and Wales

The Group accounts for its interests in these companies using the equrty method of accounting

The share of the assels, abiiies, mcome and expenses of the jointly controlled entities is not matenal
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18 Inventories 2016 2015
£m Em

Land hetd for development 2365 1309
Sites in the course of construction 2010 2588
Firished stock 248.3 1961
6858 5858

Days in inventory amounted t0 574 days in 2016 (2015 685 days)

Inventory days are calculated by taking cost of inventones recognised as an expense i the year divided by yearend inventory

19 Trade and other receivables 2016 2015
£m £
Trade and other receivables due in less than one year
Trade receivables 15 10
Other debtars and prepayments 6Q 99
75 109
Trade and other recewvables due wn greater than one year
Secured mortgages 34 35
Shared equity recewvabies 293 280
327 319

Trade receivables and secured mortgages disclosed above are classified as loans and recewvables and are measured al
amortised cost

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of trade and other racevables and non-current recevablas approximates ther

fair vatue

20 Deferred tax
The following are the major deferred tax liabilites and assats recognised by the Group

Accalorated Other

tax  temporery  Urvelieved
depractation differances  tax lossas Total
tm £m £€m £m
At 1 September 2014 02 04 - 06
Income statement charge 02 07} - 09
Al 31 August 2015 - 03 - @3
Income statement charge - {(12) - {12
At 31 August 2016 - {1.5) - {15)

Deferred tax assets are represented by postive values and deferred tax liabilties are represented by negative values in the

table abave

Deferred 1ax assets of £0 1m n relation to caputal losses camed forward were not recognised as thers s uncertanty as io whether

these losses could be utilsed by the Group prior to expiry (2015 £0 3m) Thase losses have no expiry date

21. Denvative financial assets 2018 2015
£m on
- 03

Interest rate cap
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22. Trade and other payables 2016 2015
£m om

Trade payables 268 230
UK carporation tax 84 85
Qther faxes and socia! secury costs 1.9 18
Accrued expenses 514 369
Other craditors 1886 136
1071 838

Trade payables and accrued expenses principally compnse amounts cutstanding for trade purchases and ongoing costs The
average credit penod taken for trade purchases was 21 days dunng 2016 (2015 20 days) No matenal interest costs have been
incurred in relation o such payables The Group pohcy 1s 1o ensure that payables are paid within the pre-agreed crednt tferms and
ta avoid ncumng peanalites and/or interest on late payments Other creditars include sales taxes, property taxes, socal secunty
and erployrent taxes due to local tax authories The Directors considar that the carrying amount of trade payables
approximates therr far value

No trade payables are purchased on extended payment terms

23 Land payahles 2018 -
&m £m
Land payables 49.3 365

Land payables relate to payment due in respect of land which has been purchased under an uncondrttonal contract

24. Borrowings

Short-term borrowings 2018 2015
£m £m

Promissory notes 1.3 -
Long-term borrowings 2016 2015
£m £m

Loans 55.0 900
Unamortised 1ssue costs {2 5) @2
Prornissory notes - 13
525 992

Quistanding at 31 August

206 2015

Maturity £m £m

Revolving Credit Faciity May 2021 550 960

Dunng Decembar 2014, the £160 Om term debt faciity was replaced by a new £200 Cm revolving credrt facity (RCF}, with a
five-year term, matunng Decernber 2019 The naminal nterest rate of this faciity has been amended within the yearto a1, 3 or 6
month UBOR + 1 6% 2015 1, 3 or 6 month LIBOR + 2 5%) depending on the length of the drawdown As at 31 August 2018,

£55 0 (2015 £90 0m} was drawn The RCF 1s secured by a floating charge over the assels of McCarthy & Stone plc, McCarthy &
Stone Retrement Lifestyles Limred, McCarthy & Stone (Davelopments) Limited, McCarthy & Stone Extra Care Living Limited and
McCarthy & Stone Total Care Management Lirnited

In May 2018, an amendment was made to the RCF agreement to i/mprove commercial terms and extend the facity's matunty date
from 19 December 2019 to 23 May 2021 As part of the amendment the margins have been reduced There have been no
charges to the size of the faciity

Land-related prormssory notes with terms of three 10 six months were used for two land acguisitions in the pror year The fotal

finance cost of the land-related promissory notes is 496 The land-related promissory notes nssue are structured as ancillary
faciiies of the RCF and are therefore linked to the securtty arrangemants discussed above

www mccarthyandstonagroup co uk
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25. Net (cash)/debt 2015 2015
£m £m
Loans 63.7 98 2
Add back unamorbsed r1ssue CoSts 2§ 21
Cash and cash equivalents {113 0} 56 9)
Net ([cashy/debt {52 B) 44 4
Add back land-related promigsory notes 113) (113
{Net cash)/net debt excluding land-related promissory notes {64 1) 331

Net debt is a non-GAAP measure and s calcuiated as cash and cash equivalents less long-term and short-term borowings
{excluding unamorbsed debi 1ssue costs) As at 31 August 2015, net debl was reporied as cash and cash equivalents less
lang-term barrawings {excludng land-ralated promissory notes and unamortsed dabt issue costs)

26. Share capital
The Company has one class of ordinary shares which carry no nght to fixed income There 1s no imit to authonsed share capital

2018 203
Number Numbsr
000 000

issusd and fully pard
QOrdinary shares of 8p (2015 20p) each 537,314 1,805,550
2016 2015
£'000 £'000

Issued and fully paid
Qrdinary sheres of 8p (2015 20p) each 42,985 381,110

Issuance of equity securities

Capital reduchon of share capital and share prermum

In order to create additional distributable reserves for the Company, the Cornpany rescived, by a special resolution passed as a
written resofution on 26 October 2015, that the norminal valug of the Company’s shares be raduced from 20p to 2p, reducing the
amount standing to the credit of share capital account of the Company by £342,998,955 18 from £381,109,950 20 to
£38,110,985 02 and that the Company's share prermium of £56,400,000 be canceliad

Issuance of new shares in refation to the Management Incentive Plan

On 26 Qctober 2015, the Campary resalved, by a special resolution passed as a watten resolution, to 1ssus 43,706,526 ordinary
shares at a nominal value of 2p to the 16 partitipants n the Management Incentive Plan in sxchange for the transfer by these
participants of the shares held by them in M&S MipCo S ar!

Consoligation of share capital
On 26 October 2015, the Company resoived by special resclution passed as witien resoluion, 1o consohdate the issued and fully

paid ordinary share caprtal of the Campany at a ratio of 4 1

Issuance of new shares in relation to primary proceeds from the IPO

On 26 October 2015, the Company resolvad, by a special resolution passed as a wnitten resolution, to 1ssua 50,000,000 new
ordinary shares of the Company at a nommal value of 8p pursuant to the raising of prmary praceeds from the IPO These shares
were 1ssued on 11 November 2015

Dwidends on equity shares
The intenm dividend was approved by the Board on 18 Apnl 2016 and paid on 31 May 2016 to all ordinary shareholders on the

regrster of members at the close of business on Friday 29 Apni 2016, The ex-dmdend date was 28 Aprl 2018 The final dvidend
proposed by the Boarchs 3 5p per share resulting in a total ordinary dvidend for the year of 4.5p, t wili be pait on 1 February
2017 to thosa sharehaldars wha are on the register at 6 January 2017 subject to approval at the Comparry's Annugl General
Mesting The ex-dmvidend date is 5 January 2017 These financial statemenis do not reflgct the final dvidend payment
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27. Share premium reserve 2016 oM
£m €m
Share premium 100.8 564

The share premium reserve represents the consideration that has been receved in excess of the norminal value of shares on 1ssue
of new ordinary share capntal

Maovements n share capital are explaned within note 26, and presented within the Consolidated Statement of Changas m Equity

28 Operating lease arrangements 2018 o5
£m £m
Minimum lease payments under operating leases recognised as an expense during the year 32 30

At year end the Group had outstanding commitments for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases,

winch fall gue as foliows 2016 2015

£m £m
Within one year 39 32
in the second to fifth years incluswe 87 78
After five years 28 28
Qutstanding commitments for future mintmum lease payments 15.4 138

Operating lease payments typically represent rentals payable by the Group for its office properties and cars Rent reviews and
break clauses apply to leased property agreements

29 Notes to the cash flow statement 2016 2016
Notag €m £m
Profit for the financial year 735 643
Adustments for
Income tax expense " 19.4 166
Amortisation of intangibles 14 25 25
Share option charge 32 15 15
Ospreciation of property, plant and equipment 15 11 10
Intarest expense 10 4.9 81
Interest income 9 {2.7) (12
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital 100 2 928
Decrease/(increase} in trade and other receivabies 2.2 55)
{Increase) in mnventones (99 5} (78 9)
Increase n trade and other payables 375 322
Operating cash flows before interest and tax paid 40.4 406
Interest recenved 02 03
Interest paid {4 1) 80
Income taxes paid (18 2) {132
Cash generated by operations 183 197
Net cash inflow from operating activities 183 197
201§ 218
£m £m

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and bank balances 1180 569

Cash and cash equivalents compnse cash and bank balances and short-term bank deposits with an onginal maturity of thres
months or less, net of outstanding bank overdrafts The canying amount of cash and cash equivalents approximates fair value

The ncrease n mventones compnses movements In inventories and nvestrment property {transferred to inventory), offset by the
issuance of promissory notes in raspact of two land acquistions The transfer of nvestment property to inventory and the 1ssuance
of promusgory nates represent non-cash movernents recognised agamnst tha associated inventory

The increase in trade and other payables includes the movernent in land payables
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30 Retirement benefit schemes
The Group operates a stakeholder defined cantribution retirement benefit scheme which is open o all employees

Other than amounts that are deducted from employees’ remuneration and accrued pending payment ta the benefit scheme, no
further obligations fall on the Group as the assets of these arangements are held and managed by third parties entrely separate

from the Group

The benefit scheme charge for the penod represents contnbutions payable to the benelit scheme and amounted to £2 Om for the
year ended 31 August 2016 {2015 £1 7m) Unpard contnbutions amounted to £0 2m as at 31 August 2016 {2015 £0 2m)

31 Financial nisk management
The Group's financal instruments comprise cash, bank loans and overdrafts, trade recelvables, other financtal assets and trade

and other payables

financial instr fn
Categornies of financial mnstruments 2018 2015

Financial assets

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Shared equity recewvables

Interest raie cap

Loans and receivables.

Cash and cash equivalents

19 29.3 280
21 - 03

29 190 569

Trade and other recenvables 19 2.2 51
150.5 ag3
Financial habilities
Amortised cost:
Trade and cther payables 22 92.0 773
Land payables 23 49 3 365
Loans 24 525 879
Land-related promissory notes 24 "3 n3
205.1 2130

Capital nsk management

The Group manages its caprtal {being debt, cash and cash equivalents and squity) to ensure entities within the Group have a
strong capital base in order to continue as going concerns, to maintain investor and creditor confidence and to provide a basis for
the future development of the business while maximising the retumn to stakeholders

The Group 15 not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements Equity includes all caprial and reserves of the Group that
are managed as capital

The Group does not routinely make additional issuss of capital, other than for the purpose of raising finance for the management
of the cost of capital of the Group or to fund significant developments designad to grow valug m future

Share-based payment schemes have been introduced to allow senior employees of the Group to participate in the ownership of
ong of the Group entities in order 1o ensura the senior employees are focused on growing the value of the Group to achieve the

aims of all shareholders

Financial nsk management

The Group's finance function is responsible for all aspects of corporate treasury It co-ordinates access to financial markets and
monitars and manages the financial nsks relating to the operatians of the Group through internal reperts which analyse exposures
by degree and magritude The nsks reviewed nclude market nsk (including currency risk, far value interest rate nsk and pnce
risk), credit nsk, iquidity nsk and cash fiow Interest rale nsk

The Board 1s responsible for managing these nsks and the policies adopted are as set out below

Housing market nsk management

The Group's activities expose it prrmanly to macrogconomic nisks such as deflation and the cyclical nature of UK property prices

A deteroration in the economic outlook could have a significant impact an the Group’s financial performance and the Group has

the following procedures which mitigate its market related operational nsk

* The Group closely monstars industry indicators and assesses the patantial timpact of drfferent econarmic scenanos

= Decisions to alocate new capital to land and buld are managed centrally through the Group investrment Committes, memberstip
of which wmcludes the Group Chief Execulwve Officer, the Group Chief Financial Officer, the National Operations Director and the

Land and Planming Dwector
+ The Group ams {0 mamntain a natonal and product spread of developments to ensure that it 1s not rekart on one parbcular

location, development or product
s The Group underiakes a weekly review of sales, reservations and incentives at regional and Group level
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31. Financial sk management continued

The valus of the Group's house price linked financial assets is sensiive to UK house pnces smee the amount repayabla 1s
dependent upon the market price of the property to which the asset 1s inked At 31 August 2018, if UK house pnces were 5%
lower for a one-year period and all other vanables were held conslant, the Group's house pnce linked financial assets would
decrease in value, excluding the effects of tax, by £1 1m with a corresponding reduction in both the result for the ysar and equity

Credit risk management

Credit nsk refars to the nisk that a countarparty will default an ts contractual abligations resuling n financal loss @ the Group
The Group has a low exposure {o credit sk due to the nature and legal framework of the UK housing ndustry As stated i the
Group's actounting policy for revenue recogniion, a sale 1s only recogmised upon legal cormpleton and this 15 accormpanied by
full cash raceipt In virtually all cases

In certan crcumstances the Group offers sales incentives resulting n a long-term debt being recognised under which the Group
will receve a proportion of the resale proceeds of an apartment The Group's equity share is protected by a registered entry on
the title and usually reprasents the first interest in the property A reduction in property values leads to an ncreass n the credit nek
of the Group n respect of such sales

The credit nsk relating to shared equity recevables 1s deemed iImmatenal as the value 1 recovered though subsequent disposal of
the related asset, As a result, management consider the credi quairty of these receivables to be good in raspect of the amounts
outstanding, resulting in iow credit nsk Exposura to house price sensiivity 1S built into the farr value calculation

Trade recewvables consist of a large number of customers, spread across differant regions Ongoing credit evaluation is performed
on the financial condihion of trade recevables

The Group does not have any significant credit nsk exposure to any single counterparty or group of counterparties having similar
charactenstics The Group defines counterparbes as hawng similar charactenstics if they are related enties There 15 no matenal
concentration of credil nsk In respect of one individual customer

The carrying amount recorded for financial assets in the financial statemants s net of ’mparment losses and reprasents the
Group's maximum exposure to cradn nsk No guarantees have been given m respect to third parties in addrtion for contracted
rental agreements deposits or advances may be held to ritigate nsk The Group also holds legal recourss and ¢an exercise s
nght to recover rental equiprment from non-performing customers

Liquidity risk management

Lquidity nsk s the nek that the Group will encounter difficulty in mesting obligations assoctated with financial habibbes The Group's
strategy in relaton to managing iiquidity nsk 1s to ensure that the Group has sufficient cash flow iquid funds to meet all its potential
hatiiies as they fall due The Group produces cash fiow forecasts to monitor the expected requirements of the Group agamnst the
avallable faciibes The principal nsks with thesa cash flows relate to achieving the level of sales volumes and pnces in line with
current forecast

The matunty of the financial kabiltties of the Group at 31 August 2018 1s as follows

2015

Campng  Contractisg!
value cash flows Wi 1 year 2-5 years 5+ yeers
£ £m £m £m Em
Loans 900 1028 39 2389 -
Other finarciat iabihties carrying mterest 13 17 03 14 -
Financial habilities carrying no interest 1138 1138 1138 - -
Total 2151 2283 1180 103 -

2016

Carrying Centractual
value  cashflows Withmn 1year 2-Syears S+ years
£m £m £m £m €m
Loans §5.0 647 2.0 627 -
Qther financial habiites carrying interest 11.3 14 11.4 - -
Finangiai iabilties carrying ne interast 1413 141.3 141.3 - -
Total 2076 2174 1547 627 -

Other financial labilities carrying interest are promissary notes, which attract avatlability and discount fees Financial iizbiilies carrying
no interest are trade and other payables and land payablas The tming and amount of future cash flows given in the table above is
based on the year-end position
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31. Financial nsk management continued

{nterest rate risk management
Interest rate nsk refiects the Group's exposure to fluctuations to interest rates m the market Tha nsk anses because the Group’s

RCF 15 subject to floating mterest rates based on LIBOR From 2015 tha interest rate risk has been partally mitigated by the
purchase of an interest rate cap See note 21 for further details

In the year ended 31 August 2016, if UK interest rates had been 0 5% higher or iower, as this 15 a reasonably possile change, and
all other vanances were held constant, the Group's pre-tax profit would decrease/increase by £0 5m (2015 £0 7m) Calculations
have been based on borrowing values at each month end

Fair vaiue of financial instruments

Valuatron techniques and assumptions applied for the purposes of measunng fair value

Faw value of financial instruments carned at amortised cost

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial habilties recorded at amortised cost In the

financial staternents approximate therr far values

Bank and other loans
Farr value 15 calculated hased an discounted expected future pnncipal and interest Aows

interest rate swaps
Al each perod end, ihe Directors appoint a vaijuer to perform an external valuaiion of the farr value of each ierest rale swap or

cap outstanding Farr values ara based an braker quotes, which ara reviawed by the Directors and reflact the actual transactions in
similar mstruments

Valuation of level 1, 2 and 3 financial assets and abiiihes
* The far values of financial assets and financial habilthies wath standard terms and condibons and traded on active lquid markels

are datermined with reference to quoted rnarket pnces (iIncludes Iisted redeemable notes, bilis of exchange, debentures and
perpetual notes)

* The far values of other financial assets and financial labilities {gxcluding denvative mstruments) are determined in accordance
with generally accepted pnoing models based on discounted cash flow analysis using pnces from obsearvable current market
transactions and dealer quotes for similar instruments

+ The farr values of denvative instruments are calculated using quoted pnces Where such pnces are not available, a discounted
cash flow analysis 1s performed using the applicable yreld curve for the duration of the instruments for non-optional denvatives,
and option pncing models for optional denvatwes Foreign currancy forward contracts are measured using quoted forward
exchange rates and yield curves derived from quoted interest rates matching maturities of the cantracts Interest rate swaps are
measurad at the present value of future cash flows estimated and discounted based on the applicable yield curves danved

from quoted mierest rates

Fair value measurements recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured subsequent to nitial recogrition at farr value

The grouping into Levals 1 to 3 1s based on the degree to which their far value 15 observable
Level 1 far vatue measurements are those denved from quoted pnces (unadjusied) n achive markets for identrcat assets or
latnltties

* Level 2 far value measurernents are those denved frorn nputs other than quoted prces included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or kability, either directly {ie as prnces) orindirectly (ie denved from prices)

+ Lovel 3 far valug measurements are those derved from valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset or habity that are
not baged on gbsearvable market data (unobservabla inputs)

The financral instruments heid by the Group that are measured at far valus all relate to financial assets measured at fair valug
through profit and loss (FYTPL) using methods associated with Lavel 3 The sensitnatios are not matenat on assets held at farr value

2015
Lovel 1 Leva 2 Level 3 Totel
£m £m om £m

Flnancial assets at FVTPL
Shared equity recevables - - 280 280
Interest rate cap - - 03 03
Total financial assets designated at FVTPL - - 283 283

2018

Level Level2 Lovet 3 Totas
£m £m £m £m

Frnancial assets at FVTPL
Shared equity récevables - - 29.3 293
Intarest rate cap - - - -
- - 28.3 283

Total financial assets dasignated at FVTPL
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31 Financial risk management continued
There were no transfers between Levals 1, 2 or 3 the year

Financial assets compnse shared equity loans secured by way of a second charge on the property, investment properties and an
intarest rate cap

Financial assets are recorded at fair value, being the estimated amount recevable by the Group, discounted to present day values

For shared equity recevables the fair valus of future anticipated cash receipts takes mto account the Directors’ views of an
appropriate discount rate, a new build premium, future house price movements and the expected iming of receipts These
assumptions cover a vanety of different schemes and the range of assumptions used are stated below The assumphons are
reviewed at each penod end

Assumptions 2018 205
Ciscount rate 47t05.1% 47 t052%
Naw burld premium 5% 5%
House pnee inflation 0tod4.0% (to32%
Timing of receipt 5to12yrs 61to12yrs
206 2018

Increase Dacrease

by 1“;!yaar by ﬂgtyear
Sensitivity-effect on value of other tinancial assets{less)/more em £m

Discount rate (24) 27
House price inflation 23 {2.1)
Timing of receipt {1.3) 13

The Dwrectors review the anttcipated future cash receipts from the assets at each reporting date and the difference betweaen the
anticipated future receipt and the inhial far value 15 credited to finance mcome

At iniiral recognition, the farr values of the asssts are calculated using a discount rate appropniate ta the class of assets that reflects
market conditions at the date of entenng nto the transaction The Drectors consider at the end of each reporting penod whether
the mritial market discount rate stll reflects up to date markst condiions I a revision 1s required, the farr values of the asssts are
remneasured at the present value of the revised future Gash fiows using this revised discount rate The difference between thase
values and the camyng values of the assets 1s recorded against tha carrymg value of the assets and recognised directly n the
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income,

The following tables present the changes in Level 3 instruments for the years ended 31 August 2015 and 2016

2015
Shared
acuaty \ntarest
raceiables retecan Totat
£m £m om
Opening balance 243 - 243
Additiong 48 04 52
Disposals v] - 20}
Revaluation gams or {losses) recognised i the income statement 09 {0.1) 08
Ciosing balance 28.0 03 283
2016
Shared
equity interest
recgivables rate cap Total
£m £m £m
Opening balance 28.0 0.3 283
Additions 05 - 05
Disposals in - 17
Aevaluation gans or {fosses) recogmsed in the ncome statement 25 {03) 22
Closing balance 293 - 293
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32, Share-based payments
Cash-settled and equity-settied share-based payment scheme

Within the year the existing Management Incentve Plan that had been granted to certain employees crystailised This Plan was a
partly equity-settted and partly cash-settied sharg-based payrment arrangement whereby the employees were ennitled to a cash

bonus and shares i cenan future conditions were mat

The spht of equity and cash was based on a hurdle machanism which accrued from a predetermined starting equity value
compounded at a set rate of intergst per annum The cash payment was a percentage of the final valuation above the starting
equity but below the hurdle The shares entitled the parucipants o a percentage of the total value created above the hurdle
debvered n McCarthy & Stone pic shares The number of Directors m respect of whose qualifying services shares were receved

or recevable under long-term incentive schemes was six (2015 five)

Equity-settled share-based payment

The cost of the equity-sattied transactions with the participants 1s measured by reference to therr far value at the date at which
they are granted and is recognised as an expense over the expected vestng penod In 2014, 19,150 shares were issued to the
paracipants and the far value of tha shares at the grant date was measured al £1 3m based on management’s most recent
valuation Therefore, the Group recogrised a cost of £0 1m in the year ended 31 August 2016 (2015 £0 9m) n the Consohdated

Staterment of Comprehensive Income in relation to the equity-gettled share-based payment

Upon crystaliisation a total of 43,708,526 shares were issued to participants of the Management tncentive Plan fpost consolidated
figure of 10,826,632 shares} Further information on movements to share capstal within the year 1s included m note 26

Cash-setiled share-based payment

The total cash payment made under this scheme was £0 8m The farr value in refation to the cash paymant of the scheme as ai
31 August 2016 was Eni foliowing full setilernent (2015 £0 9m) Due to the crystalisation within the yoar there 1s no fair valye in
relation {0 the cash payment of the scheme as at 31 August 2016 2015 £09m) The Group recogrused & total cost of £0 3m
(2015 £0 6m) in relstion to the cash-settled share-based payment during tha year ended 31 August 2016

Equity-settled share-based payment plans

Followng the IPD of the Group mn November 2015, the Group entered into new share incentive plans the McCarthy & Stane plc
Long Term incentive Plan {the LTIP), and the McCarihy & Stone pic Annual and Deferred Bonus Plan {the ABP) In addibion, the
Group has also established two all-employee share incentive pians the McCarthy & Stone plc Share Incertve Plan (the SIP) and

the McCarthy & Stone plc Sharesave Plan {the SAYE)

Long Term Incentive Plan

Burnng the penod the Group introduced a LTIP for key management at the discretion of the Board Awards under the scherne are
granted in the form of ni-priced share options  LTIP awards will normally vest, and LTIP options become exeraisable, on the third
anniversary of the date of the grant of the LTIP award to the extent that any applicabte performance conditions have been

satisfied LTIP Options will remain exercisable for ten years after the date of the grant Awards are fo be settled by the ssue of new
shares or acquisition of shares in the market The performance conditions for the first grant under the LTI are earnings per share
{(EPS). comparative shareholder return (TSR} and return on capital employed (ROCE) The TSR performance condition 1s a

market-based condition In order to valus the TSR performance condions against the FTSE 250, a Monts Carlo simutahon modal

I1s required which can simulate correlation bhetwean companies

LTIP 2018
Date of grant 25 November 2015
Options granted 1,830,524
Farr vaelue at measurement dats’ {€) 212
Share pnce on date of grant (£) 232
Exercise pnce (£) 0
Vesting period 3years
Expected dividend yield /a
Expected volatility 26 07%

08%pa

Risk free interest rate
Vatuahon model
Movements in the year

Black-Scholes and Monte Carlo

Options at beginning of the year 0
Granted dunng the year 1,930,524
Exercised during the year 0
Lapsed during the year 113,888
Expred in the year 0
Options at the end of the year 1,816,636

o

Exercisable at end of the year

1 Thisis the gverage falr value of the far values for iha three iranches of the LTIP gcheme
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32 Share-based payments continued
The weighted average of the averags price for the LTIP award s rul

Expected volatility was determined by calculating the average histoncal volatility over a period commensurate with the expected
life of the award for the LTIP based on the FTSE 250, which McCarthy & Stone are a constituent of post-IPO

Sharesave Plan
The SAYE Plan is an all-employee savings related share option plan Employess are inwited to maka reqular monthly contributions

10 a SAYE scheme operated by Capita Asset Services On completion of the cantract panod {three or five years) employees are
abie to purchase ordmary shares in the Company based on the average closing middie market pnce over the three days prior to
the award, less 20% discount There are ng performance conditions

Waighted average

exercise price

SAYE 2016 2016 Totat 2016
Date of grant 10 Decermber 2016 10 December 2016
Options granted 2,912,247 1,197,514
Faw value at measurement date (€) Q68 Q7s
Share pnce on date of grant (£} 234 234
Exercise price (£) 1674 1674
Vasting penod 3 years 5years
Expected dividend yetd 26 20% 28 16%
Expected volatiity 2607% 2607%
Risk free nterest rate 08%pa 12%pa
Valuation model Black-Scholes Black-Scholes
Movements In the year
Options at begmning of the year - - - -
Granted during the year 2812247 1197514 4,109,761 1674
Exercised during the year - - - -
Lapsed duning the year {259,219) {35.839) {295,058} 1674
Expired in the year - - - -
Options at the end of the year 2,653,028 1,161,675 3,814,703 1674

Exercisable at end of the year - - - —

Expected volatiity was deterrmined by calculating the average histoncal volatiity over a period commensurate with the expected
hie of the savings terrn for the SAYE optons, based on the FTSE 250, which McCarthy & Stone are a conshivent of post-iPO

Share Incentive Plan

in May 2016, the Group established a Share Incentive Plan available to all employess This allows employees to purchase
parinership shares each month from pre-tax pay, which are then held i trusi These shares can be soid or taken from the SIP or
be left within the trust for as long as the plan remains open All plan shares and any other assets held by the trustees will be held
upon trust for the parbcipants, there s therefore no impact to the Group's financial statements in respect of this plan

Annual and Deferred Bonus Plan

The ABF incorporates the Company's executive bonus scheme as well as a macharism for the defarral of bonus into awards
over ordinary shares All employess (including the Exacutve Directors) of the Group are elgible to participate in the ABP at the
discretion of the Board At 31 August 2016, three Executive Directors were participating in the scheme  As maximum bonus
{argets have not been actieved, a cash portion of the bonus has been awarded

Total Share Incentive Plan

2016 5
Analysis of the income charge £m £m
Equity-settled and cash-settled share-based payments
Management Incentive Plan 04 15
Equity-settled share-based payments
SAYE 0.4 -
LTIP 0.7 -
1.1 -
15 15

WwWww mccarthyandstonegroup co uk
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

33 Subsidiaries

Company  Class of 2018 2015
Name Principal actty number shares % %
McCarthy & Stone (Developments) Limited Holding company 06622183 Ordinary 100 90
McCarthy & Stone Retirement Ldfestyles Limited Davaloper 06622231 Ordinary 100 100
McCarthy & Stone (Equity Interests) Limited Property investment 05663330 Ordinary 100 100
McCarthy & Stone (Home Equity Interests) Limited Property investment 05984851 Ordinary 100 100
MecCarthy & Stone Investment Properties No 23 Limited” Property mvestment 06496130 Ordinary 100 100
McCarthy & Stone (Totat Care Living) Limited” Property mvestirment 06069503 COrdinary 100 100
McCarthy & Stone {(Alnwick) Lamited” Property investment 07517819 Ordinary 100 100
McCarthy & Stone {Extra Care Lving) biuted Property investment 06897363 Orchinary 100 100
McCarthy & Sione Total Care Management Limited Property investment 06897301 Ordinary 100 100
McCarthy & Stone Rental Interests No 1 Limited” Property investment 06897272 Ordnary 100 100
McCarthy & Stone Managemertt Services Lirmited Development management 07166051 Ordinary 100 100
McCarthy & Stone Lifestyle Services Limited” Holding company 07165986 Ordmary 100 100
McCarthy & Stone Financial Services Limited” Financial services 07798214 Qrdinary 100 100
Keyworker Properties Limited Property investment 04213618 Ordinary 100 100
McCarthy & Stone Estates Linided” Property resale 07165952 Qrdinary 100 100
Yourlife Management Services Limited Development management 07153519 Ordinary S50 50
McCarthy & Stone Indepandent Living Limited Cormant 06897315 Ordinary 100 100
McCarthy & Stone Properties Umited* Dormant 01925738 Ordinary 100 100
The Planning Bureau Limited” Dormant 02207050 Ordinary 100 100
Ortus Homes Limited Dormant 08658235 Ordinary 100 100

Thess UK subaidianes will take advantage of the audl axamption get out within saction 478A of the Companees Aci 2006 {or the year andad 31 August 20168

Each of the above sharsholdings gives the immediate Parent Company 100% voting rights, with the exception of Yourlife
Management Services Limited where the parent has 50% voling nghts, but the power to appoint the maonty of the Directors

Accordingly this gives the Group power over the relevant activities of this enbity

The registered address of all of the above subsidianes 1s 4th Floor, 100 Holdenhurst Road, Bournemouth, Dorset, BH8 8A0

34. Related party transactions

Balances and transactrons between the Parent Company and its subsidianes, which are related parties, have been eliminated on
consolidation and are not disclosed in this note Transactions between the Group and other related partres are disclosed below

Remuneration of key management personnel

The key management personnel are the executve leadsrship team The remuneration that they have recewved dunng the year s
set out below in aggregate for each of the categones specified in IAS 24 ‘Related Party Disclosures’

2018

25

£m £m
Short-term employee benefits 25 32
Share-based payments 09 11
Pension contnbutions 0.2 02
Termination payment 04 -
40 45
0.9 07

Aggregate emoluments of the highest paid Director

As part of the Management Incentive Plan shares totaling 33,098,147 were 1ssued to key management personnel, prior to share

consoldation Note 26 detais movements in share capital within the year

35 Events after the balance sheet date

There were no events after the reporting penod that required adjustment or disclosura in the financial statements
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Parent Company Statement of Financial Position

As at 31 August 2016

2016 2015

Notes £m mn
Assets
Non-current assets
Investrments in subsidianes 4 439.4 197
Total non-current assets 4394 4197
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 5 104 3 175
Cash and cash gquivalents - -
Total current assets 104 3 175
Total assets 5437 4372
Eguity and habihties
Capitaf and reserves
Share capital 430 3811
Share premium 1008 564
Retained eamings 394.3 {25
Total equity 6 538.1 4350
Currant liabthities
Trade and other payables 7 56 22
Total current iabilities 56 22
Total habilities 56 22
Total equity and hiabilities 5437 4372

Notes 1 to 12 form part of the financial staterments shown above

There were no recognised gains and losses for the year other than the profit far the year (2015 nil)

The Comipany has elected to take the exemption under section 408 of the Comparues Act 2006 not to prasent the Parant

Company profit and loss accaunt The Company recorded a profit for the year of £1 7m (2015 £ni)

These financial statements of McCarthy & Stone plc (06622199) were approvaed by the Board on 14 November 2016 and signed

on its behaif by

Chive Fenton

Nick Maddock
Director Director

'l'f-,'(;;:"
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Parent Company Statement of Changes in Equity

For the yecr ended 31 August 2016

Shere Sharg Ratainad
capital PrBIMmiAm eamings Tota!
Notes £ £m £m £m

Balance at 1 Septembar 2014 3811 56.4 (25} 435.0
Prafit for the period - - - -
Total comprehensive income for the penod - - - -
Balance at 31 August 2015 3811 56 4 (25} 4350
Profit for the pertod - - 17 17
Total comprehensive income for the period - - 17 17
Transactions with owners of the Company
Issus of ordinary shares B 49 104 8 - 1097
Capital reduction of share capital and share premium G (343 Q) {56 4) 399 4 -
Share-based payments 9 - - 11 11
Share 1ssue related cosls 6 - 40} - (40
Onrdends 6 - - 54 54

430 100 8 394.3 5381

Balance at 31 August 2016

Nates 1 to 12 form part of the financial statements shown above
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Parent Compcany Cash Flow Statement
For the yecor ended 31 August 2016
2018 2015

Notas &m £m
Net cash inflow from operating activities B 5.4 (1]
Financing activities
Proceeds from issue of share captal 6 860 -
Dividencls paid 8 (5 4) -
Net cash from financing activities 806 -
Investing activities
Amounts owed in respect of share issuance 6 (86 0} -
Net cash used in investing activities (86 0) -
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 00 00
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 00 00
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 0.0 Q0

Notes 1 to 12 form part of the financial statements shown above

www mecarthyandstonegroup co uk
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Notes to the Parent Company Financial Statements

1 Accounting policies
McCarthy & Stone pic s a imited liabiity company incorporated in England The regisiered office 15 4ih Floor, 100 Holdenhurst

Road, Bournemouth, Dorset, BH8 8AQ The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with the rtems
that are considerad material in relaion to the financial statements, on an ongoing basis and in accerdance with the Companies

Act 2006

Basis of preparation
The Company financial statements have been prepared under the tustoncal cost accounting rules and In accardance with

applicable UK Accounting Standards

Under section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 the Company 1s exempt from the requirement to present its own profit and loss
account The Cormnpany recorded a profit for the year of £1 7m (2015 Enil)

The pnneipal accounting policies adopted are set out below

Adoption of Financial Reporting Standard (FRS) 102

Following the publicaton of FRS 100 Application of Financial Reporting Requirements by the Financial Reporting Courncil’, the
Company 1s required to change its accounting framewaork for its Parent Company financial statemants, which 1s currently UK
GAAP The Company has adopted FRS 102 The Financial Raporting Framawork’ far ts Parent Gompany financial statements

Details of the transition to FRS 102 are disciosed in note 12

No thsclosure exemnptions have been applied in the preparation of the Company financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries
nvestments in Group undertakings are included in the Statement of Financial Postion at ¢ost isss any provision for impairment

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equwvalents compnse cash and short-term bank deposits with an onginal maturty of three months or less, net of

outstanding bank overdrafts

Share-based payments
The cost of equity-settled transactions with employaes & measured by reference to the fay valus at the date at which they are

granted and 1s recognised as an expense over tha vesting penod In valuing equity-settled transactions, no account 1s taken of any
non-market-based vesting condmions and no expense 1s recognised for awards that do not utimately vest as a result of a failure to

satisfy a non-market-hased vesting condition

The cost of cash-settled fransactons 1s measured at farr value Far valug i1s estimated niually at the grant date and at each reporting
penod end thereafter untl the awards are seltled Market-based conditions are taken mio account when deterrmiring farr value

Further detarls regarding the Schemes are set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial statemesnis

Diidend distnbutjon
Dindend distnbutions to McCarthy & Stone’s shareholders are recogrised o the Gompany's financial statemants in the penads n

which the final dividends are approved at the Annual General Meeting, or when paid in the ¢ase of an intenm dividend

Financial iInstruments
Financial assets and financial habiities are recognisad n the Company's Statement of Financal Position when the Company

becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrurnent

Financral assets
All financial assets are normally recogrused and derscogrised on the date that an agreement has been entered into where the

purchase or salg of a financial asset 1s under a contract whose terms require delivery of the financial asset within the timeaframe
established by the market concerned They are inthially measured at farr value, plus transaction costs, except for those financral
assets classified as at fair value through profit or loss, which are inthially measured at far value

Financal agsets are classified as ‘loans and recevables’ The classrication depends on the nature and purpose of the financial
assets and 1s determined at the tme of inthial recognition

Loans and recevables
Trade recevales, loans and other recevables that have fixed or determinable payments that are not guoted In an active market

are classified as 'loans and recevables’ Loans and receivables are measured at amortised cast using the effective interest
method, less any impairment Intersst income 18 recogmised by applying the effective interest rate, except for short-term
recevables when the recognition of interest would be Immaterial

Financial habilittes and squity
Debt and equity mstruments are classified as stther financial habilites or as equity In accordance with the substance of the

contractual arrangement
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1 Accounting pelicies continued

Equity instruments
An equity instrument 1s any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deduching all of its labilibes
Equity iInstruments 1ssued by the Company are recogrised at the proceeds recaived, net of direct 1ssue costs

Financ:al habilitres
Financial habilittes are classified as ‘other financial habilities’

Other financial habiiities
Other financial habllities, including barrowings, are inhally measured at fair value, net of transaction costs

Other financial habiithes are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective intarest method, with interest expense
recognised on an effective yield basis

The effective interest method 15 a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liabiity and of allocating interest expense
over the relevant period The effective mterest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash paymerts through the
expected Iife of the financial kabiity, ar, where appropnate, a shorter penod, to the net carrying amaount on intial recogrition

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity Incremsntal costs directly attnbutable to the issue of new ordinary shares or options are

shown i equity 4$ a deduction from the proceeds

Related parties
The Company digcloses transactions with related parties which are not whally owned within the same Group Where appropnate,

transactions of a similar naturg are aggregated unless, in the opinion of the Directors, separate disciosure s necessary to
understand the sffect of the transactions on the financial statements

2 Crntical accounting jJudgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the apphcation of the Cormpany's acsounting policies, which are descnbed in note 1, the Birectors are required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and labilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources The estimates and associated assumphons are based on histoncal expenence and other factors that are
considered to be relevant Actual resuits may differ from these estimates

The estmates and underlying assurmptions are reviewed on an ongoing basts Rewvisions 10 accounting estmates are recognised
In the penod in which the estimate 15 revised If the revision affects only that penod, or i the penod of the revision and future
penods If the revision affects both current and future penods

Critical judgements in applying the Company's accounting policies
The follovang are the cntical judgements that the Directors have made in the process of applying the Company’s accountng
policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts recogrised in the financial statements

Share-based payments
Assurnphons are made in determining the fair value of employee services receved in exchange for the grant of options under
share-based payment awards at the date of grant Assumptions are around lapse rates, share performance and the expected

outcome of performance condittons

3 Staff costs
The Company had no employees dunng the penod covered by thesa financial statements Costs relating to time incurred by

Directors for Group activities are recharged to McCarthy & Stone plc

4. Investments in subsidiaries 2016 2015
Cast £m £m
1 September 4197 N97
Additions 197 -
31 August 435 4 4197
Net book value 4394 4197

Investments in subsidiary undertakings relate 1o a 100% ownership interest in McGarthy & Stone (Developments) Limited

The Group's subsidiary undertakings for the perod that are significant for the penod and traded dunng the penod are Iisted
in nota 33 to the consolidated financial stataments
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Notes to the Parent Company Financial Statements
continued

5. Trade and other recewvables 2018 2015
£m tm

Amounts faling due within one year:

Other recevables and prepayments - 01
Amounts cwed by subsidary undertakings 104 3 174
104 3 175

Amounts repayable from McCarthy & Stone Retrement Lifastyles Limied are repayable on demand and carry interest of 2 2% at
the yoar end date, this was armended from 3 5% wathin the year {2015 mi%}

6 Shareholders' funds
The movements of the shars capital, share prermum and equity reserva accounts are disclosed it nots 26 to the consolidated

financial statements

Dividends within the year are disclosed within note 26 to the consolidated financial statements

7. Trade and other payables 2016 05
£m m

Amounts falling due within one year

Amounts owed to subsidary undertakings 5.6 22
5.6 22

Amounts payable to McCarthy & Stone (Developments) Limited are repayable on demand and carry interest of 2 2% at the year
end date, this was amended from 3 5% within the year (2015 nii%)

8 Notes to the cash flow statement 2018 2015
Notes £m £m
Prafit for the financial year 1.7 -
Adjustments for

Interest ncome {2 6) -
Share option charge 11 _
Income tax expense 04 -
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital 06 -
{increase) in trade and other recenablas 5 (0.8) 22
Increase m trade and other payables 7 34 22
Operating cash flows before interest and tax paid 32 -
interest recewad 26 -
Tax paid {0.4) -
Cash generated by operations 5.4 -
Net cash infiow from operating activities 5.4 -
2016 25
£m £m

Cash and cash equivalents-
Cash and bank balances o0 00
00 00

9. Share-based payments
Followang the IPO of the Company in November 2015, the Company entared into new share incentive plans Dstails of share

awards granted by the Company o employegs of subsidianes, and that rermnarn outstanding at the year end over the Company's
shares, are set out in note 32 o the consolidated financial statements

The Company recognised an expense of £11m relating to equity-settled share-based payment transactions in the year (2015 £nil),
thws 18 recharged to Group comparnies
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10 Financial instruments
The Company has the following financial nstruments 2016 015

Financial assets
l.oans and recevables measured at amortised cost

Trade and cther recsivables 1043 175
Cash and bank balances gao 00
104 3 175
Financial habilities
Loans and payables measured at amorhsed cost
Trade and other payables {5 6) 22
(56) (22

The Company has no denvative financial Instruments  The farr value of the financial mstruments 1s equal to therr cammying values

11 Related party transactions
The Company is exempt from disclosing related party transactions with other comparnies that are wholly owned wittwn the Group
See note 34 to the consohdated financial statements

Remuneration 1o key management personnel has been disclosed within note 34 to the consolidated financial staternents

12 Explanation of transition to FRS 102

For all periods up o and including the year ended 31 August 2015, the Company prepared its financal statements mn accordance
with UK GAAP As stated in note 1, thesae financial staterents for the year ended 31 August 2016 are the first the Company 1s
regured to prepare in accordance with FRS 102

Accordingly, the Company has prepared financia! siatements which comply with FRS 102 applicable for penods beginning on or
after 1 September 2014 and the sigmificant accounting policies meeting those requirements are described n note 1 and which
have been consistently apphed throughout the penod

As a consequence of adopting FRS 102, the following accounting policy has changed to comply with that standard
Amounts owed to/by Group undertakings Under UK GAAP these balances were held at the net procesds value received Under
FRS 102 amounts owed to Group undertakings will imtially be recognised at the transaction value and subsequently at amortised

cost Due to the balances not having a set repayrment date, and therefore being current balances the amortised costs are deemed
to equal the value recorded at the transachion date, and therefore there will be no adiustment required to comply with FRS 102

www mecarthyandstonegroup ¢o uk
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General Company Information

McCarthy & Stone plc 1s registered in England and Wales, regrstered number 6622199

Our offices

Registered Office Southern South West

4th Floor Southern House First Floor

100 Holdenhurst Road 1 Embankment Way Blackbrook Gate
Bournemouth Ringwood 1 Blackbrook Park Avenue
Dorsat Hants Taunton

BH3 BAQ BH24 1EU TA1 2PX

Tel 01202 292480

Te! 01425 322001

Tel 01823 200500

North East North West West Midlands
Aspen House Unrt 3 Edward Court Ross House
Wykeham Road Altnncham Business Park Binley Business Park
Northmmster Business Park Altnncham Harry Weston Read
Upper Popplaton Cheshire Coventry

York WA14 5GL CV3 2TR

YO26 6QW

Tel 01904 444200

Tel 0161 941 6255

Tel 02476 441199

East Midlands Scottang South East
Onon House Unit 11000 2 Genesis Business Park
Qnon Way Academy Park Albert Dnve
Kettenng Gower Street Woking
NN15 6PE Glasgow Surrey
G51 1PR GUZ21 5RW

Tel 01536 220700

North London
Prospect Place

85 Great North Road
Hatfisld

ALS 5DA

Tel 01707 446000

Tel 0141 420 8300

Tel 01483 G08600

Cautionary statement regarding forward-looking statements

Some of the information in this document may contain forward-looking statements regarding McCarthy & Stone plc and
s subsihanes {the Group) You may be able to dentify forward-locking statements by terms such as “expect”, “beheve’,
"anticipate”, “estimats”, “intend”, “will", "could”, “may” or “might”, the negative of such terms or cther similar expressions
or by discussions of strategy, plans, gbjectives, goals, future svents or intentions These forward-looking statements
include all matters that are not histoncal facts McCarthy & Stone plc (the Company) wishes to caution you that actual
evants or results may differ matanally from those anticipated The forward-looking statements reflect knowledgse and
information available at the date of preparation of this document and the Company undertakes no obligation to update
these statements to reflect events and crcumstances occurring after the date hereot or to reflect the accurrence of
unantcpated events Many factors could cause the actual results to differ matenally from those contained i forward-
looking statements of the Group, Including among others, general economic conditions, the competilive environment
as well as many other nsks spacificafly related to the Group and its operations Past performance of tha Group cannot
ba reliad on as a guide to future performance Nothing in this document should be construed as a profit forecast
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Glossary

'‘Adjusted EPS’
‘Capital turn®

'CGY'
'DCLG’
‘EPS’

‘FRP

'FTSE Index’
'Geartng’
'‘HBF’

‘PO’

‘Land bank’
‘LIBOR'
‘MSMS’

‘Net ASP’

'Net assets’
‘Net debt/cash’
‘NHBC’

‘ROCE’

"TGAV'

‘TNAV'

‘YLMmS’

Fy15 EPS has been adjusted to reflect the 4 1 share
consolidation that took place in FY16

calcUlated by dwding revenue by the average opening and
closing tangible gross asset value in the year

cash-generaiing uri

the Department for Communities and Local Government
eamings per share, being profit attnbutable to ordinary
shareholders (excluding exceptional tems and deferred tax rate

changes) divided by the weighted average number of ordinary
sharés in rssue duning the financral year

freehold reversionary interest being the freehold of each of the
Group's developments i England and Wales which include the
future income stream of ground rents

the Financial Times Stock Exchange Index

geanng is calculated by dividing net debt/cash by net assets
Home Builders Federation

Intial Public Offenng

incluces owned sites and exchanged sites

the London interbank offered rate

McCarthy & Stone Management Services Limited ~ a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company that prowides management

services to homeowners in the Group's Retiremant Living and
Ortus Homes developments

net average sefiing price - the average pnce agreed for sales of
apartments in the year after deducting ist price discounts, part
exchange top-ups and other incentves

net assets 1s calculated as total assets less total liabiies

cash and cash equivalents less long-term and short-term
borrowings (excluding unamortised debt issue costs)

National House Building Council

return on capital employed - calcutated by dividing underlying
operating profit by the average opening and closing tangible
gross asset valye in the year

tangible gross asset value - calculated as TNAV less
net debt/cash

tangible net asset value - calculated as net assets excluding
goodwill and intangible assets

Yourlife Management Services Limited — owned 50/50 by
MSMS and Somerset Care Group Limited, that provides
management sarvicas, domestic assistanca, personal care
and additional support to homeowners In the Group's Assisted
Living developments
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